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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended and Section 21E of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended All statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not clearly

historical in nature are forward-looking and the words anticipate believe belief expect estimate project

plan intend continue predict may will should strategy will likely result will likely continue and

similar expressions are generally intended to identify forward-looking statements Forward-looking statements are

subject to risks and uncertainties including those set forth under Item 1A Risk Factors below that could cause

actual results to differ materially from our historical experience and our present expectations or projections detailed

discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to differ materially

from such forward-looking statements is included in the section entitled Item IA Risk Factors of this report Caution

should be taken not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements since such statements speak only

as of the date when made Other than as required by applicable law we undertake no obligation to publicly update or

revise forward-looking statements

ITEM BUSINESS

COMPANY OVERVIEW

SouthWest Waters principal business activity is to operate and maintain water and wastewater infrastructure

Through our operating subsidiaries we own 144 systems and operate hundreds more under contract to cities utility

districts and private companies SouthWest Water was incorporated in California in 1954 and reincorporated in

Delaware in 1988 We maintain our corporate offices in Los Angeles California

In the past ten years we have completed 19 acquisitions of both utility and contract service businesses These

businesses operated largely independent of each other resulting in complex business structure with inconsistent

business practices Beginning in 2007 we implemented changes to better integrate the acquisitions and our various

business operations Our operations were divided into four major operating segments in 2008 to focus on the distinct

strategies of each of our operating businesses Each operating segment is led by Managing Director and Financial

Director and has embedded in it the direct operating cost and infrastructure to deliver its plan Common support

functions such as environmental health and safety finance and accounting information technologyand some of our

customer call centers are centralized The costs of these centralized departments are allocated to each operating

segment _-

We now have four reporting segments We separate our segments first by whether we own the utility or we provide

contract services to others Our owned water and wastewater utilities are referred to as our Utilities operations

Utilities In our financial statements we report our Texas Utilities operations Texas Utilities as separate

segment because of different.economic characteristics This is principally because the Texas Utilities predominantly

under-recovered their current cost of service which includes reasonable return on equity We have made large

investments in these operations since their acquisition which have not yet been recovered through the rates we

charge Our contract operations are generally segmented by cOntract type into those that are larger stand alone

operations OM Services and those that are small full service contracts operated by common team of personnel

resulting in model that apportions fractional cost to each client Texas MUD Services

Utilities consist of our owned water and wastewater utilities located in California Alabama and Mississippi In

previous periods the utilities segment included thebusiness activities of our New Mexico Utility NMUI which was

sold on May 2009 The NMUI activities are now included in discontinued operations for all periods presented See

Note Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions included in Part II Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data for the summary of the historical results of discontinued operations Residential customers make

up the largest component of our Utilities customer base with these customers representing approximately 94% of our

water and wastewater connections Substantially all of our Utilities customers are metered which allows us to measure

and bill for our customers water consumption Each of the operations in this segment has unique service territory

that is subject to state and federal regulations regarding standards of water quality safety environmental and other

matters The rates that we can charge for water and wastewater service include the opportunity to earn reasonable

rate of return on investments in these utilities as approved by state regulatory agencies except for some of our

Alabama wastewater rates which are governed by our service agreements Some of these governmental agencies

approve recovery of costs based on prôjectØd test year forward looking and some approve recovery of costs

based on historical test year backward looking Our Utilities operations require ongoing capital investments to

maintain and enhance the reliability and quality of the service we provide as well as the opportunity for revenue

growth from rate increases and new connections



Texas Utilities consists of 123 small mostly rural systems that are grouped into nine jurisdictional utilities across
Texas Residential customers make up the largest component of our Texas Utilities customer base with these
customers representing approximately 98% of our water and wastewater connections Substantially all of our Texas
Utilities customers are metered which allows us to measure and bill for our customers water consumption These
systems are broadly dispersed geographically The majority of the systems are organized as one utility with single
tariff known as Monarch Utilities The Monarch systems as well as two smaller systems acquired in 2007 were at
various stages of disrepair at the time of acquisition and we continue to spend significant capital to maintain

regulatory compliance and to improve the quality of service We are not yet recovering all of these costs in our rates
and as a.result the Texas Utilities have lower rate of return than typically expected from utility We are actively
pursuing recovery of these costs in the rate setting process All other aspects of operations for these utilities are the
same as our Utilities operations therefore as soon as we are recovering our costs including reasonable return on
investment we expect to aggregate this segment with our Utilities segment

OM Services generally consists of operations that are project-specific contracts with cities public agencies and
private owners Most contracts are stand alone operations staffed with project-specific personnel with an average
contract life of two to three years Under typical OM contract we charge fee that covers specified level of
services that include facility operations and maintenance and may include other water or wastewater related services
Services are typically provided evenly throughout the contract period and are billed on monthly basis If we provide
services beyond the scope of contract we bill for the additional services on time-and-materials basis or negotiate

unique price These operations are largely located in Alabama California Colorado Georgia and Mississippi We
have one contract that represents approximately 22% of the revenue of this segment which we are currently re
negotiating and one that represents approximately 14% which is due for renewal in November 2010 None of the
remaining contracts represent more than 7% of this segments revenue and the majority represent less than 1%

Texas MUD Services is full service provider of utility services to large number of small utilities in Texas that are
mostly owned by municipal utility districts MUD MUD is created to provide water supply wastewater treatment
and drainage service to areas where municipal services are not available We service more than 270 MUD clients with

common team of client managers operators customer service and billing personnel Therefore these contracts are
allocated proportional amount of each cost center creating business model that is significantly different from that
of OM Services Under typical MUD contract we bill monthly base fee to provide specified level of service
usually water and/orwastewater facility inspections routine operations equipment maintenance and utility customer
service including meter reading call center dispatch billing and collection services We bill for any additional services

provided beyond the basic contract on time-and-materials basis as such services are rendered Most contracts

provide for an increase in the monthly base fee as the number of customer connections increases and generally
include inflation adjustments The majority of our MUD contracts are cancelable with 30 to 60 day prior notice by
either party but tend to last for longer periods due to the close working relationships between the operators and the
clients No one district represents more than 4% of the overall revenue of this segment

DEFINITIVE MERGER AGREEMENT

We have entered into an Agreementand Plan of Merger dated as of March 2010 the Merger Agreement with
SW Merger Acquisition Corp Parent and SW Merger Sub Corp direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent

Merger Sub Parent and Merger Sub are entities controlled by institutional investors advised by 3.P Morgan Asset

Management IIF and Water Asset Management L.L.C WAM
The Merger Agreement contemplates that Merger Sub will be merged with and into SouthWest Water with South West
Water continuing as the surviving corporation in such merger as direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent the
Merger and each outstanding share of our common stock would be converted in the Merger into the right to
receive $11.00 per share in cash the Merger Consideration

We have made various representations and warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement including among
others not to solicit proposals relating to alternative business combination transactions or subject to certain

exceptions that permit our board of directors to comply with its fiduciary duties enter into discussions concerning or
provide confidential information in connection with alternative business combination transactions Subject to certain

exceptions that permit our board of directors to comply with its fiduciary duties our board of directors has resolved to
recommend that our stockholders vote in favor of and adopt and approve the Merger and the Merger Agreement The
Merger Agreement also includes covenants pertaining to the operation of our business between executionof the

Merger Agreement and the closing of the Merger

Consummation of the Merger is subject to various conditions including among others the approval and adoption of
the Merger Agreement by our stockholders the absence of certain legal impediments to consummation of the Merger



and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals The Merger is not conditioned on the receipt of financing by the

parent and each of HF and WAM have executed equity commitment letters with the Parent under which they have

committed to provide Parent with the funding necessary to pay the full Merger Consideration due under the Merger

Agreement The Merger Agreement contains certain termination rights and provides that upon the termination of the

Merger Agreement under specified circumstances we may be required to pay Parent termination fee equal to 3% of

the aggregate Merger Consideration or the Parent may be required to pay us termination fee equal to 5% of the

aggregate Merger Consideration In addition in certain circumstances where the Merger Agreement is terminated we

are required to reimburse Parent or the Parent is required to reimburse us for fees and expenses incurred in

connection with the Merger Agreement up to maximum in either case of $3.0 million provided that any such fee

and expense reimbursement will be credited against any termination fee that is payable

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement we also executed binding letter of intent the Binding

Letter with Parent hF and WAM collectively the Investor under which the Investor is to purchase 2.7 million

shares of our common stock at purchase price of $6.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $16.2 million

the PIPE Investment The board of directors approved the terms of the agreement for the PIPE Investment on

March 12 2010 The PIPE Investment is subject to the final execution of mutually acceptable definitive agreements on

terms consistent with those set forth in the Binding Letter The Investor will be entitled to certain rights in connection

with the.PIPE Investment including the appointment of designee to serve on our board of directors

Following the Merger we will cease to be reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended and our common stock will cease to be traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

In connection with the proposed transaction we will file proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange

Commission SEC Before making any voting or investment decision investors and security holders are urged to

carefully read the entire proxy statement and any other relevant documents filed with the SEC as well as any

amendments or supplements to those documents because they will contain important information about the proposed

transaction

See Part Item 1A Risk Factors in this Form 10-K for description of the conditions of the Merger that could

adversely affect our results.of operations

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The water and wastewater industry generates annual revenue in excess of $70 billion in the United States according

to Environmental Business International Inc The United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA estimates

that government-owned systems make up approximately 43% of all water systems and approximately 98% of all

wastewater systems Ownership is highly fragmented with approximately 54000 community water systems and

approximately 16000 community wastewater facilities according to the EPA The majority of the systems are very

small serving population of 500 or less

Utility ownership has high barriers to entry including high capital requirements and multifaceted regulatory approval

processes The market is characterized by growing regulatory complexity and an aging and deteriorating municipal

infrastructure The EPA estimates that approximately $274 billion of capital spending will be necessary on water

systems between 2000 and 2019 to replace aging infrastructure and to comply with quality standards and that

approximately $388 billion of capital spending will be necessary onwastewater systems between 2000 and 2019 to

replace aging infrastructure and comply with quality standards

The contract services segment is characterized by aggressive competition and market-driven growth and profit

margins Industry participants which include engineering and consulting companies and numerous other fee-for-

service businesses offer contract services such as the building and operating of water and wastewater utility systems

system repair services lab services sale of water infrastructure and distribution products such as pipes and other

specialized services

We are uniquely positioned in the industry as we are both an active acquirer of utilities and leading provider of

contract operations to other owners of utilities This enables us to both service the needs of the municipalities and

when appropriate convert those assets to private ownership

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY

Our primary objective is to own and operate water and wastewater infrastructure that provides reliable cost

effective service to our clients and customers while generating industry standard or better operating margins for our

stockholders We have targeted operating margins of 30% to 35h for our owned utility businesses and 5% to 10%



for our contract service businesses We apply two principal strategies outlined below in our efforts to continue

growing our business and improving our financial performance In the fourth quarter of 2008 we determined that it

was necessary to restate our historical financial statements This restatement was concluded in July 2009 and we
became timely filer with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC in November 2009 As result progress

on our business strategy was impacted during this timeframe However the information below continues to reflect our

long-term business strategy

Optimize the business model In 2007 we began an organizational restructuring to drive efficiencies by

reducing divisional management layers and streamlining business processes These activities have taken time and

investment but we feel they are the foundation of our long-term strategy to drive sustainable efficiency

improvements These activities are focused in three categories

Focus on core business Our core business is to provide water and wastewater service to consumers either

through our owned utility systems or for other utility owners under contract In order to provide clear focus on

these core business activities we have divested non-core outlying or underperforming assets and we have

exited service businesses that are non-core or that do not support our operating margin objectives In 2009

we divested non-strategic environmental testing lab Since 2007 we have exited an electrical contracting

business pipe rehabilitation business an under-performing wholesale wastewater facility and bookkeeping

business We continue to assess our assets and services businesses to determine if further divestiture is

warranted

Disciplined approach to cost recovery and margins In our owned utilities we work to recover our cost

of service including reasonable return on investment as soon as practical by filing rate cases on regular

basis Each of our utilities has long-term strategy to address capital investment growth and timing of rate

filings In our contract service businesses we perform systematic price reviews on all of our contracts to

ensure we are receiving fair return and strive to achieve operating margin targets We intend to continue to

renegotiate or exit service contracts that are not achieving these targets We also seek out projects and scope

enhancements that will improve our operating margin profile across the services businesses

Reduced fixed cost structure We strive for cost containment across the Company We have an

opportunity to continue to drive down fixed costs over time to benefit both our customers and our

shareholders We began the process of consolidating support functions in 2007 to reduce costs and continued

these efforts through 2008 and 2009 As result we have made large investments in our consolidated

customer service financial and information technology systems that have driven general and administrative

costs higher as we build foundation upon which to drive sustainable continuous improvement into the

organization As the efficiencies of these investments take hold we have targeted objectives to reduce the

fixed costs of supporting our operations However we anticipate that in the near term we will continue to

experience higher costs due to these consolidation efforts as well as the remediation of our material internal

control weaknesses see Item 9a Controls and Procedures for detailed discussion of our material internal

control weaknesses

Accelerate growth We generate growth in each of our business segments by expanding the number of water

and wastewater utilities that we own and/or operate We focus on geographic radius around our current

operations to utilize our contract operations personnel as local management in the region and gain economies of

scale We will evaluate opportunities outside of this radius but generally only if the opportunity has the scale and

economic potential to ensure that we can generate industry standard margins or better by moving into the region

Acquisition of utility assets Our primary targeted growth mechanism is to acquire additional utility assets

that are rapidly accretive to the Company We look to continue acquiring utilities in population growth

markets which are principally in the southern and western United States As population grows utility

connection count grows making these assets strategic long-term growth engines We look to consolidate in

regions where our local expertise and knowledge of the regions water and wastewater issues gives us

competitive advantage when bidding for assets We will look at outlying opportunities as long as they are in

growth market and the utility has an adequate number of connections for the economics to be sufficient

Our contract operations segments have been good source of utility acquisitions over the last five years Our

local relationships and community involvement often lead to SouthWest Water being natural consideration if

or when utility owner decides to divest For example in 2005 we acquired wastewater collection and

treatment system in the Birmingham Alabama area that we were operating through our OM Services

segment This utility was immediately accretive to operations In January 2008 this team was also

instrumental in the purchase of the wastewater collection and treatment system located directly adjacent to



the system purchased in 2005 We expect favorable return on invested capital from both of these

acquisitions

For additional information about our acquisition activities see Acquisitions and Dispositions in this section

Attain new contracts We intend to continue to grow our contract service businesses which includes both

our OM and MUD segments by bidding for and winning additional service contracts The mounting regulatory

complexity and an aging and deteriorating infrastructure are increasingly becoming challenges for

municipalities Raising large amounts of funds can be difficult especially for small and medium size cities In

order to meet their capital spending challenges some municipalities are examining partnerships with the

private sector We have strategically grown our contract operations in small to medium size cities that are

experiencing population growth We look to expand our operations in geographic regions where we are

currently operating to enhance our economies of scale but will look at opportunities in other markets if they

have the scale and economic potential to ensure we can generate industry standard margins or better We
also look to attain contract operations near our owned utilities to enable us to build larger presence in the

region

BUSINESS SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

Revenue and operating income which we define as revenue less the related direct operating expenses and allocated

centralized costs for the three years ended December 31 2009 were as follows

Revenue and Operating Income Loss by Business Segment

Years Ended December

Additional information about our business segments can be found in Note 15 Segment Information included in

Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

UTILITIESDEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES AND REGULATION

Our owned water and wastewater utilities which are the combination of Utilities and Texas Utilities operations serve

population of more than 460000 in five states At December 31 2009 we had approximately 109000 active water

connections and 21000 active wastewater connections Approximately 95% of our connections are to residential

customers The table below shows the revenue for the year ended December 31 2009 and connection counts by state

as of December 31 2009

2009 2008 2007

In thousands except percentage data Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Operating revenue

Utilities .- 65168 31% 60927 29% 56653 28%

Texas Utilities 36525 17% 34784 17% 27911 13%

OM Services 36976 l8% 40493 l9% 40922 20%
Texas MUD Services 72424 34% 74453 35% 79321 39%

Total revenue 211093 100% 210657 100% 204807 100%

Operating income loss
Utilities 19288 19725 22655

Texas Utilities 7457 19037 1230
OM Services 299 2881 1369
Texas MUD Services 1421 3115 2841

Corporate 37459 21822 1535
Total operating income loss 11836 27130 7539

Water Wastewater

Revenue Percent Connections Percent Connections Percent

In thousands except percentage data
California 55043 54% 75392 69% 0%

Texas1 36525 36% 33418 31% 11209 54%

Southeast2 10125 10% 285 0% 9652 46%

Total 101693 100% 109095 lOO% 20861 100%



Includes small system in Oklahoma

Includes utilities in Alabama and Mississippi

In this section we discuss the major drivers our utilities must effectively manage Each region presents unique

opportunities and challenges ranging from the local regulatory environment to weather These drivers present both

the opportunity and challenge of managing these utilities As part of our long-term strategy we have integrated rate

making operations capital planning and community involvement to meet the demands of these dynamic market

opportunities

Seasonality and Conservation

Our utilities operate entirely in the South and West of the United States Typically the second and third quarters of

each year account for the highest volume of water consumption when weather tends to be hot and dry However

drought conditions may result in consumer conservation efforts or water shortages which can reduce consumption

Conversely unusually wet conditions may result in decreased customer demand lower revenue and lower profit

Wastewater revenue is typically linked to consumer water use and is therefore also impacted by usage rates

Weather patterns also impact costs Drought conditions may result in our having to purchase water from costly

sources Rainy seasons can result in inflows into sewer collection systems which increases the amount of wastewater

we treat which increases costs

Water Sources

Our water utilities are dependent upon defined source of water supply In our long-term planning we are always

evaluating quality quantity growth needs and alternate sources to ensure good stewardship of our utilities as well as

achieving optimal costs in our operations

We generally own the land and physical assets used to store extract and treat source water Typically we do not own
the water itself which is held in public trust but rather hold title to rights granted by federal and state agencies for

the allocation of water pursuant to federal state and local law Sources of supply are seasonal in nature and weather

conditions can have pronounced effect on supply

Our supplies by principal service area are

Californiaobtains between 60% 80% of its delivered water by pumping water from 19 owned wells and the

balance from purchasing water from adjacent municipal and private water purveyors and from two regional

water wholesalers Our wells pump water from two of the major groundwater basins in the Southern California

coastal watershed the Main San Gabriel Basin and the Central Basin We own the rights to pump 13% of the

water in the Main San Gabriel Basin and 2% in the Central Basin Source water is stored for use in 32 storage

reservoirs prior to distribution

Texasobtains more than 80h of its delivered water by pumping from its 208 active wells across the state

that draw from several aquifers primarily the Edwards Trinity Gulf Coast and Carrizo Aquifers Additionally

seven of our systems derive water from surface water sources that supply approximately 10% of our delivered

water Source water is stored for use in 249 storage reservoirs prior to distribution We have several long-

term agreements to purchase water from the cities of Austin and Pflugerville Texas and other water

producers in the Austin Dallas-Fort Worth and San Antonio areas

Water Regulation

The water supplies available to all of our utilities are subject to regulation by the EPA under the 1996 Federal Safe

Drinking Water Act US Act The US Act establishes uniform minimum national water quality standards as well as

specification of the types of treatment processes to be used for public drinking water The EPA as mandated under

the US Act issues regulations that require among other things disinfection of drinking water specification of

maximum contaminant levels MCL5 and filtration of surface water supplies Our water supplies are also subject to

regulation by the following

In California the California Department of Public Health CDPH under the California Safe Drinking Water Act

Cal Act

In Mississippi the Mississippi Department of Health ServicesWater Supply Division



In Oklahoma the Department of Environmental Quality DEQ and

In Texas the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality TCEQ

The Cal Act and the rules of the CDPH are similar to the US Act and the mandates of the EPA except that in many

instances the requirements of the CDPH are more stringent than those of the EPA In addition to the EPA and the

CDPH water quality regulations our.California water utility is also subject to water quality standards that may be set

by the California Public Utilities Commission CPUC The California Supreme Court has ruled that the CPUC has the

authority to set standards that are more stringent than those set by the EPA and the CDPH

Costs associated with testing our water supplies have increased and are expected to further increase as regulatory

agencies adopt additional monitoring requirements We believe that costs associated with the additional monitoring

and testing and incremental costs of complying with governmental regulations will be recoverable from ratepayers

through future rate increases

Both the EPA and the state regulatory agencies have put into effect regulations and other pronouncements that

require periodic testing and sampling of water to ensure that only permissible levels below the prescribed MCLs of

organic and volatile and semi-volatile organic compounds VOCs herbicides pesticides radionuclides and

inorganic substances are present in water supplied to the public Our water utilities operators regularly sample and

monitor the quality of water being distributed throughout the system Our utility personnel conduct sampling testing

and inspections at the intervals locations and frequencies required by EPA and state regulations Water samples from

throughout our water systems are tested regularly by state-certified laboratories for bacterial contamination chemical

contaminant content and for the presence of pollutants and contaminants for which MCLs have been put into effect

The test results are sent to the respective state regulatory agencies Disinfection and other types of treatment are

applied to water supplies as required or needed to safeguard against bacteriological chemical and other water

contaminants In addition each of our utilities provides its customers with an annual water quality report that among

other matters informs them of the sources and quality of the water being provided

In California in addition to water sampling and testing performed by our utility personnel independent engineers

retained by the Watermaster Boards that manage the Main and Central Basins conduct sampling and testing for

certain pollutants such as VOCs The results of the sampling and testing are made available to the CDPH and all water

purveyors that produce water from the Main Basin The cost of such sampling and testing is assessed to the producers

in this basin

few surface water systems at our Texas utilities have been in violation of MCLs for Disinfection By-Products DBPs
which has resulted in years prior to 2008 in citations and fines from the TCEQ Several systems are not in

compliance with secondary standards such as chlorides total dissolved solids and fluoride Some of our Texas utilities

are older systems and therefore require infrastructure upgrades to maintain regulatory compliance We have entered

into Compliance Agreements and Agreed Orders with the TCEQ under which we have committed to make certain

improvements to achieve compliance by pre-determined deadline These agreements are intended to provide the

TCEQ with assurance that problems covered by these agreements will be addressed and the agreements generally

provide protection to us from fines penalties and other actions while corrective measures are being implemented The

customers in affected areas have been advised of the DBP MCL violations and the corrective actions taken by public

notice direct mail or the annual Consumer Confidence Report as required by the TCEQ We have constructed new

treatment facilities drilled new groundwater wells interconnected nearby systems and taken other steps to address

these compliance issues We are actively working with the TCEQ and outside consultants to address the remaining

issues and bring the affected systems into full compliance

Drinking water systems have been identified as critical infrastructure and potential terrorist targets In compliance

with the Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Response Act of 2002 PL 107-88 we assessed the vulnerability of

our water systems to terrorist attack This vulnerability assessment was used to determine the risks posed to the

water supply system operations treatment and distribution systems identify the water systems vulnerabilities and

provide prioritized plan for security upgrades modifications of operational procedures and/or policy changes to

mitigate identified risks to critical assets

We believe that water supplied by our California utility meets all current requirements of the US Act the Cal Act and

the regulations put into effect under the related legislation and CPUC standards We also believe that water supplied

by our Mississippi Oklahoma and Texas utilities complies with all current requirements of the US Act and the

respective state regulatory agencies except as noted above



Wastewater Regulation

The provision of wastewater services involves the collection of wastewater from customers premises through sewer
lines The wastewater is then transported through sewer network to treatment facility where it is treated to meet
required effluent standards The treated wastewater is finally returned to the environment as effluent and the solid
waste byproduct of the treatment process is disposed of in accordance with state and federal standards Because each
discharge point is different the requirements for treatment can vary greatly from state to state site to site In

response to this our wastewater systems deploy variety of different technologies and require varying levels of

operator certification and training

The water discharged from our wastewater facilities is subject to regulations imposed by the EPA under the Clean
Water Act of.1972 as amended We currently have wastewater treatment operations in Alabama Mississippi
Oklahoma and Texas The water discharged from our treatment facilities is also regulated by the Alabama Department
of Environmental Management the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality and the Oklahoma Department of
Environmental Quality

In Alabama new phased discharge limits have been set for our facilities on the Cahaba River that will require us to
reduce the amount of phosphorus discharged over the next 15 years These new limits will require significant

upgrades to these facilities over the next several years

In Texas discharge water is also subject.to regulation under the TCEQ and the Texas Clean Water Act as amended
These regulations establish permit limitations for discharging contaminates into natural water bodies We hold

discharge permits as required by the TCEQ and are complying with all monitoring and reporting requirements related

to the quality of the.discharged water

When we acquired our Texas-based Monarch Utilities in 2004 several of its wastewater facilities were not in

compliance with TCEQ regulations and as result some discharge violations have occurred that resulted in citations

and fines We have been working cooperatively with the TCEQ and have entered into Compliance Agreements and

Agreed Orders with them under which we have committed to make certain improvements to achieve compliance by
pre-determined deadline These agreements are intended to provide the TCEQ with assurance that problems covered

by these agreements will be addressed and the agreements generally provide protection to us from fines penalties
and other actions while corrective measures are being implemented We are addressing these violations by
constructing new treatment facilities changing existing treatment procedures and/or modifying operations We are

continuing to work with the TCEQ and outside consultants to address the remaining issues and bring the affected

systems into full compliance

Water and Wastewater Rates

Our regulated investor-owned water and wastewater utilities in Alabama California Mississippi Oklahoma and Texas

generate operating revenue from customers based on tariffs that are established and updated by state regulators

through rate-setting process except for some of our Alabama wastewater rates which are governed by service

agreements In states where we are regulated by state agencies the rate-setting process may include public

hearings evidentiary hearings and the submission of evidence and testimony by the utility and intervenors Some
state regulators are more restrictive than others with regard to the types of expenses and investments that may be

recovered in rates as well as with regard to the complexity of their rate-making processes and how they reach their

final rate determinations In evaluating rate case state regulators typically focus on five areas the amount and

prudence of investment in facilities considered used and useful in providing service typically by making reference to

representative 12-month period of time known as test year ii the operating and maintenance costs and taxes

associated with providing the service again based on representative test year iii the appropriate rate of return

iv the rate design used to allocate revenue requirements equitably across the customer base and the quality of

service the utility provides including issues raised by customers

State regulators have broad authority derived from state laws and state cQnstitutions under which they operate to

regulate many of the economic aspects of the utilities that fall within their jurisdiction For example they must
approve the rates and conditions under which service is provided to customers and have extensive authority to

establish rules and regulations under which the utilities operate Although specific authority might differ from state to

state in most states regulators must approve rates accounting treatments long-term financing programs significant

capital expenditures and plant additions in many instances prior to their completion transactions between the

regulated subsidiary and affiliated entities reorganizations and mergers and acquisitions The jurisdiction exercised by
each regulator is prescribed by state laws and regulations and therefore varies from state to state Regulatory policies
not only vary from state to state they may also change over time These policies will affect the timing as well as the
extent of recovery of expenses and the realized return on invested capital



Economic regulation of utilities deals with many competing and occasionally conflicting public interests and policy

goals The primary responsibility of state regulators is to achieve the overall public interest by balancing the interests

of customers and the utility and its owners Although the specific approach to economic regulation varies certain

general principles are consistent across the states in which our utilities operate Based on the United States

Constitution and state constitutions that prohibit confiscation of property without due process of law and just

compensation as well as state statutory provisions and court precedent utilities are entitled to recover through rates

charged to customers prudent and reasonable operating costs the cost of infrastructure or capital investment

associated with such operating cost as well as an opportunity to earn reasonable return on capital investment

necessary to attract capital State regulators also accord utility the exclusive right to serve specific areas the

boundaries of which are delineated in the utilitys certificate of public convenience and necessity CPCN These

CPCNs provide investor-owned utilities with protection from competition because they preclude others from providing

service in the area approved by the CPCN In return the utility undertakes to provide reliable service on

nondiscriminatory basis to all customers within the authorized area

Our operating revenue when controlled by state rate-making processes is typically based on each utilitys unique cost

of service Certain states utilize full or partial consolidated rate policies under which all customers within district

region or area are charged under one rate structure regardless of how many individual systems arewithin the

district region or area The single tariff structure is based on costs that are determined on district region or area

wide basis thereby moderating the impact of periodic fluctuations in specific system costs while lowering

administrative costs for us and our customers This is the case with our Monarch Utilities in Texas

The process to obtain approval for change in rates or rate case involves filing an application with the state

regulator Rate cases are normally initiated by the utility when necessary to ensure recovery of costs In California

rate applications are filed on predetermined schedule established by the regulator Elsewhere rate case will

typically not be filed unless the current or forecasted future return is below the allowed rate of return currently

authorized by the regulator state regulator may also initiate rate proceeding or investigation if it believes utility

may be earning in excess of its authorized rate of return Rate cases often involve lengthy and costly administrative

process

The decisions of regulators andthe timing of those decisions can have significant impact on the operations and

earnings of our utilities Rate cases and other rate-related proceedings can take from several months to more than

year to complete Therefore there is frequently delay or regulatory lag between the time one of our regulated

subsidiaries makes a.capital investment or incurs an operating expense increase and when those costs are reflected in

rates For instance new capital investment that is not reflected in the most recently completed rate case will generally

not be recovered by the regulated subsidiary until the next rate case is filed and approved by the regulator Our rate

case management program is guided by the goals of obtaining efficient recovery of costs of capital and utility

operating and maintenance costs including costs incurred for compliance with environmental regulations The

corporate rate strategy and regulatory affairs team works closely with the management team at each of our utilities to

anticipate the time required for the regulatory process and files rate case with the goal of obtaining rates that reflect

as closely as possible the cost of providing service at the time the rates become effective Even if rates are sufficient

we face the risk that we will not achieve the authorized rate of return on our invested capital that is permitted by the

state regulator

Our utilities also pursue methods to minimize the advers.e impact of regulatory lag and have worked with state

regulators and legislatures to implement number of approaches to achieve this result numberof states in which

we operate have adopted efficient rate policies including some form of single tariff pricing forward-looking test years

and pass-through provisions The forward-looking test year mechanism provides for rates that are contemporaneous

with costs and allows us greater opportunity to earn fair return on our invested capital California is state that

has adopted the forward-looking test year mechanism Also some of the states in which we operate permit pass-

through provisions that allow for changes in certain non-controllable operating .costs such as purchased power and

property taxes to be passed through to customers outside of general rate case proceeding

Two of our Alabama wastewater utilities have rates established by long-term contractswith local governments and are

not regulated by state regulators These contracts were established with thelocal governmental agencies at.the time

the utilities were purchased and provide annual cost escalation rate increases as well as rate increases required to

comply with new regulations or specific capital needs

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures related to water supply treatment and distribution and wastewater collection and treatment

facilities are typically funded by water and wastewater rates However in some of our Texas Utilities we have made



large capital expenditures in the systems primarily to correct compliance and operating issues the systems had prior
to our ownership that are significantly greater than is provided for in their current rates In 2010 we estimate that

Company-wide funding of capital investment is expected to be between $18 to $22 million Our capital investment
includes infrastructure renewal programs where we replace existing infrastructure as needed and the construction of
facilities to meet new customer growth

Supply Cost Balancing Accounts

As permitted by the CPUC our California utility maintains water supply cost balancing accounts Balancing accounts
track differences between non-controllable costs authorized in rates and recorded costs and defers those amounts for

future surcharge or surcredit to customers Deferred amounts are charged or credited to customers over 12 to 36
month period The supply cost balancing .accounts track differences between the cost per unit charged by providers of

supply items purchased water purchased power and pump taxes and the cost per unit for those items provided for
in our rates Under-collections recorded as regulatory assets occur when the recorded cost per unit exceeds costs

per unit in rates and conversely over-collections recorded as regulatory liabilities occur when the recorded cost per
unit is less than the cost per unit in rates Typically under-collections or over-collections when they occur are

tracked in the supply cost balancing accounts for future recovery or refund through surcharge in the event of an

under-collection or through surcredit in the event of an over-collection on customers bills We accrue interest on
our supply cost balancing accounts at the rate prevailing for 90-day commercial paper established by the CPUC

Monterey-style Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism

Effective August 2008 with the adoption of the Monterey-style Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism WRAM we
began recording the difference between inclining block quantity rates which are the tariff rates approved by the

CPUC and equivalent uniform rates also established by the CPUC Differences are recorded as an adjustment to

revenue with an offsetting entry in the WRAM balancing account which is either regulatoryasset or liability and

represents amounts that will be billed or refunded to customers in the future

The balances in the WRAM asset and liability accounts which fluctuate on monthly basis depending upon the mix of

customer usage among the inclining rate blocks represent the variance between adopted and actual results We
accrue interest on the WRAM at the rate prevailing for 90-day commercial paper When the WRAM amount reaches
two percent of the approved revenue requirement whether positive or negative the CPUC allows us to file an advice
letter to request the recovery or amortization of the balance in the account Account balances less than those levels

may be refunded or collected in our general rate case proceedings or appended to future requests for recovery or

refund

The low income ratepayer assistance LIRA memorandum account captures the net cost of this program which

provides monthly credits to qualifying low income customers and also related monthly charges to non-qualifying
residential customers Also all revenue net of expenses associated with the non-tariff LifeLine houseline maintenance

program is deferred in memorandum account pending resolution of the CPUCs current affiliated transactions

rulemaking

Competition

Our utilities generally do not face direct or indirect competition in providing utility service in our existing markets

because we operate within those markets pursuant to CPCNs or similar authorizations issued .by regulators that

preclude others from providing service in the .authorized area and ii the high cost of constructing new water and

wastewater system in an existing market creates barrier to market entry We do face competition from

governmental agencies other investor-owned utilities and strategic buyers in connection with entering new markets

and making strategic acquisitions Consolidation is changing the competitive landscape as small local utilities struggle

to meet their capital spending requirements and look.to partner with investor-owned utilities We also face

competition in offering utility service to new real estate developers where we compete with others on the basis of the

financial terms we offer for our services the availability of water and our ability to commence providing services on

timely basis Our largest investor-owned competitors in entering new markets and making strategic acquisitions
based on comparison of operating revenue and population served are American Water Works Aqua America Inc
United Water owned by Suez Environment Company S.A American States Water Co California Water Services

Group and SJW Corp

The CPCNs or similar authorizations pursuant to which we operate prevent or limit municipalities from competing
with us to provide water and wastewater utility services to our existing customers However the potential exists that

portions of our utility assets could be acquired by municipalities or other local government entities through one or
more of the following methods
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eminent domain also known as condemnation

the right of purchase given or reserved by municipality or politicat subdivision when the original certificate

was granted

the right of purchase given or reserved under the law of the state in which the utility subsidiary was

incorporated or from which it received its certificate and

legislative or regulatory changes to the certificate or its powers

The sale price for such transaction initiated by local government may be determined consistent with applicable

eminent domain law or the price maybe negotiated or fixed by appraisers as prescribed by the law of the state or in

the particular franchise or charter

We are occasionally subject to condemnation proceedings in the ordinary course of business In January 2007 the

Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Authority and the City of Rio Rancho New Mexico filed petition in New Mexico

District Court seeking to acquire by condemnation our New Mexico utility through the alleged power of eminent

domain In January 2009 we reached settlement in these proceedings See Item Legal Proceedings for

additional .information

CONTRACT SERVICESDEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS SERVICES AND REGULATION

Our contract services businesses which include both OM Services and Texas MUD Services segments are described

below Many of the overall drivers forthese two operationsare similaralthough there are some differences Although

we are operating these utilities on behalf of governmental agencyor industry the day to day issues are much the

same as in our owned utilities operations However in contract services some of these drivers can present an

opportunity for us to provide additional services for our clients

Seasonality

Contract service operations are generally not seasonal but can be affected bysevere weather and rainfall In general

heavy rainfall or storm conditions may limit our ability to perform certain billable work such as pipeline maintenance

manhole rehabilitation and other outdoor services Extreme heat can cause cracking and leaks in our clients

infrastructure which increases the amount of time-and-materials service order work performed Severe weather

conditions may also result in additional labor and material costs to us that may not necessarily be recoverable through

our various fixed price contracts

Revenue from our billing and collection services business is generally not subject to seasonal fluctuations

Regulation

Contract service revenue is not subject to regulation. However we provide contract services which include the

operation and.maintenance of water supply and wastewater facilities owned by cities public agencies municipal utility

districts and private entities The systems we operate are subject to state and federal regulations regarding standards

of water quality safety environmental and other matters and our operators must comply with requisite standards

In our contracts we typically do not take responsibility for compliance matters that would generally fall on the owner

or owner engineer such as size of plant appropriate technology or effluent water or wastewater conditions However
in our contracts we generally do accept risk as it specifically relates to operator error or practices and have

experienced fines from time to time as result For example in early 2010 we reached preliminary settlement

requiring that we implement an acceptable compliance program and pay fines and penalties of $0.8 million See Note

10 Commitments and Contingencies Legal Proceedings included in Part II Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data for more information In response to this risk we implemented standard operating procedures

and internal compliance reviews Also because we are the operator on site when compliance issue occurs

regardless of who is at fault our operators are trained to respond to both the operational situation and associated

communication efforts

Competition

Contract service operations are characterized by aggressive competition and market-driven growth and profit margins
Competition includes number of significantly larger companies that provide services on national and international
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basis such as Veolia Environmental Suez Environment Severn Trent CH2MHiII OMI and American Water Works
as well as regional and local competitors New contracts are awarded based on combination of customer

relationships service levels competitive pricing references and technical expertise

While cities themselves are not competitors we must overcome reluctance on the part of some city officials to

outsource their water and wastewater services However we are seeing increased interest as the growing regulatory

complexity and an aging and deteriorating municipal infrastructure are increasingly becoming challenge for cities

while raising large amounts of funds can be difficult In order to meet their capital spending challenges some

municipalities are examining partnerships with the private sector

Types of Contracts

Our contract operations are segmented by contract type into those that are project specific stand alone operationsOM Services and those that are small full service contracts operated by common team of personnel resulting in

model that apportions fractional amount of each cost center to each client Texas MUD Services

OM Services

OM Services contracts are agreements with cities public entities and private utility owners that provide specific

services such as facility operation and maintenance meter reading customer billing and collection upgrades and

improvements municipal public works services and/or management or management of entire water or wastewater

systems At December 31 2009 we had more than 225 OM contracts principally located in California Colorado

Alabama Mississippi and Georgia Under typical OM contract we charge fee that covers specified level of

services Services are typically provided evenly throughout the contract period utilizing dedicated personnel and are

billed on monthly basis Our OM contracts limit our liability in the .event of major system failure or catastrophic

event If we provide services beyond the scope of contract we bill for the additional services For example if

major system failure or catastrophic event occurred asthe result of flooding hurricanes earthquakes electrical

strikes or vandalism the facility owner usually asks us to provide additional services on time-and-materials basis

Most OM contracts provide for annual increases based upon inflation and we typically have the right to increase our

fixed operations fee if the system experiences customer connection growth beyond specified level We may pay

certain costs such as chemical or power expenses However the contracts usually provide for reimbursement of these

costs

In most cases OM contracts are cancelable by either party only upon the occurrence of specified events defined as

breach of.contract OM contracts can have terms ranging from month-to-month to up to 20 years with the typical

duration being two to three years We have strong focus on customer service and client satisfaction and our

experience has been that approximately 95% of our OM contracts are renewed upon expiration

Contractual Service BacklogRevenue included in backlog is generally realized over multi-year period OM
contracts typically have durations of two to three years and the uncompleted remaining portion of these contracts is

reflected in backlog At December 31 2009 our OM Services contractual base service fee backlog was $28.9 million

compared to $40.0 million at December 31 2008 The drop in backlog was primarily due to one less year of term

remaining on contracts included in backlog for both years and to lesser extent lost contracts Base service fee

backlog totaling approximately $12.7 million at December 31 2009 is expected to be earned during 2010

Texas MUD Services

MUD is created either administratively or legislatively to operate under the rules of the TCEQ to provide water

supply wastewater treatment and drainage services to areas where existing municipal services are not available At

December 31 2009 we had more than 320 contracts with more than 270 MUDs in the suburbs of Houston Austin

Dallas and El Paso Texas Under typical MUD contract we bill monthly base fee to the MUD to provide specified

level of services We typically provide water and/or wastewater facility operations and maintenance services

equipment maintenance meter reading billing and collection services and customer service functions We have

adopted fractional business model for our MUD clients We provide common team of operators customer service

and billing personnel allocating contracts proportional share of each cost center We usually bill for any additional

services provided beyond the basic contract on time-and-materials basis as such services are rendered Most

contracts provide for an increase in the monthly base fee as the number of customer connections increases and

generally include inflation adjustments Changes in prices are negotiated on contract-by-contract basis Generally

MUD contracts are cancelable with 30 to 60 days prior notice by either party Our experience indicates that with high

quality service and strong focus on client satisfaction MUD relationships canlast for many years For example many
of our MUD contracts have been in existence for over ten years
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Contractual Service BacklogRevenue included in backlog is generally realized over multi-year period MUD

contracts are generally cancelable with 30 to 60 days prior notice however if our contracts at December 31 2009

were to remain with us through December 31 2010 our Texas MUD Services contractual base service fee backlog

would be $19.3 million compared to $23.2 million at December 31 2008 Our base service fee represented only 29%

and 33% of revenue generated in 2009 and 2008 respectively In addition to base fees Texas MUD Services

generate additional revenue related to ancillary services such as repair and maintenance work and new housing

related taps and inspections

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

During the five years ended December 31 2009 and through the date of this report we have acquired the stock or

assets of several businesses that fit our long-term growth goals for our operating segments We have also disposed of

several businesses during the same time frame Those acquisitions and dispositions that are material to our financial

statements are summarized below During this five-year period we also made seven additional acquisitions with an

aggregate purchase price of $4.5 million

Acquisitions

Utilities Acquisitions

Shelby County Alabama Wastewater System In 2005 we acquired the assets of wastewater collection and

treatment system servicing approximately 4000 connections in Shelby County Alabama for $8.6 million in cash The

acquisition allowed us to expand our utility footprint into Alabama Novus Utilities the contract operations company in

Birmingham Alabama we acquired in March 2005 has operated this facility since 1992 and was instrumental in the

acquisition process This synergy creates operating efficiencies by sharing overhead costs and employee competency

in this region

Riverview Wastewater System In 2008 we purchased the assets of another wastewater collection and treatment

system servicing approximately 4000 residential and commercial connections in service area directly adjacent to

our existing Shelby County Alabama collection and treatment system The purchase price of $23.4 million includes

$22.5 million in cash at closing and $0.9 million of transaction costs

Texas Utilities Acquisitions

Diamond and Water Services Water Systems In 2007 we acquired all of the stock of two water utilities

comprised of 13 separate-systems serving an aggregate 2600 connections in high population growth area

northwest of San Antonio Texas The aggregate purchase price for these acquisitions was $5.8 million in cash and

$0.9 million of assumed liabilities

OM Services Acquisitions

Novus Utilities In 2005 we acquired the assets of Birmingham Alabama-based contract operations company
Novus Utilities Inc This acquisition increased our market presence in the southeastern United States and introduced

us to the Birmingham Alabama area We paid $2.7 million in cash and assumed $1.1 million of liabilities which

included $0.6 million of debt in connection with this acquisition

Dispositions

Master Tek In 2005 we sold Master Tek International mc our subsidiary that provided utility submetering and

billing and collection services to multi-family residential properties We elected to sell Master Tek because of changes

in the submetering market which would have required significant capital investments in future years We believe

growth opportunities involving our core competencies of operating and managing water and wastewater infrastructure

exceed those of the submetering business

We sold Master Tek for $12.2 million in cash We received $11.1 million in cash at closing and $1.1 million was placed

into an escrow account which was released upon final determination of customary representations and warranties We

used the proceeds from the sale to acquire the assets of wastewater collection and treatment system located in

Shelby County Alabama and to repay borrowings under our bank line of credit

Master Tek contributed $3.7 million during the first six months of 2005 prior to the sale As result of the sale Master

Tek is reflected as discontinued operation in the summary financial data in Item -Selected Financial Data The
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sale of this business which was part of our contract services business did not adversely affect the operations of our
remaining businesses

Texas Wholesale Water and Wastewater Operations During 2007 the Company committed to plan to sell its

wholesale water and wastewater operations in Texas In December 2008 the Company completed the sale of its

wholesale wastewater business for net cash proceeds of $2.2 million and note receivable of $0.6 million The
wastewater operating results have been included in discontinued operations for all periods presented In 2009 we
decided not to sell the wholesale water component of the business accordingly the business activity of the water

component has been included in consolidated continuing operations for all periods presented

South West Environmental Laboratories SWEL On March 31 2009 we entered into an agreement to sell the
assets of our SWEL subsidiary for $0.5 million in cash paid at close and up to an additional $0.75 million of

consideration consisting of 25% of the buyers quarterly aggregate invoice amounts subsequent to the sale The sale

closed on April 2009 however the business activity prior to the sale has been reflected in consolidated continuing
operations based on the ongoing business relationship with the buyer

New Mexico Utilities On January 19 2007 the Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Authority ABCWA and the

City of Rio Rancho New Mexico filed petition in New Mexico District Court seeking to acquire by condemnation our
New Mexico utility New Mexico Utilities Inc NMUI through the alleged power of eminent domain In January 2009
we reached settlement in these proceedings that resulted in the sale of NMUI in lieu of condemnation On May
2009 we received $53.9 million in cash at the closing of the sale $60.0 million settlement and $0.9 million escrow

release less $7.0 million paid to ABCWA in settlement of sewer treatment fees and recorded gain on sale of $26.2
million We used $12.3 million of the net proceeds to pay off NMUI bonds and related accrued interest and we used
the remaining cash proceeds of $41.6 million to pay any unassumed liabilities of NMUI and to pay down our revolving
credit facility As result of the sale NMUI is reflected as discontinued operation in this Form 10-K for all periods

presented See Note Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions included in Part II Item Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data for the summary of the historical results of discontinued operations

OTHER IN FORMATION

Credit Concentration

We have no individual customers who accounted for 10% or more of our consolidated revenue during each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2009 or whose loss would have material adverse effect on our
consolidated revenue

Intellectual Property

The primary focus of the water and wastewater management industry is customer service and the industry does not

rely heavily on technological or proprietary manufacturing processes We do not conduct significant research and

development activities Except for certain logos trademarks and artwork used in marketing we have no other

patents licenses or trademarks

Employees

At December 31 2009 we employed approximately 1224 people Approximately 450 people were employed in Texas

MUD Services 359 in OM Services 120 in Utilities 113 in Texas Utilities 23 in our corporate office and 159 in

central support groups None of our employees are represented under collective bargaining agreement We believe

relations with our employees are positive

COMPANY INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our internet website our press releases annual reports on Form 10-K
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as

reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC Our internet website also

contains our Code of Ethical Conduct for all employees and our Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers Our
address is SouthWest Water Company 624 South Grand Avenue Suite 2900 Los Angeles California 900 17-3782
Our telephone number is 213 929-1800 and our Internet website address is www.swwc.com

Information about our executive officers can be found in Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate
GovernanceExecutive Officers of the Registrant
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should consider each of the following factors as well as the other information in this Annual Report in evaluating

our business and our prospects The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones weface Additional

risks and uncertainties not presently known to us may also impair our business operations If any of the following

risks actually occur our business and financial results could be harmed In that case the trading price of our common

stock could decline You should also refer to the other information set forth in this Annual Report including our

financial statements and the related notes

Our operations are focused on our owned utilities and utilities we service under contract that are owned by cities

municipal utility districts and private companies There are separate risk factors associated with each

UTILITY BUSINESSES

Weather Conditions

Rainfall and weather conditions affect the financial results of our utility businesses

Most water use occurs during the second and third quarters of each year when weather tends to be hot and

dry Depending on the degree of heat and lack of rain our marginal costs of water may exceed our marginal

revenue as we use higher-cost purchased water to meet customer demand Therefore while our revenue may
increase in some cases we may experience lower profit margins during periods of peak demand

Drought or conversely unusually wet conditions may also adversely impact our revenue and profitability

During drought we may experience both lower revenue due to consumer conservation efforts and higher

water costs due to supply shortages Since relatively high percentage of our water is used for residential

landscape irrigation unusually wet conditions could result in decreased customer demand lower revenue and

lower profit Consequently the results of operations for one quarter should not be used to predict the results

of future quarters

Conservation Efforts

Customer conservation can result in lower volumes of water sold We are experiencing decline in per residential

customer water usage in California which we believe is due in part to conservation efforts

Our utilities businesses are heavily dependent upon revenue generated from rates charged to our residential

customers for the volume of water used The rates we charge for water are regulated by state regulatory

bodies and may not be unilaterally adjusted to reflect changes in demand Declining usage also negatively

impacts our long-term operating revenue if we are unable to secure rate increases or if growth in the

residential customer base does not occur to the extent necessary to offset the percustomer residential usage

decline In August 2008 we implemented Monterey-style water revenueadjustment mechanism at our

California utility see Item Business Monterey-style Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism for more

information which has the effect of reducing in part the adverse impacts of our customers conservation

efforts However increases to the WRAM have negative impact on our liquidity by deferring collection of

current period revenue or costs to future periods

Regulatory Environment

Changes in the regulatory environment including restrictions on the rates we are allowed to charge customers may

adversely affect our results of operations

Our utility subsidiaries are subject to regulation by governmental agencies which establish the rates that we

may charge our customers These rates are intended in concept to permit our utilities to recover operating

costs and earn reasonable rate of return Each state regulatory agency sets the rules and policies that allow

our utilities to file applications to increase rates as expenses or investment needs increase These rules and

policies may require that we estimate future expenses or may require that we incur specific expenses before

there can be change in rates As result our revenue and earnings may fluctuate depending on the

accuracy of our estimates timing of our investments or expenses or other factors If we were unable to

obtain rate increase that completely offsets the effect of higher costs we would realize decrease in our

profitability
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The regulatory agencies may change their rules and policies which may adversely impact our profitability In

some states regulators are elected by popular vote and the results of elections may change the rules and

policies of the agency For example in Alabama the State has enacted new regulations for the discharge of

treated wastewater effluent into the Cahaba River The new standards require us to invest in advanced

phosphate removal technology While we will request the recovery of the cost of these new systems in rate

increases we cannot assure that we will be able to economically meet regulatory compliance with future

regulations

Water Sources

We have no assured access to water

Each of our utilities obtains its water from various sources The preferred source is pumping water from

aquifers within our service areas In the event that our wells cannot meet the customer demand we purchase
water from surrounding municipalities agencies and other utilities However it usually costs us more to

purchase water than to produce it Furthermore these alternative sources may not always have an adequate
supply to sell us

To date we have been able to produce and purchase enough water to meet our current customer

requirements in California our largest revenue producing state However we cannot assure that we will be
able to produce or purchase enough water to fully satisfy future customer demand in our California service

area For example our California utility purchases some water from adjacent water purveyors who secure

water from the Metropolitan Water District MWD especially during times of peak consumption MWD
receives water from both the California aqueduct system and the Colorado River In 2007 the California

Department of Water Resources the operator of the California aqueduct system was issued court order to

reduce by one-third the amount of water it draws from the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta to protect

endangered fish Additionally the aqueduct levees have recently come under scrutiny and there is risk of

failure in the event of natural disaster These events and others have impacted .the amount of water that the

MWD can provide to its customers and the price of that water has increased and may continue to do so At our
California utility we have established water supply cost balancing accounts for expenses of purchased water
Under the water supply cost balancing account procedures changes in water supply costs such as those that

occurred due to changes in supply mix purchased water volume vs pumped water for instance compared to

the authorized amounts are recorded to this balance sheet account whch has the effect of reducing the
adverse impacts of water cost fuctuations over time However increases .to the supply cost balancing
accounts have negative impact on our liquidity by deferring collection of current period costs to future

periods

In Texas many of our small utility systems rely on groundwater supply sources Central Texas has been

experiencing severe drought since 2004 This drought has lowered ground water tables in nearby aquifers
which has resulted in lower yields from the supply wells This has caused us to limit supply to some customers

by restricting water use In some cases we have had to truck in water to fill operating storage tanks to

support depleted supply

We are currently examining various options to increase our available water supply in California and Texas
These options include drilling new wells adding connections to other water purveyors and constructing water

treatment facilities We cannot assure that the results of drilling the wells will be successful that we will be

able to obtain necessary permits to add new supply lines and connections or that we will be able to obtain

regulatory or legislative approval to operate new water treatment facilities

We can make no guarantee that we will always have access to an adequate supply of water that will meet all

quality standards or that the cost of our water will not adversely affect our operating results

Environmental and Water Quality Risks

We are subject to environmental risks and may not be able to provide an adequate supply of water to our customers

Improved detection technology increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and heightened consumer
awareness of water quality issues contribute to an environment-of increased focus on water quality We
cannot assure that we will be able in the-future to reduce contaminants in our wells to acceptable levels at

commercially reasonable cost or at all
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Standards that we must meet are constantly changing and becoming more stringent While we may request

rate increases to recover the cost of complying with standards that may be enacted in the future we cannot

assure that we will be successful in obtaining those rate increases

Contamination of our water sources by third parties may adversely affect our operations Our water sources

are susceptible to contamination We may not be able to recover costs incurred or revenue lost due to such

contamination Additionally contamination exposes us to environmental liabilities claims and litigation costs

Condemnation through Eminent Domain

The assets of our utilities businesses are subject to condemnation through eminent domain

Municipalities and other government subdivisions have historically been involved in the provision of water and

wastewater services in the United States and organized movements may arise from time to time in one or

more of the service areas in which our utilities businesses operate to convert our assets to public ownership

and operation through the governmental power of eminent domain Should municipality or other

government subdivision seek to acquire our assets through eminent domain we may resist the acquisition

Contesting an exercise of condemnation through eminent domain may result in costly legal proceedings and

may divert the attention of the management of the affected utilities from the operation of its business

SERVICE BUSINESSES

Contract Cancellations

Some of our operations and maintenance contracts may be canceled upon short notice reducing our revenue and

service backlog

Our service businesses revenue backlog consists of new and existing contracts We include new contracts in

the backlog when we have signed contract Revenue included in our backlog may be realized over multi-

year period The contracts signed by our service businesses typically have durations of two to three years and

some are cancelable with 30 to 60 days prior notice or sooner if breached The uncompleted portion of base

revenue for these existing contracts is reflected in the backlog Although our service businesses tend to

experience high renewal rates municipalities and cities periodically change operators or terminate outsourcing

at the end of contract The inability to renew existing contracts could have material adverse impact on our

service businesses In addition client could cancel long-term contract without notice This would result in

loss of revenue and operating profits and may result in litigation if breach of contract occurs Additionally

due to variety of reasons including but not limited to budgetary constraints lack of client processes or

improper contract administration modifications or extensions of our contracts could occur which would

directly affect revenue and profit Also our technical ability to properly perform contract requirements is

critical inasmuch as deficiencies in performance could impact payments under our contracts or cause us to be

susceptible to fines and penalties

Environmental and Water Quality Risks

Our service businesses are subject to environmental and water quality risks

We operate facilities on behalf of our clients under contract These facilities must be operated in accordance

with various federal and state water quality standards in addition to the terms of our contracts We also

handle certain hazardous materials at these facilities such as chlorine gas and hydrogen sulfide Any failures

.of our operation of the facilities including sewage spills noncompliance with water quality standards

hazardous material leaks and spills and similar events could expose us to environmental liabilities claims

and litigation costs We cannot assure that we will successfully manage these issues and failure to do so could

have material adverse effect on future results of operations

Competition

We operate in competitive market

Our service businesses compete with several larger companies whose size financial resources customer base

and technical expertise may restrict our ability to compete successfully for certain operations and maintenance

contracts
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Due to the nature of our contract operations business and the very competitive nature of the market we

must accurately estimate the cost and profitability of each project while at the same time maintaining prices

at level low enough to compete with other companies Our inability to achieve this balance could adversely

impact our results of operations

Revenue Growth

Our revenue growth depends upon our ability to obtain new operating contracts as well as to renew existing contracts

with cities municipal utility districts and other agencies or clients

Because we are mostly selling our services in political environment we are subject to changing trends and

municipal preferences In the United States municipalities own and municipal employees operate many water

and wastewater systems significant portion of our service businesses marketing and sales efforts is spent

demonstrating the benefits of.contract operations to elected officials and municipal authorities The existing

political environment means that decisions are based on many factors not just economic factors

Escalating Costs

Our operating costs construction costs and costs of providing services may rise faster than our revenue

Many of our contracts with municipalities include contractual price increases tied to national consumer price

indices However our costs are subject to market conditions and other factors which may increase at

significantly higher pace than generalized price index The largest component of our operating costs is made

up of salaries and wages These costs are affected by the local supply and demand for qualified labor Other

large components of our costs are general liability insurance workers compensation insurance employee
benefits and health insurance costs These costs may increase at rates higher than the applicable general

price index based on our actual claims incurred experience and other factors and therefore may result in

material adverse effect on our future results of operations

Weather Conditions

Events such as heavy rain hurricanes tornadoes and floods may affect our results of operations

Ourservice businesses contract operations can be impacted by inclement weather which may limit our ability

to perform certain billable work such as pipeline maintenance manhole rehabilitation and other outdoor

services

Severe weather conditions such as hurricanes tornadoes and floods may result in additional labor and

material costs that may not necessarily be recoverable under our firm fixed-price OM contracts.and

therefore may adversely impact our results of operations

Natural Disasters or Terrorist Activities

We operate assets for Others under contracts in areas that historically have experienced natural disasters or that may
be disrupted by terrorist activities

Some of our contracts are located in areas thathistorically have experienced earthquakes and hurricanes as

well as other natural disasters While we maintain insurance policiesto help reduce our financial exposure

significant event could adversely impact our ability to perform contract services resulting in contract

terminations or reduced scope of work

The assets covered by our contracts could be targeted by terrorists seeking to disrupt services to our

customers

OTHER RISK FACTORS

Definitive Merger Agreement

Consummation of the Merger is subject to the satisfaction of various closing conditions including among others

approval and adoption of the Merger Agreement by our stockholders the absence of certain legal impediments to

consummation of the Merger and the receipt of certain regulatory approvals As result we cannot guarantee that

the closing conditions will be satisfied or that the Merger will be successfully completed These conditions could have
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the effect of delaying consummation of the Merger or imposing additional costs Whether or not the Merger is

completed

managements attention from ongoing business concerns may be diverted

we may experience difficulties in employee retention or customer relationships

we will be required to pay costs fees and expenses related to the pending Merger and

our current plans and operational results may be disrupted and initiatives that ye would have undertaken in

the absence of the pending Merger may be delayed

If the Merger is not completed we may be required to pay termination fee equal to 3% of the aggregate Merger

Consideration or be responsible for reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement

Any such events could have malerial adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition and could

adversely affect our stock price In addition the current market price of our common stock may reflect market

assumption that the Merger will occur and failure to complete the Merger.could result in decline in the market price

of our common stock

The Merger Agreement contains customary restrictions on our operations prior to consummation of the Merger

including making capital expenditures incurring debt acquiring and disposing of assets entering into material

contracts and capital transactions These restrictions may prevent us from pursuing attractive business opportunities

that may arise priorto the completion of the Merger and may impede our growth and limit the development of our

business which could negatively impact our revenue earnings and cash flows

Internal Control Weaknesses

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting which could continue to impact

our ability to report our results of operations and financial condition accurately and in timely manner

As required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 we have conducted an assessment of our

internal control over financial reporting identified material weaknesses and concluded that our internal control

over financial reporting was not effective at December 31 2009 For detailed description of these material

weaknesses see Part II Item 9A Controls and Procedures Each of our material weaknesses result in the

likelihood that material misstatement in our financial statements will not be prevented or detected As

result we must perform additional work at additional expense to obtain reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of our financial statements Even with this additional work given the material weaknesses identified

we cannot assure that additional financial statement errors will be prevented or detected or that in the future

other material weaknesses may not be identified

We have not completely remediated the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting

We are in the process of developing and implementing remediation efforts for the identified material

weaknesses and this work will continue during fiscal year 2010 and after There can be no assurance as to

when the remediation plan will be fully developed when it will be implemented and the .aggregate cost of

implementation Until our remedial efforts are completed we will continue to devote significant time and

attention to these efforts If we do not complete our remediation in timely fashion or at all there will also

continue to be an increased risk that we will be unable to timely file future periodic reports with the SEC and

that our future financial statements could contain errors that will be undetected We will rely upon additional

interim control procedures prescribed by management including the use of manual mitigating control

procedures and the utilization of external technical advisors to fairly state our financial statements in all

material respects However we cannot assure that these interim controls will be sufficient to assure that all

errors will be detected

Debt Covenants

We are subject to debt covenants

We are obligated to comply with specified debt covenants under some of our loan and debt agreements
Failure to maintain compliance with these covenants could limit future borrowing and we could face penalties
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increased borrowing costs litigation the acceleration of maturity schedules and cross default issues Such
actions by our creditors could have material adverse effect on our results of operations or cash flows

Capital Resources

Our capital resources may restrict our ability to operate and expand our business

We may be unable to renew our credit facilities when they expire We may be unable to execute additional

financing alternatives at terms that we find acceptable If we are unable to renew our existing lines of credit

or if we are unable to execute additional financing alternatives our capital spending could be reduced delayed

or eliminated and any future acquisitions could also be delayed or eliminated which could negatively impact

our revenue revenue growth and profitability

We have capital planning process that evaluates our capital needs We believe the plan is adequate at this

time to fund our capital spending However we can not assure that conditions will not change that will make
this plan insufficient which could result in the need for our capital spending to be reduced which could

negatively impact our revenue revenue growth and profitability

See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsCertain
Contractual Commitments and Indemnities for additional information with respect to our credit facilities

Capital Market Transactions

We were unable to timely file our required SEC filings for the September 30 2008 March 31 2009 and June 30 2009

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K As result this has adversely affected

our eligibility to use Registration Statements on Form S-3 for registration of our securities with the SEC Use of

Form S-3 requires among other things that the issuer be current and timely in its reports under the Exchange Act for

at least the preceding twelve months Because of our inability to use Form S-3 we will have to meet more demanding
requirements to register securities which may make it more difficult for us to effect public offering transactions and

our range of available financing alternatives could also be narrowed We are required to continue to suspend our

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plans for one year from the time our re-audited and restated

financials were filed with the SEC and we became compliant with all timely filings

Because of our late filings NASDAQ issued Staff Deficiency Letters indicating our non-compliance with NASDAQ
Marketplace rules The Company explained the circumstances of the late filings and described our plan for regaining

compliance at hearing with NASDAQ On July 2009 the Company was notified that the NASDAQ had granted the

Companys request to extend the current filing compliance deadline to August 31 2009 The Company regained

compliance with NASDAQ listing requirements prior to August 31 2009 however if our shares are not listed on

NASDAQ stockholders will likely face decreased liquidity and it will be more difficult for us to raise capital

Stock Price Fluctuations

Our common stock which is traded on the NASDAQ has experienced and may continue to experience significant price

and volume flUctuations that could adversely affect the market price of our common stock without regard to our

operating performance In addition we believe that factors such as quarterly fluctuations in financial results earnings

below analysts estimates and financial performance and other activities of other publicly traded companies in our

industry could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially Following periods of volatility in the

market price of companys securities stockholders have often instituted class action securities litigation against

those cofripanies We can provide no assurance that our share price will remain stable going forward Additionally

extended stock price declines could have an impact on our goodwill impairment analysis

Information Technology

Our businesses are dependent on several complex business systems that must function reliably in order for us to

operate effectively Among other things system malfunctions could prevent us from operating or monitoring our

facilities billing accurately and timely analyzing financial results Our profitability and cash flow could be impacted

negatively in the event these systems do not operate effectively

Uninsured Risks

Risk Transfer
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We evaluate our risks and insurance coverage annually Our evaluation considers the identification of various risks

and the costs and benefits of either transferring or retaining such risks We consider the availability and costs of the

risks we choose to transfer Our insurance coverages for the risks we have chosen to transfer include insurance for

the health of our employees and insurance for our assets income and operations such as property business

interruption liability pollution directors and officers employment practices and fiduciary and crime We cannot

assure that the risks we choose to transfer are available and at reasonable cost Our inability to secure or renew

insurance coverage for risks we choose to transfer may adversely affect our financial condition liquidity and results of

operations

Risk Retention

We retain certain risks which we have chosen not to transfer through our insurance coverages Retained risks are

those risks associated with deductibles losses in excess of insurance coverage limits and losses associated with

unidentified risks We have retained risk associated with employee health insurance coverage as well as workers

compensation and auto liability insurance coverage

We cannot assure that uninsured losses pertaining to risks we have retained or not identified will not adversely affect

our financial condition liquidity or results of operations

Geographic Diversity

Our operations are subject to certain risks due to their location We own or operate water and wastewater facilities in

numerous locations in numerous states and consequently we are subject to widely differing weather political water

supply labor supply utility cost regulatory legal economic and other local risks in the areas we service We cannot

control these local risks

We have been named in litigation that may adversely affect our financial condition results of operations

and cash flows

We are named defendant in certain litigation These lawsuits are described in Part Item Legal Proceedings

Our attention may be diverted from our ordinary business operations by these lawsuits and we may incur significant

expenses associatedwith the defense of these lawsuits including substantial fees of lawyers and other professional

advisors and potential obligations to indemnify current and former officers who may be parties to such action

Depending on the outcome of these lawsuits we may be required to pay material damages and fines forced to

consent to injunctions on future conduct or suffer other penalties remedies or sanctions The ultimate resolution of

these matters could have material adverse effect on our results of operations financial condition liquidity our

ability to meet our debt obligations and consequently negatively impact the trading price of our common stock

General economic conditions may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

general economic downturn such as the one the U.S economy is currently experiencing may lead to number of

impacts on our business that may affect our financial condition and results of operations Such impacts may include

reduction in discretionary and recreational water use by our residential water customers particularly during the

summer months when such discretionary usage is normally at its highest decline in usage by industrial and

commercial customers as result of decreased business activity an increased incidence of customers inability to pay

or delays in paying their utility bills or an increase in customer bankruptcies which may lead to higher bad debt

expense and reduced cash flow lower natural customer growth rate due to decline in new housing starts and

decline in the number of active customers due to housing vacancies or abandonments

We depend significantly on the services of the members of our management team and the departure of

any of those persons could cause our operating results to suffer

Our success depends significantly on the continued individual and collective contributions of our management team

The loss of the services of key members of our management team or the inability to hire and retain experienced

management personnel could harm our operating results

Risks associated with potential acquisitions or investments may adversely affect us

We may continue to seek to acquire or invest in additional regulated water or wastewater systems including acquiring

systems in markets in the United States where we do not currently operate These possible transactions may result in

incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities
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failure to have or to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting

fluctuations in quarterly results

exposure to unknown risk and liabilities such as environmental liabilities and

other acquisition-related expenses

We may also experience difficulty in obtaining required regulatory approvals for acquisitions and any regulatory

approvals we obtain may require us to agree to costly and restrictive conditions imposed by regulators There may be
difficulties integrating new businesses including bringing newly acquired businesses up to the necessary level of

regulatory compliance retaining and integrating key personnel achieving strategic objectives and integrating

acquired assets and technological systems The demands of identifying and transitioning newly acquired businesses or

pursuing investment opportunities may also divert managements attention from other business concerns and

otherwise disrupt our business Any of these risks may adversely affect our financial condition results of operations
and cash flows

Delaware law contains anti-takeover provisions that could deter takeover attempts that could be
beneficial to our stockholders

Provisions of Delaware law could make it more difficult for third-party to acquire us even if doing so would be

beneficial to our stockholders Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may make the acquisition of the

Company and the removal of incumbent officers and directors more difficult by prohibiting stockholders holding l5%
or more of our outstanding voting stock from acquiring the Company without our board of directors consent for at

least three years from the date they first hold 15% or more of the voting stock

Dividends

Since 1960 our practice has been to pay common stock cash dividends quarterly The amount and timing of future

dividends depends on our growth results of operations profitability and financial condition as well as other factors

deemed relevant by our Board of Directors Many of the risk factors noted above could have an impact on our ability

to declare and pay future dividends

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

FACILITIES

Administrative Offices and Warehouse Space

We lease administrative office and warehouse space at 18 locations in Alabama California Colorado Georgia

Mississippi and Texas These office and warehouse facilities total approximately 217000 square feet In addition we
own administrative and warehouse space at two locations in Alabama and Texas The facilities we own total

approximately 23600 square feet of office space We believe that these facilities are adequate to meet the needs of

our existing operations and provide reasonable space for growth The majority of our operations do not require

uniquely specialized facilities and we believe that additional or alternative space is available if required at

reasonable prices We may relocate some of our facilities as leases terminate to improve the location or size of the

facility or to provide better coordination among our operating units

Property Plant and Equipment

Our utility segments utilize the majority of our property plant and equipment Property plant and equipment net of

accumulated depreciation at December 31 2009 was as follows
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Property Plant and Equipment Net December 31
2009

In thousands

Combined utilities segments
Texas 140377
California 121631
Alabama 39190
Mississippi 29

Oklahoma 391

Total utilities segments 301618
Service segments 6656

Corporate 5442
Total property plant and equipment net 313716

Water Production and Distribution Systems

Our utility subsidiaries own and operate water production and distribution systems including well pumping plants

booster pumping stations water treatment facilities reservoir storage facilities transmission and distribution mains

and service connections to individual customers Our utilities have rights-of-way and easements in their service areas

necessary to provide water services Water production and distribution facilities held by our utilities at December 31
2009 were as follows

Water Production Treatment and

Distribution Systems California Texas1 Mississippi

Water treatment plants

Transmission and distribution mains in miles 854 1048

Storage reservoirs 32 249

Storage reservoir capacity in millions of gallons 74 13

Active wells 19 208

Inactive wells 43

Approximate groundwater pumping capacity MGD2 59 27

Approximate surface water capacity MGD2
Includes the small

utility we own in Oklahoma which we operate as part of our Texas Utilities

Million gallons per day

Wastewater Facilities

We also own and operate wastewater collection and sewage treatment systems These utilities also have rights-of-way

and easements in their service areas necessary to provide their services Wastewater collection and sewage treatment

facilities held by our utilities at December 31 2009 were as follows

Wastewater Collection and

Sewage Treatment Systems Texas1 Alabama Mississippi

Wastewater treatment plants 16 14

Interceptor and collection lines in miles 196 289

Lift stations 44 250

Approximate wastewater treatment capacity MGD2

Consists of 16 separate collection and treatment systems including one in Oklahoma which we include as part of Texas

Utilities

Million gallons per day

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Capital investments in our water and wastewater utilities are an important and ongoing need of the Corripany The

capital investment is needed for several reasons to comply with regulations existing and new to remove and

replace aging infrastructure to create capacity for new growth to improve and enhance reliability and security

and to provide improved customer service and functionality Our capital program for the reported periods includes

investments in all of these categories The ongoing need for capital presents challenge with regards to timing and

total cost of projects We review and establish capital budget on an annual basis The plan is modified through the

year due to changes in circumstances We intend to continue our capital expenditure programs of constructing and
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replacing reservoirs wells and transmission and distribution lines in future years as needed and as approved by the

regulating authorities

Our employees perform normal maintenance and construction work while major construction projects are normally

performed by general contractors Ongoing repairs and maintenance expenses for our two utilities segments
expressed in dollars spent as well as the related percentage of our two utilities segments revenue as well as
consolidated capital expenditures for the three years ended December 31 2009 were as follows

Percent of

Segment
Amount Revenue

In thousands except percentage data

Repairs and maintenance expense Utilities Segments
2009 4004 4%
2008 3861 4%
2007 3675 4%

Capital expenditures Consolidated
2009 $16516
2008 $32135
2007 $29834

MORTGAGES AND LIENS

Virtually all of our California utilitys property is subject to the lien of an Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust
dated October 1986 as amended the California Indenture securing our California utilitys First Mortgage Bonds
The California Indenture contains certain restrictions common to such types of instruments regarding the disposition

of property and includes various covenants and restrictions including limitations on the amount of cash dividends that

our California utility may pay to its parent company SouthWest Water Our California utility pays regular quarterly

dividends to SouthWest Water At December 31 2009 our California utility was in compliance with the dividend

limitations mandated by the California Indenture

Substantially all of the assets of our Texas-based Monarch Utilities are pledged as security for its term loans In

addition wastewater treatment facility we own and operate is pledged as security for economic development
revenue bonds issued by the city of Keystone South Dakota to finance the construction of that facility

For additional information see our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to the financial

statements included in this report

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Items required under Item Legal Proceedings can be found in Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies included

in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM REMOVED AND RESERVED
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

The following table shows the range of market prices of SouthWest Waters common stock Our common stock is

traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC under the symbol SWWC There were 2935 stockholders of record at

February 28 2010

The prices shown reflect the high and low sales prices for our common stock

Stock Price

Range Cash

Dividends

High Low Declared

Year Ended December 31 2008
First Quarter $12.75 $10.52 $0.060

Second Quarter 11.62 9.87 0.060

Third Quarter 13.40 9.41 0.060

Fourth Quarter 12.56 2.67 0.025

Year Ended December 31 2009
First Quarter 5.74 3.07

Second Quarter 5.93 4.08 0.025

Third Quarter 5.76 4.32 0.025

Fourth Quarter 6.32 4.52 0.050

DIVIDEND POLICY

Since 1960 our practice has been to pay common stock cash dividends quarterly The amount and timing of future

dividends depends on our growth results of operations profitability and financial condition as well as other factors

deemed relevant by our B6ard of Directors Our current quarterly dividend rate is $0.05 per share of common stock

Under U.S federal income tax law dividends to holders of our common stock are taxable to the extent they are paid

out of current or accumulated earnings and profits Generally the amount of the dividend treated as return of

capital should reduce the tax basis to the holders of our common stock in such stock The dividend payments in 2009

represent return of capital as the Company is in negative accumulated earnings and profit position resulting from

fourth quarter operating losses incurred in 2008 and the tax-basis loss in 2009 see Note Stockholders Equity

included in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to holders of the Companys common stock during the five most

recent fiscal years versus the cumulative total return during the same period achieved by the 11 publicly held water

utilities Water Utility Index and that achieved by the Standard Poors 500 Stock Index on December 31st of each

year The comparison assumes an initial investment of $100 made on December 31 2004 in each of the Companys

common stock the Water Utility Index and the Standard Poors 500 Stock Index The cumulative total returns assume

the reinvestment of all dividends The historical stock performance reflected in the graph is not necessarily indicative of

future stock performance
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Includes the impact of stock splits and stock dividends

Water Utility Index includes ARTNA AWR AWK CTWS CWT MSEX PNNW SWWC 53W WTR and YORW weighted for

market capitalization

2005 2006 2007 2008

S\AC -SP 500 Composite .terUtiIth Index

Current Value of

December 31 2004 Investment

in

Water
SP 500 Utility Price of

SWWC Composite Index_ SWWC SP 500
December 31 2004 $100.00 $100.00 $100.00 $12.81 $1212
December 312005 113.50 103.00 134.54 14.31 1248
December 31 2006 110.89 117.03 137.09 13.76 1418
December 31 2007 102.72 121.16 130.68 12.52 1468
December 31 2008 26.85 74.53 119.30 3.22 903
December 31 2009 50.40 92.01 116.43 5.89 1115

Notes

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

Information relating to securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is set forth under the

caption Equity Compensation Plan Information in Item 12Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Stockholder Matters
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Per Common Share Data

Earnings loss per common share

Continuing operations

Basic

Diluted

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Basic

Diluted

Discontinued operations

Basic

Diluted

Applicable to common stockholders

Basic

Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

Reflects historical selected consolidated financial statement data derived from the audited consolidated financial statements

and related notes See Item BusinessSignificant Acquisitions and Dispositions for additional information

Amounts represent continuing operations for the periods presented

For the purposes of calculating the ratio of earnings to fixed charges earnings represent income or loss from continuing

operations before income taxes and fixed charges minus interest capitalized Fixed charges consist of

interest both expensed and capitalized

amortization of debt expense and discount or premium relating to any indebtedness and

one-third of rental expenses under operating leases which is considered to be reasonable approximation of the

interest portion of such expense

Total debt is defined as total borrowings under bank lines of credit and long-term debt including current maturities

The following tables include selected summary financial data for each of our last five fiscal years and should be read in

conjunction with Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and Part II Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MDA

Years Ended December 311
In thousands except ratio and per share data 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Summary of Income Statement Data

Operating revenue $211093 $210657 $204807 $202754 $184280

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets 8115 27103 4839 187 180

Operating income loss 11836 27130 7539 12169 8231

Income loss from continuing operations 14034 27595 1449 3426 703

Income loss from discontinued operations 18101 4322 3038 2547 1100
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle net of

tax 273

Net income loss 4067 31917 1589 6246 397
Net income loss applicable to common stockholders 4049 31941 1565 6222 421
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges23

Ratio 1.41x 1.03x

Deficiency 21602 35350 407

Years Ended December 311
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

$0.57 $1.13 .$0.06 $0.15 $0.03

0.57 1.13 0.06 0.15 0.03

0.01
0.01

0.74 0.18 0.13 0.11 0.05
0.74 0.18 0.13 0.11 0.05

0.17 131 0.07 0.27 0.02
0.17 1.31 0.07 0.27 0.02
0.10 0.20 0.23 0.21 0.20

In thousands

Balance Sheet and Other Data

Additions to property plant and equipment
Total assets

Total debt4

Years Ended December 311
2009 2008 2007 2006 _________

Stockholders equity 115914

16516

400095

154991

32
527207
192791

113800

29834
504124
147920

146754

30248
466616
130895
145595

2005

20695
427078
127600
127895
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations the MDA is intended to

help the reader understand the results of operations and financial càndition of SouthWest Water The MDA is

provided as supplement to and should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the

accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report The MDA also contains forward-

looking statements See Forward-Looking Statements on page of this report for additional information

OVERVIEW

SouthWest Waters principal business activity is to operate and maintain water and wastewater infrastructure

Through our operating subsidiaries we own 144 systems and operate hundreds more under contract to cities utility

districts and private companies SouthWest Water was incorporated in California in 1954 and reincorporated in

Delaware in 1988 We maintain our corporate offices in Los Angeles California

In the past ten years we have completed 19 acquisitions of both utility and contract service businesses These

businesses operated largely independent of each other resulting in complex business structure with varying

business practices Beginning in 2007 we implemented changes to better integrate the acquisitions and our various

business operations Our operations were divided into four major operating segments in 2008 to focus the distinct

strategies of each of our operating businesses Each operating segment is led by Managing Director and Financial

Director and has embedded in it the direct operating cost and infrastructure to deliver its plan Common support

functions such as environmental health and safety financial and accounting information technology and some of our

customer call centers are centralized these consolidated departments allocate their costs to each operating segment

As result of this reorganization we now have four reporting segments We separate our segments first by whether

we own the utility or we provide contract services to others Our owned water and wastewater utilities are referred to

as our Utilities operations Utilities In our financial statements we report our Texas Utilities operations Texas
Utilities as separate segment because of different economic characteristics This is principally because the Texas

Utilities predominantly under-recovered their current cost of service which includes reasonable return on equity We
have made large investments in these operations since acquisition which have not yet been recovered through the

rates we charge Our contract operations are generally segmented by contract type into those that are larger stand

alone operations OM Services and those that are small full service contracts operated by common team of

personnel resulting in model that proportions fractional cost to each client Texas MUD Services

Utilities consist of our owned water and wastewater utilities located in California Alabama Mississippi In previous

periods the utilities segment included the business activities of our New Mexico Utility NMUI that was sold on

May 2009 The NMUI activities are now included in discontinued operations for all periods presented See Note
Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions included in Part II Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data for the summary of the historical results of discontinued operations Residential customers make

up the largest component of our Utilities customer base with these customers representing approximately 94% of our

water and wastewater connections Substantially all of our Utilities customers are metered which allows us to measure
and bill for each customers water consumption Each of the operations in this segment has unique service territory

that is subject to state and federal regulations regarding standards of water quality safety environmental and other

matters The rates that we can charge for water and wastewater service include the opportunity to earn reasonable

rate of return on investments in these utilities as approved by state regulatory agencies except for some of our

Alabama wastewater rates which are governed by our service agreements Some of these governmental agencies

approve forward looking recovery of costs and some approve recovery of costs based on historical test year Our
Utilities operations require ongoing capital investments to maintain and enhance the reliability and quality of the

service we provide as well as the opportunity for revenue growth from rate increases and hew connections

Texas Utilities consists of 123 small mostly rural systems that are grouped into nine jurisdictional utilities across

Texas Residential customers make up the largest component of our Texas Utilities customer base with these

customers representing approximately 98% of our water and wastewater connections Substantially all of our Texas

Utilities customers are metered which allows us to measure and bill for our customers water consumption These

systems are broadly dispersed geographically The majority of the systems are organized as one utility with single

tariff known as Monarch Utilities The Monarch systems as well as two smaller systems acquired in 2007 were in

various stages of disrepair at the time of acquisition and we continue to spend significant amounts of capital to

maintain regulatory compliance and to improve the quality of service We are not yet recovering all of these costs in

our rates and as result the Texas Utilities have lower rate of return than typically expected from utility We
intend to actively pursue recovery of these costs in the rate setting process All other aspects of operations for these
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utilities are the same as our Utilities operations therefore as soon as we are recovering our costs including

reasonable rate of return on investment we expect to aggregate this segment with our Utilities segment

OM Services generally consists of operations that are project-specific contracts with cities public agencies and

private owners Most contracts are stand-alone operations staffed with project-specific personnel with an average

contract life of two to three years Under typical OM contract we charge fee that covers specified level of

service that includes facility operations and maintenance and may include other water or wastewater related services

Services are typically provided evenly throughout the contract period and are billed on monthly basis If we provide

services beyond the scope of contract we bill for the additional services on time-and-materials basis or negotiate

unique price These contracts are largely located in California Colorado Alabama Mississippi and Georgia We have

one contract that represents approximately 22% of the revenue of this segment which we are currently re

negotiating and one that represents approximately 14% which is due for renewal in November 2010 None of the

remaining contracts represent more than 7% of this segments revenue

Texas MUD Services is full service provider of utility services to large number of small utilities in Texas that are

mostly owned by municipal utility districts MUD MUD is created to provide water supply wastewater treatment

and drainage service to areas where municipal services are not available We service over 270 MUD clients with

common team of client managers operators customer service and billing personnel Therefore these contracts are

allocated proportional amount of each cost center creating business model that is significantly different from that

of OM Services Under typical MUD contract we bill monthly base fee to provide specified level of service

usually water and/or wastewater facility inspections routine operations equipment maintenance and utility customer

service including meter reading call center dispatch billing and collection services We bill for any additional services

provided beyond the basic contract on time-and-materials basis as such services are rendered Most contracts

provide for an increase in the monthly base fee as the number of customer connections increases and generally

include inflation adjustments The majority of our MUD contracts are cancelable with 30 to 60 day prior notice by

either party but tend to last for long periods due to the close working relationships between the operators and the

clients No one district represents more than 4% of the overall revenue of this segment and the majority represent

less than 1h of revenue

Impacts to Results of Operations 2007-2009

Utilities Texas Utilities Our utilities segments results of operations are generally influenced by variety of

factors that are similar between the two segments and the industry in general more complete understanding of

these factors can be gained by reviewing this section along with the Risk Factors section herein As we review and

discuss performance the general areas of impact we evaluate are as follows

Growth Related Growth in our utilities segments is generally characterized by the following drivers

growth in the number of connections served within existing utility certified service areas or acquisition of

new service areas In our Utilities segment our largest utility is our California utility which is substantially

built out system that does not generally see much change in connection count The majority of our other

utilities are in markets that experienced significant new home construction prior to 2007 ranging from 2% to

B% annual growth We have seen this significantly decline with growth averaging less than 1% across all

systems in 2008 and 2009 Growth through acquisitions was most significant in 2008 with the acquisition of

4000 connection wastewater utility system in Alabama in early 2008 as well as the full year impacts of some

smaller acquisitions made in Texas in 2007 We did not purchase any utility assets during 2009

Rate Related Each of our utilities will increase rates from time to time as allowed by the regulator or

governing contract to recover expenses and realize return on invested capital Rate cases can take months

or years to impact results due to the time needed to prepare present and ultimately receive approval from

the regulator In each of our utilities we have long-term rate strategy that matches our expectation for

growth regulatory change and demand Our California utility benefited from step rate increases in 2007 and

2008 and general rate increase implemented January 2009 Our Texas Utilities benefited from an interim

rate increase in late 2007 from our Monarch rate filing which was resolved through an all-party settlement in

December 2008 The settlement also required us to refund $0.5 million in 2009 with revenue reserve

impacting 2008 results We also reached all-party settlements in three smaller pending Texas rate cases

implemented in the latter half of 2008 and rate step-increase at one utility during 2009 In Alabama we

have contractual agreements with the local government over our Shelby County and Riverview wastewater

utilities that provide us with the ability to request rate increases annually pursuant to the terms of the

contracts Accordingly we requested and received increases in January of 2007 2008 and 2009 of 8% 8%
and 13.9% respectively at our Shelby County utility and 4.5% increase in January of 2009 at our Riverview

utility
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Demand Related The demand for our water is major driver of our operating results Our utility results are

largely dependent upon the sale and distribution of water the amount of which is dependent on seasonal

weather fluctuations particularly during the summer months when water demand will vary greatly with

rainfall and temperature levels Not only does rainfall vary from season to season but from year to year The
uniform rate design that regulators require for our utilities can result in unrecovered fixed costs and lower

earnings during periods of abnormally low water use This can occur during abnormal weather conditions such

as when summer temperatures are cooler than normal or during mandatory restrictions on water use because

of drought Also demand related changes can occur as result of conservation and socio-economic impacts
Demand related changes often impact both the revenue of the utility and the cost of production In 2008 and

2009 we saw increased demand and demand-related costs in.Texas due to drought conditions We saw lower

demand at our California utility in both 2008 and 2009 largely due to conservation and socio-economic

conditions associated with the decline in general economic conditions

Supply Related The cost of water and related commodities is major driver of our results Utilities that

purchase water are subject to changes in operations due to the amount and cost of that water Purchased

water supply changes are typically driven by longer term climate issues such as extended drought but can

also be driven by short-term maintenance needs In 2008 and 2009 we saw increased cost of production in

Texas as we purchased more water than in previous years at .a higher cost per gallon due to the inability of

our owned sources of ground water to produce enough water to meet the heightened demand due to drought
conditions In California we saw the unit cost of water increase in 2009 This is related to increases iii the

price of Metropolitan Water District purchases and by the Main San Gabriel Watermaster action of lowering

the safe yield in the basin In addition the Watermaster raised the rate for replacement water for water

pumped in excess of water rights held This caused an additional increase in cost of purchased water sources

It should be noted that changes in cost from levels adopted in rate cases receive balancing account treatment

negating the cost increases on the income statement

Operation Maintenance Related OM Our operation and maintenance costs include fuel power labor

labor benefits facility costs and other ordinary costs of producing or treating water These costs are impacted

by compliance with environmental and health safety standards They are also typically subject to inflation

effects and while we can file for recovery after inflation effects are incurred in backward looking rate making

jurisdictions we often experience lag between the time we incur these costs and when we receive the rate

increase to cover these costs In California which is forward looking rate making environment we estimate

the impacts of inflation in our rate filings and must absorb any costs that are different than our estimates

General Administrative Related GA Our general and administrative costs include expenses directly

incurred by the segment such as management expense as well as costs for services performed by centralized

support functions that are then allocated to each segment These support costs include IT shared financial

services customer service center and environmental health and safety In 2007 and 2008 we made large

investments in our consolidated support functions that have driven costs higher as we build foundation upon
which to drive sustainable continuous improvement into the organization As the efficiencies of these

investments take hold we have targeted objectives to reduce the fixed costs of supporting our operations

However we anticipate that in the near term we will continue to experience higher costs due to these

consolidation efforts as well as the remediation of our material internal control weaknesses see Item 9A
Controls and Procedures for detailed discussion of our material internal control weaknesses

Other Other is reserved for unusual items that may impact results from time to time Most significantly in

2008 our Texas Utilities impaired goodwill by $25.2 million

OM Services Segment Our OM Services segment results of operations are generally influenced by variety of

factors As we review and discuss performance the general areas of impact we evaluate are as follows

Contract Growth Growth is generally due to new contracts additional project work under existing contracts

and contract price increases Our primary driver of contract growth in 2008 and 2009 has been from increased

contract pricing and expanding the scope of work provided to existing customers

Lost Work Lost work is generally driven by lost contracts or reduction in project work for existing

contracts We lost number of contracts in 2007 and 2008 due to increased competition in our service

territories specifically in the southeast We also cancelled two of our contracts in California in 2008 due in

part to the financial under-performance of the contracts In 2009 our portfolio stabilized but we continued to

see fluctuations in the amount of project work we do for our clients
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General Administrative Related GA Our general and administrative costs include expenses directly

incurred by the segment such as management expense as well as costs for services performed by centralized

support functions that are then allocated to each segment These support costs include IT shared financial

services customer service center and environmental health and safety In 2007 and 2008 we made large

investments in our consolidated support functions that have driven costs higher as we build foundation upon

which to drive sustainable continuous improvement into the organization As the efficiencies of these

investments take hold we have targeted objectives to reduce the fixed costs of supporting our operations

However we anticipate that in the near term we will continue to experience higher costs due to these

consolidation efforts as well as the remediation of our material internal control weaknesses see Item 9A

Controls and Procedures for detailed discussion of our material internal control weaknesses

Other Other is reserved for unusual items that may impact results from time to time such as legal fees

fines or the elimination of certain service offerings Most significantly in 2008 and 2009 we eliminated certain

non-core service offerings including electrical contracting and construction management and incurred legal

fees including reserves for potential compliance related fines some of which were favorably settled in 2008

Texas MUD Services Segment Our Texas MUD Services segments results of operations are generally influenced

by variety of factors As we review and discuss performance the general areas of impact we evaluate are as follows

Contract Growth New contracts additional project work and contract price increases are offset by lost

contracts reductions in project work or reduction in other ancillary services such as new taps and

inspection services for new home construction In 2008 and 2009 we lost number of contracts due to

increased competition in our service territories and our ancillary service work was significantly impacted due

to reduced taps and inspection services associated with the slowdown in new home construction However we

focused operations in 2009 on service and repair work and therefore experienced increased revenue from

these activities

General Administrative Related GA Our general and administrative costs include expenses directly

incurred by the segment such as management expense as well as costs for services performed by centralized

support functions that are then allocated to each segment These support costs include IT shared financial

services customer service center and environmental health and safety

Other Other is reserved for unusual items that may impact results from time to time Most significantly in

2007 and 2008 we discontinued offering non-core service offerings including specialty pipe rehabilitation work

and bookkeeping services

Corporate Segment Our corporate segment represents costs related to executive management investor relations

human resources general legal and insurance certain IT functions that support all operations and public company

needs audit costs and other expenses generally related to the parent organization Most of the costs are general and

administrative in nature and not subject to much variation however on occasion we do have other costs that flow

through the segment In 2009 we also incurred $12.6 million of costs related to the restatement of our prior period

financial statements In 2007 and 2008 the expenses associated with our Cornerstone project were largely supported

by the corporate segment This project upgraded our core IT infrastructure such as phones servers and

communications links and implemented single company-wide financial ledger system In the fourth quarter of 2008

the remaining portions of the project were put on hold and certain portions of the project were eliminated resulting in

an impairment of the capital investment of $1.3 million Total project expenses were $1.9 million in 2007 and

$5.4 million in 2008 which includes the costs to suspend the project The total capital investment in 2007 and 2008

was $10.0 million and $8.4 million respectively of which $9.4 million has been placed into service In May 2009 the

Company determined that it was not probable that the implementation of the remaining uncompleted software

modules would be completed as result we recorded an impairment charge of $8.0 million

Acquisitions

Our financial position results of operations and cash flows have been affected by our history of acquisitions Our most

recent significant acquisitions which affect the comparability of the historical financial condition and results of

operations described in the MDA are

Utilities

Birmingham Alabama-based wastewater collection and treatment system that serves approximately 4000

residential and commercial connections in service area directly adjacent to our existing Shelby County

collection and treatment system acquired in January 2008
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Madison County Alabama-based wastewater collection and treatment system servicing approximately 120
connections acquired in November 2007 and

northern Mississippi-based water and wastewater utility serving approximately 275 water connections and

servicing approximately 355 wastewater connections through four collection systems acquired in

February 2007

Texas Utilities

two San Antonio Texas-based water utilities serving approximately 2600 connections acquired in May 2007

Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions

In December 2008 we completed the sale of our wholesale wastewater business in Texas for net cash proceeds of

$2.2 million and receivable of $0.6 million We decided not to sell the wholesale water component of the business

accordingly the business activity of the water component has been reflected in consolidated continuing operations for

all periods presented

We entered into an agreement to sell the assets of our Southwest Environmental Laboratories Inc subsidiary in 2009
for cash consideration of $0.5 million paid at close and up to an additional $0.8 million of consideration consisting of

25% of the buyers quarterly aggregate invoice amounts subsequent to the sale The sale closed on April 2009
howeverthe business activity prior to the sale has been reflected in consolidated continuing operations based on the

ongoing business relationship with the buyer

In January 2009 we reached settlement in proceedings against NMUI whereby we agreed to sell the NMUI business

in settlement of threat of condemnation On May 2009 we received $53.9 million in cash at closing $60.0million
settlement and $0.9 million escrow release less $7.0 million paid to the condemning entity in settlement of sewer
treatment fees and recorded gain of $26.2 million net of $0.1 million of transaction costs We used $12.3 million of

the net proceeds to pay down NMUI bonds and related accrued interest and the remaining cash proceeds of

$41.6 million was used to pay any unassumed liabilities of NMUI and to .pay down our revolving credit facility The sale

reflects $107.2 million reduction in assets offset by reduction in liabilities of $79.5 million which includes $69.0
million reduction in contributions in aid of construction The NMUI operations have been reflected in earnings loss
from discontinued operations for all periods presented.

For income tax purposes this transaction is considered an involuntary conversion under Section 1033 of the Internal

Revenue Code which allows for tax deferral on the gain if we acquire qualified replacement property by
December 31 2011 We currently intend to acquire qualified replacement property however there can be no

assurance that we will successfully complete such an acquisition

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2009 Compared to 2008

Consolidated operating revenue increased $0.4 million or 0.2% to $211.1 million for the year ended December 31
2009 from $210.7 million for the prior year Consolidated operating expenses decreased $14.9 million or6.2% to

$222.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from $237.8 million for 2008 Resulting operating loss

decreased $15.3 million to loss of $11.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from operating loss of

$27.1 million for the prior year The 2009 operating loss includes the impacts of $12.6 million of restatement related

costs and $8.1 million of impairments of goodwill and other long-lived assets The 2008 loss includes $27.1 million

impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets The operations of our New Mexico utility and our wholesale

wastewater operations in Texas are not reflected in the results below as they were sold in May 2009 and

December 2008 respectively and are therefore part of discontinued operations for all periods shown In 2009 we
decided not to sell our wholesale water operations in Texas which had previously been reported as part of

discontinued operations accordingly these operations are now included as continuing operations as part of our Texas

Utilities segment discussed below
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Year Ended

December 31 Percent of Revenue

Increase

In thousands except percentages 2009 2008 Decrease 2009 2008

Utilities

Operating Revenue 65168 60927 4241 100.0%

Operating Expenses 45880 41202 4678 70.4% ________

Operating Income 19288 19725 437 29.6%
________

Texas Utilities

Operating Revenue 36525 34784 1741

Operating Expenses 29068 53821 24753 _________ ________

Operating Income Loss 7457 $19037 26494 ________ _______

OM Services

Operating Revenue 36976

Operating Expenses 36677

Operating Income Loss 299

40493 3517
43374 6697
2881 3180

100.0% 100.0%

99.2% 107.1%

0.8% 7.1%

Texas MUD Services

Operating Revenue 72424

Operating Expenses 73845

Operating Income Loss 1421

Operating

In thousands Revenue

Year ended December 31 2008 60927

Growth related 490

Rate related 4916

Demand related 2606
Balancing account 1234

Supply related

OM related

GA related

Other 207

Year ended December 31 2009 65168

Operating Operating

Expense Income

41202 19725
278

1234
142

71

2916
321 _________

45880 19288

The principal operating trends driving this segments results in 2009 were rate increases and increased costs of

purchased water In California we have seen reduced consumption due to customer conservation efforts however

we have seen increased unit costs of delivered water driven by lower allowed pumping amounts from our owned wells

and higher costs of purchased water We believe these trends are likely to continue in 2010 Further details on 2009

results as compared to 2008 are discussed below

Operating revenue increased $4.2 million or 7.0% to $65.2 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$60.9 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $0.5 million increase primarily due to the acquisition of the Riverview wastewater

treatment planf in Alabama at the end of January 2008

100 0%
67 6%
32 4%

100.0%
154.7%

54.7%

100.0

79.6%

20.4%

Corporate

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses 37459

Operating Income Loss $37459

2029 100.0/d

3723 102.0%

1694 2.0%

74453
77568

31-15

21822

1822

100.0

104.2

4.2

Total

Operating Revenue 211093 210657

Operating Expenses 222929 237787

Operating Income Loss $11836 .$27130

Utilities

15637
$15637

436

14858
15294

100.0% 100.0%

105.6% 112.9%

5.6% 12.9%
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Rate Related $4.9 million increase due to rate increases in California and Alabama of which $4.2 million is

due to our California utility implementing water general rate increase on January 2009 and water rate

step increase on July 2008

Demand Related $2.6 million decrease primarily due to reduced consumption at our California utility related

to customers conservation efforts

Balancing Account $1.2 million increase related to balancing account surcharges approved by the CPUC and
collected in California to recover certain deferred water supply costs which are further described in the

Regulated Utility Accounting section in Note Business Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies within Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Other $0.2 million increase related to conservation rate adjustment on revenue

Operating expenses increased $4.7 million or 11.4% to $45.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from
$41.2 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $0.3 million increase due to acquisition of the Riverview wastewater treatment plant in

Alabama at the end of January 2008

Balancing Account $1.2 million increase in costs recognized related to the balancing account surcharges
which are further described in the Regulated Utility Accounting section in Note Business Basis of

Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies within Part II Item Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data

Supply Related $0.1 million decrease primarily due to less purchased water in California driven by lower
demand offset by increased unit cost of purchased water in California

OM Related $0.1 million increase primarily due to.increased depreciation expense of $0.6 million offset by
various cost savings primarily decrease in bonus compensation

GA Related $2.9 million increase due to $1.0 million of allocations of operational management and
overhead costs to our Southeast utilities as well as increased costs associated with the upgrade of

information technology and financial systems lower overhead recovery due to fewer capital projects than in

the comparable period and insurance related expenses

Other $0.3 million increase primarily due to an increase in legal expenses offset by impairment of goodwill

of $0.4 million at our Alabama utilities in the comparable period of 2008

As result of the above events operating income decreased $0.4 million or 2.2% to $19.3 million for the year
ended December 31 2009 from $19.7 million for the prior year

Texas Utilities

Operating

Operating Operating Income
In thousands Revenue Expense Loss
Year ended December 31 2008 34784 53821 $19037

Growth related 32
Rate related 625
Demand related 394
Supply related 412
OM related 152
GA related 296
Other 754 25021

Year ended December 31 2009 36525 29068

The principal operating trends driving this segments results in 2009 were rate increases and multi-year drought
that has increased consumption and reduced aquifer levels With heavy rains in late 2009 we are seeing aquifers

replenish however we cannot provide assurance that they will replenish sufficiently to reduce the need to supplement
our owned water sources Further details on 2009 results as compared to 2008 are discussed below
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Operating revenue increased $1.7 million or 5.0% to $36.5 million for year ended December 31 2009 from

$34.8 million for the prior year The increase was primarily due to the following events

Rate Related $0.6 million increase due to $1.5 million of rate increases at two utilities implemented in the

latter half of 2008 and arate step-increase at one utility during the first quarter of 2009 These increases

were offset by decrease of $1.0 million due to settlement rates implemented at our Monarch utility during

the first quarter of 2009 which were below the rates charged in 2008

Demand Related $0.4 million increase due to increased consumption as result of weather patterns that

were hot and dry compared to 2008 weather

Other $0.8 million increase due to reserves taken in late 2008 for potential customer refunds in rate

settlements

Operating expenses decreased $24.8 million or 46.0% to $29.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$53.8 million for the prior year The net decrease was primarily due to the following events

Supply Related $0.4 million increase due to increased purchased water costs as result of the inability of

our owned sources of ground water to produce enough water reflecting ongoing drought conditions and well

repairs requiring temporary alternate source of supply

OM Related $0.2 million increase primarily due to lower auto labor and supply costs offset by increased

depreciation and asset retirements

GA Related $0.3 million decrease primarily due to lower professional fees related to the preparation of

rate cases

Other $25.0 million decrease primarily due to $25.2 million impairment of goodwill and other long-lived

assets in 2008

As result of the above events operating income increased $26.5 million to $7.5 million for the year ended
December 31 2009 from an operating loss of $19.0 million in the prior year

OM Services

Operating Operating Operating
In thousands Revenue Expense Income
Year ended December 31 2008 40493 43374 2881

Contract growth 2985 1107
Lost work 6225 6540
GA related 336
Other 277 928 ___________

Year ended December 31 2009 36976 36677 299

The principal operating trends driving this segments results in 2009 were terminated contracts and increased

operating efficiencies We believe that our portfolio of contracts have stabilized and anticipate that going forward we
will return to an approximate 95% renewal rate on our contracts We are also actively pursuing and winning new
contracts In contrast project work is more difficult to project as it fluctuates from year to year depending on our

clients capital improvement needs and budgetary constraints We believe our direct cost cutting measures are largely

complete and therefore do not anticipate continued improvements of this magnitude in 2010

Operating revenue decreased $3.5 million or 87% to $37.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$40.5 million for the prior year The net decrease in revenue was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $3.0 million increase primarily due to increased project work and scope increases with

continuing clients

Lost Work $6.2 million decrease due to $4.0 million from lost contracts including $2.1 million related to

two underperforming contracts that were terminated by management in late 2008 as well as $2.2 million

from reduced project work with continuing clients
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Other $0.3 million decrease primarily due to the elimination of certain non-core service offerings in

Colorado

Operating expenses decreased $6.7 million or 15.4% to $36.7 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$43.4 million for the prior year The net decrease was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $1.1 million increase primarily due to project work with continuing clients and expanded
scope on contracts with continuing clients

Lost Work $6.5 million decrease due to lost contracts and reduced project work

GA Related $0.3 million decrease primarily due to various savings and efficiency gains in general and
administrative costs

Other $0.9 million decrease primarily due to favorable settlements of certain fines that had been reserved
in 2008

As result of the above events operating income was $0.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared
to an operating loss of $2.9 million in the prior year

Texas MUD Services

Operating Operating Operating
In thousands Revenue Expense Income
Year ended December 31 2008 74453 77568 3115

Contract Growth 2029 2614
GA related 1216
Other 107 __________

Year ended December 31 2009 72424 73845 1421

The principal operating trends driving this segments results in 2009 were terminated contracts increased service

order work and increased efficiencies We have experienced aggressive competition in our markets and although we
believe the situation is stabilizing we may experience some continued contract loss Service order work was focus of

operations in 2009 and due to the amount completed we do not anticipate we will sustain this level of work in 2010
We believe our direct cost cutting measures are largely complete and therefore do not anticipate continued

improvements of this magnitude in 2010 Further details on 2009 results as compared to 2008 are discussed below

Operating revenue decreased $2.0 million or 2.7% to $72.4 million for year ended December 31 2009 from

$74.5 million for the prior year The net decrease was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $2.0 million decrease in revenue due to $5.0 million decrease from lost contracts $2.4
million decrease related to the sale of our environmental testing laboratory on April 2009 $2.0 million

decrease in housing related services as result of the slowdown in the new housing market offset by $7.4
million increase primarily due to increases in service order work

Operating expenses decreased $3.7 million or 4.8% to $73.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$77.6 million for the prior year The net decrease was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $2.6 million decrease due to $5.3 million from lost contracts and $2.3 million due to the

sale of our environmental testing laboratory and $0.3 million from reduced housing related services offset by

$5.3 million increase primarily related to increases in service order work

GA Related $1.2 million decrease primarily due to various savings and efficiency gains in general and

administrative costs

Other $0.1 million increase related to the settlement of legal issue offset by impairment of long-lived

assets in the comparable period of 2008

As result of the above events operating loss decreased $1.7 million to loss of $1.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 compared to loss of $3.1 million for the prior year
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Corporate

Operating expenses increased $15.6 million or 71.7% to $37.5 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$21.8 million for the prior year

The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Project Costs $3.4 million decrease as result of costs incurred in 2008 related to our Cornerstone

internal-use software development project In October 2008 we announced the suspension of the project due

to the uncertain financial markets that led to the decision to minimize all cash expenditures

Other $18.7 million increase primarily driven by $12.6 million of financial restatement related costs

including audit fees and accounting resource expenses to support the restatement of historical financial

results and $8.0 million related to write-off of Cornerstone assets net of recoveries from vendors offset by

reduced expenses related to the write-off of $1.3 million of Cornerstone assets in December 2008 reduced

expenses related to incurred bank amendment fees in the fourth quarter of 2008 as well as reduced costs

associated with consulting expenses incurred in 2008

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense was $14.9 million in 2009 and $14.3 million in 2008 The increase was

principally result of additions to property plant and equipment during the year by $16.5 million

Other Income Expense

Aggregate other expenses increased $1.8 million or 22.6% to $9.7 million for the year ended December 31 2009
compared to $7.9 million for the prior year as follows

In thousands 2009 2008 Change
Interest expense 9856 8402 1454
Interest income 190 520 330
Other net

Total 9666 7882 1784

Interest Expense Interest expense increased by $1.5 millionor 17.3% to $9.9 million for the year.ended

December 31 2009 from $8.4 million for the same period during the prior year

The change in total interest incurred is primarily due to an increase in amortization of debt financing cost on our

revolving line of credit In addition the weighted average annual interest rate on total borrowings increased to

approximately 5.B% for the year ended December 31 2009 from 4.0% for the same period in the prior year

Interest Income Interest income decreased $0.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 principally as

result of decline in interest rate in our various interest bearing operating accounts

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective consolidated income tax rate on continuing operations was benefit of 34.7% for the year ended

December 31 2009 compared to 21.2% for 2008 The fluctuation in rates primarily relates to the non-deductible

goodwill impairments in 2008

Income loss from Discontinued Operations

Income net of tax from discontinued operations which pertains primarily to NMUI which was sold in May 2009 was
$18.1 million for the year ended December 31 2009

2008 Compared to 2007

Consolidated operating revenue increased $5.9 million or 2.9% to $210.7 million for the year ended December 31
2008 from $204.8 million for the prior year Consolidated operating expenses increased $40.5 million or 20.5% to

$237.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from $197.3 million for 2007 Resulting operating income

decreased $34.7 million to loss of $27.1 million for the year.ended December 31 2008 from operating income of

$7.5 million for the prior year The 2008 operating loss includes the impacts of $27.1 million of impairments of
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goodwill and other long-lived assets as well as other costs described below The operations of our New Mexico utility

and our wholesale wastewater operations in Texas are not reflected in the results below as they were sold in

May 2009 and December 2008 respectively and are therefore part of discontinued operations for the periods prior to

sale Our wholesale water operations in Texas are included in Texas Utilities below as we decided not to sell these

operations in 2009 and therefore have included them as continuing operations as part of our Texas Utilities segment

discussed below

In thousands ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________
Utilities

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Operating Income

Texas Utilities

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Operating Income Loss

OM Services

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Operating Income Loss

Texas MUD Services

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Operating Income Loss

Corporate

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses ___________ ___________ ___________

Operating Income Loss

Total

Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Operating Income Loss
__________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Utilities

Operating Operating

_________ Expense Income

_________ 33998 22655

4648
277

89

1598
318

_________
452 _________

_________
41202 19725

Operating revenue increased $4.3 million or 7.5% to $60.9 million for year ended December 31 2008 from

$56.7 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $5.4 million increase primarily due to the acquisition of the Riverview wastewater

treatment plant in Alabama at the end of January 2008

Rate Related $2.2 million increase due to rate increases in California and Alabama The majority of the

increase is due to our California utility implementing 3.0% water rate step increase on July 2008 and

1.6% water rate step increase on July 2007 representing increased revenue of $2.0 million

Year Ended
December 31 Percent of Revenue

Increase

2008 2007 Decrease 2008 2007

60927 56653 4274 100.0% 100.0%

41202 33998 7204 67.6% 60.0%

19725 22655 2930 32.4% 40.0%

34784 27911 6873 100.0% 100.0%

53821 29141 24680 154.7% 104.4%

19037 1230 17807 54.7% 4.4%

40493 40922 429 100.0% 100.0%

43374 42291 1083 107.1% 103.3%

2881 1369 1512 7.1% 3.3%

74453 79321 4868 100.0% 100.0%

77568 76480 1088 104.2% 96.4%

3115 2841 5956 4.2% 3.6%

21822 15358 6464

21822 15358 6464

210657 204807 5850 100.0% 100.0%

237787 197268 40519 112.9% g6.3%

27130 7539 34669 12.9% 3.7%

In thousands

Year ended December 31 2007

Growth related

Rate related

Demand related

Supply related

OM related

GA related

Other

Year ended December 31 2008

Operating
Revenue

56653

5382
2233

3341

60927
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Demand Related $3.3 million decrease primarily due to reduced consumption at our California utility related

to customers conservation efforts as well as weather patterns that were cooler with more precipitation in

spring of 2008 compared to spring of 2007

Operating expenses increased $7.2 million or 21.2% to $41.2 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$34.0 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $4.6 million increase due to acquisitions primarily the Riverview wastewater treatment

plant in Alabama at the end of January 2008

Rate Related $0.3 million increase due to rate case expenses

Demand Related $0.1 million decrease due to $1.5 million decrease in production costs primarily as result

of reduced consumption in California offset by higher average unit costs of delivered water

OM Related $1.6 million increase for operations and maintenance costs primarily related to $1.1 million

in staffing additions and salary increases and $0.4 million in increased depreciation expenses at our California

utility

GA Related $0.3 million increase due to increased costs associated with the implementation of our

strategy to consolidate support functions

Other $0.5 million increase due to goodwill impairment at our Alabama utilities

As result of the above events operating income decreased $2.9 million or 12.9% to $19.7 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 from $22.7 million for the prior year The 2008 operating income includes the impacts of

the $0.5 million of Other costs described above

Texas Utilities

Operating

Operating Operating Income

In thousands Revenue Expense Loss
Year ended December 31 2007 27911 29141 1230

Growth related 756 254

Rate related 4869 107

Demand related 1248 820

Supply related 616

OM related 589

GA related 1053
Other 21241 _________

Year ended December 31 2008 34784 53821 19037

Operating revenue increased $6.9 million or 24.6% to $34.8 million for year ended December 31 2008 from

$27.9 million for the prior year The increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $0.8 million increase due to acquisitions and growth in connections served primarily due to

full year of operations from two San Antonio-based utilities acquired in May 2007

Rate Related $4.9 million increase due to rate increases with $3.6 million due to the implementation of our

Monarch filed rates in October 2007 which included refund of $0.6 million and the remainder due to the

implementation of new rates at four smaller utilities

Demand Related $1.2 million increase due to increased consumption as result of weather patterns that

were hot and dry compared to 2007 weather patterns

Operating expenses increased $24.7 million or 84.7% to $53.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$29.1 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Growth Related $0.3 million increase due to full year of operations from two San Antonio-based utilities

acquired in May 2007
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Rate Related $0.1 million increase due to rate case expenses

Demand Related $0.8 million increase in costs associated with increased consumption as result of

weather patterns that were hot and dry compared to 2007 weather patterns

Supply Related $0.6 million increase due to increased purchased water as result of the inability of our
owned sources of ground water to produce enough water to meet the heightened demand due to drought
conditions

OM Related $0.6 million increase for operations and maintenance costs primarily related to retirements of
assets of $0.3 million and increased repair and maintenance and labor expense of $0.5 million offset by lower

general operating expenses

GA Related $1.1 million increase due to general and administrative costs primarily due to increased costs

associated with our strategy to consolidate support functions bad debt and professional fees

Other $21.2 million increase primarily related to impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets of

$25.2 million in 2008 as compared to $4.2 million in 2007 During annual impairment testing at October 31
2008 global market events including the credit market crisis resulted in declines in valuation multiples of

comparable water utilities and decline in our stock price These combined factors led to lower estimated
fair value for all of our reporting units Discounted cash flow models were updated based upon the current

expectations of future period performance and consideration for past performance The discount rate was
adjusted for Texas Utilities from 10% in 2007 to 11% in 2008 The increase in discount rates reflects the
factors that are commonly considered in determining premiums including risks related to financial

projections access to capital markets litigation/regulatory risk among others In addition the discount rates

were higher related to the general cost of capital increase associated with both debt and equity markets

As result of the above events operating loss increased $17.8 million to loss of $19.0 million for the year ended
December 31 2008 from loss of $1.2 million for the prior year The 2008 operating loss includes the impacts of

$21.2 million of Other costs described above

OM Services

Operating Operating Operating
In thousands Revenue Expense Income
Year ended December 31 2007 40922 42291 1369

Contract growth 3634 3340
Lost work 1324 1143
GA related 711
Other 2739 1825

_________
Year ended December 31 2008 40493 43374 2881

Operating revenue decreased $0.4 million or 1.0% to $40.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$40.9 million for the prior year The decrease in revenue was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $3.6 million increase primarily due to $2.6 million of increased project work and price

increases in California in 2008 and $1.0 million in the southeast

Lost Work $1.3 million decrease due to lost contracts and reduced project work primarily driven by

$1.2 million of lost contracts the majority of which were in our Southeast division

Other $2.7 million decrease as we stopped pursuing electrical contract projects in Colorado

Operating expenses increased $1.1 million or 2.6% to $43.4 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$42.3 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $3.3 million increase due to new and expanded scope on contracts identified above

Lost Work $1.1 million decrease due to lost contracts and reduced project work
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GA RelatedA $0.7 million increase due to general and administrative costs related to our strategy to

consolidate support functions

Other $1.8 million decrease primarily as result of $2.5 million in lower costs as we stopped pursuing

electrical contracts and decrease of $0.6 million related to impairments in 2007 partially offset by

$1.3 million of increased legal costs incurred including reserves for potential compliance-related fines related

to alleged violations in prior years

As result of the above events operating loss increased $1.5 million to $2.9 million for the year ended December 31
2008 from $1.4 million for the prior year

Texas MUD Services

Operating Operating Operating

In thousands Revenue Expense Income
Year ended December 31 2007 79321 76480 2841

Contract Growth 2895 59

GA related 1441
Other 1973 412 ________

Year ended December 31 2008 74453 77568 3115

Operating revenue decreased $4.9 million or 6.1% to $74.5 million for year ended December 31 2008 from

$79.3 million for the prior year The decrease was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $2.9 million decrease in revenue from contracts The decrease was primarily driven by lost

contracts and from lower taps and inspection fees for new housing starts partially offset by contract pricing

increases and increases in service order work generally related to improvements in plant and facilities of our

clients

Other $2.0 million decrease primarily due to the elimination of non-core operations including specialty pipe

rehabilitation work in the Houston area and bookkeeping services

Operating expenses increased $1.1 million or l.4% to $77.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$76.5 million for the prior year The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Contract Growth $0.1 million increase in general operating costs related to the lost work discussed above

and the change in mix of work performed from new housing starts to service and maintenance work orders to

which our overhead structure was still being adjusted

GA Related $1.4 million increase in general and administrative costs primarily due to increased costs

associated with the implementation of our strategy to consolidate support functions

Other $0.4 million decrease primarily due to $0.7 million in savings from the elimination of specialty pipe

rehabilitation work partially offset by $0.2 million increase to close down bookkeeping service

As result of the above events operating income decreased $6.0 million to loss of $3.1 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to income of $2.8 million for the prior year

Corporate

Operating expenses increased $6.5 million or 42.l% to $21.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 from

$15.4 million for the prior year

The net increase was primarily due to the following events

Project Costs $3.4 million increase as result of costs incurred related to our Cornerstone project which

commenced in the second quarter of 2007 In 2008 we expensed $5.4 million in costs compared to

$1.9 million of costs in 2007 In October of 2008 we announced the suspension of the project due to the

uncertain financial markets that led to the decision to minimize all cash expenditures The 2008 costs include

costs to suspend the project including $1.3 million of impairment charges
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GA Related $1.3 million increase as result of $2.0 million increase associated with the implementation
of our strategy to consolidate support functions which includes $1.3 million of depreciation related to the
Cornerstone project This increase is offset by $0.7 million decrease related to savings in various general
corporate costs

Other $1.7 million increase related to $0.7 million in costs for the evaluation of strategic business

opportunity $0.4 million write down of an asset $0.4 million expense for the write-off of unamortized debt
issuance costs and $0.3 million increase related to collection of fully reserved receivable in 2007

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense was $14.3 million in 2008 and $11.2 million in 2007 The increase was
principally result of increases in property plant and equipment from our acquisitions of new utility systems namely
the Riverview acquisition capital expenditures made to expand and improve our existing utility facilities and
Cornerstone depreciation

Other Income Expense

Aggregate other expenses increased $0.7 million or 10.2% to $7.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008
compared to $7.2 million for the prior year as follows

In thousands 2008 2007 Change
Interest expense 8402 7717 685
Interest income 520 629 109
Other net 64 64

Total 7882 7152 730

Interest Expense Interest expense increased by $0.7 million or 8.9% to $8.4 million for the year ended
December 31 2008 from $7.7 million for the same period during the prior year

The change in total interest incurred is primarily due to an increase in borrowing levels on our revolving line of credit

The average balance of interest bearing debt outstanding increased to $170.0 million during the year ended
December 31 2008 compared to $138.7 million for the prior year

The additional borrowings were used to fund capital expenditures and acquisitions as well as to fund the Cornerstone

project The weighted average annual interest rate on total borrowings was approximately 4.0% for the year ended
December 31 2008 and 6.2% for the same period in the prior year

Interest Income Interest income decreased $0.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 principally as

result of receiving $0.2 million of interest with the final contract retainage payment on completed construction

project in 2007

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective consolidated income tax rate on continuing operations was benefit of 21.2% for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to an expense of 34% for 2007 The changes from the combined statutory rates in

2008 and 2007 were primarily related to pre-tax losses adjusted for goodwill write-offs that are not deductible for tax

purposes

Loss from Discontinued Operations

Loss from discontinued operations which pertains to wastewater business which we held for sale was $4.3 million

for the year ended December 31 2008

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our overall objectives with respect to liquidity and capital resources are to

generate sufficient operating cash flows to service our debt and tax obligations fund capital improvements
and organic growth and pay dividends to our stockholders

utilize our credit facility for major capital improvements and to manage seasonal cash needs
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obtain external financing for major acquisitions and

maintain approximately equal levels of debt and equity consistent with the investor-owned water utility

industry

Our statements of cash flows are summarized as follows

Years Ended
December 31

In thousands 2009 2008 Change
Net cash provided by used in

Continuing operations

Operating activities 14617 6457 8160
Investing activities 38492 53313 91805
Financing activities 41340 43599 84939

Total continuing operations 11769 3257 15026
Discontinued operations

Operating activities 9610 .330 12912
Investing activities 291 1517 1226
Financing activities 106 366 260

Total Discontinued operations 10007 1419 11426
Increase decrease in cash arid cash equivalehts 1762 1838 3600

Cash Flows from Operating Activities Net cash provided by continuing operating activities increased by

$8.1 million from $6.5 million in 2008 to $14.6 million in 2009 This is primaril.y due to an increasein the deferred

tax expense related to the involuntary condemnation of our New Mexico utility and our election to defer the gain for

tax purposes

Of the total increase balance sheet management in 2009 provided $2.8 million of cash reflecting $0.8 million

improvement over 2008 Improvements were made in most areas with the exception of other long-term assets
which used $3.8 million in cash The primary driver of this increase was purchased water cost which was capitalized

as regulatory asset reflecting the rapid increase in purchased water trend which is expected to continue

Cash Flows from Investing Activities Cash provided by investing activitiestotaled $38.5 million in 2009 compared
to cash used in investing activities of $53.3 million during 2008 The $91.8 million fluctuation related to $54.8 million

received from the sales of businesses in 2009 $23.4 million of cash paid for the acquisition of business in 2008as
well as $15.6 million of lower additions to property plant and equipment in 2009 as compared to 2008 reflecting

reduced investment in new plant and plant extensions as new housing developments primary driver of the

Companys organic growth slowed

Cash Flows from Financing Activities During 2009 we repaid net $37.8 million of our revolving credit line and

other long-term debt from cash received from the sale of businesses effectively utilizing the net cash provided by

investing activities We also paid $3.1 million of cash dividends which represented return of capital to our common
and preferred stockholders due to negative accumulated earnings In 2008 we had net borrowings on our credit line

and other long-term debt of $44.7 million which funded our business purchases and capital expenditures

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations During 2009 cash used in discontinued operations was $10.0 million

This was primarily due to decrease in deferred tax expense related to the involuntary condemnation of our New
Mexico utility and our election to defer the gain for tax.purposes

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our known contractual obligations at December 31 2009 to make future cash

payments as well as an estimate of the periods during which these payments are expected to be made
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Years Ended December 311
2011 2013 2015
and and and

In thousands Total 2010 2012 2014 Beyond

Long-term debt

Principal payment obligation 154396 2171 3913 76460 71852
Interest payment on fixed rate debt 74129 5199 10039 9668 49223
Interest payments on bank line of credit 10010 3203 6406 401

Repayment of advances for construction 9220 436 1140 597 7047
Water purchase commitment 116563 1136 7718 9448 98261

Operating lease obligations 21515 4759 6904 3123 6729
Total obligations as of December 31 2009 385833 16904 36120 99697 233112

Excludes interest payments which are described in the following notes The terms of the long-term debt are more fully

described in the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report see Note to the consolidated

financial statements Long-term Debt included in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Reflects scheduled interest payments on all fixed rate debt obligations

As of December 31 2009 there was $74.5 million of borrowings outstanding under our $110.0 million bank line of credit

which is scheduled for repayment in 2013 The line of credit bears interest at variable rates and the principal amount

outstanding will vary from time to time in future periods As result the amount of future interest payments is uncertain

Borrowings bear interest at our option based on margin over the UBOR rate or over the prime rate The margins

also vary based on our consolidated debt to capitalization ratio The interest obligations reflected in the table were

computed based on $74.5 million of borrowings outstanding at the 4.30% weighted average interest rate in effect on our

bank line of credit borrowings as of December 31 2009
Advances for construction are non-interest bearing Our repayment assumptions on certain obligations are based upon

forecasted connection growth If forecasted connections do not materialize the related payments are not due and

corresponding amounts become contributed property

Reflects the minimum annual contractual commitments in the Texas Utility segment to purchase water through 2037 The

amount is subject to increases in future periods for production costs increases and may also increase but not decrease if

average actual usage exceeds specified amount
As of December 31 2009 leased office commitment is $17.0 million of which $2.8 million is payable during 2010 The

vehicles and machinery lease commitment at December 31 2009 is $4.5 million of which $2.0 million is payable during

2010
Excludes preferred stock dividend obligations Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive annual dividends of $2.625 per

share and there are 9156 shares of preferred stock outstanding at December 31 2009 The preferred stock is redeemable

by the Company at any time for $52.00 per share and from time to time we have elected to repurchase shares offered to

us by preferred stockholders at prices less than $52.00 per share

FINANCIAL CONDITION

We believe our existing sources of liquidity are adequate to meet our anticipated needs in the coming year Our

business is capital intensive requiring significant resources to fund operating expenses construction expenditures

and interest and dividend payments During 2010 and in subsequent years we may from time to time satisfy these

requirements with combination of cash generated by operations borrowings under our revolving credit facility or

funds from the capital markets as conditions allow We expect that borrowing capacity under our revolving credit

facility will continue to be available to manage working capital during those periods

As of December 31 2009 we had working capital of $5.2 million compared to working capital of $11.0 million at

December 31 2008 The decrease was primarily due to the working capital sold in the NMUI disposition

We have access to $110.0 million in financing under our credit facility that expires February 15 2013 total of nine

banks participate in the facility As of December 31 2009 we had $31.8 million of borrowing capacity available under

our credit facility The impact of the prior period restatement on our retained earnings combined with the additional

borrowings on the facility during 2008 and the lack of timeliness of SEC financial filings created number of defaults

under our credit facility agreement at the year ended December 31 2008 and quarter ended March 31 2009 The

defaults were cured with several amendments to the credit facility agreement dated from November 28 2008 through

July 31 2009 Under the amendments our credit facility was reduced from $150.0 million to its current availability of

$110.0 million The facility was also secured with certain assets of the Company and our borrowing margins were

significantly increased If our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 60% or lower the applicable margins are 4.00% over the

LIBOR rate and 3.00% over the prime rate As of December 31 2009 our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 58%
therefore the applicable margins are 4.00% over the LIBOR rate and 3.00% over the prime rate Fees and expenses

charged by the Bank Group for all the amendments were $3.3 million of which $2.8 million were charged during the

year ended December 31 2009 These fees were capitalized and are being amortized as interest expense over the

remaining life of the facility which extends through February 2013
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Our ability to comply with financial covenants pay principal or interest and refinance our debt obligations will depend
on our future operating performance as well as other factors that may be beyond our control The continued

opportunity for operating improvements enhanced cash management and suspension of elective capital expenditures

should improve our ability to comply with the revised covenants in the revolving credit facility

As part of the amended credit agreement for our credit facility we have agreed to utilize only $12.5 million under our

capital lease facility Our California mortgage bond indentures permit the issuance of an additional $40.8 million of

first mortgage bonds as of December 31 2009 However the terms of our revolving credit facility do not permit
additional first mortgage bond indebtedness without prior consent from the credit facility lenders The mortgage bond
indentures also limit the amount of cash and property dividends our California utility company pays to the parent

Company Dividends have averaged $5.0 million to $5.6 million per year and are less than the aggregate cumulative

dividend restriction threshold by $23.4 million as of December 31 2009 We were in compliance with or had obtained

waivers for all loan agreement covenants during the year ended December 31 2009

In connection with the execution of the.Merger Agreementwe also executed binding letter of intent the Binding
Letter with Parent hF and WAM collectively the Investor under which the Investor is to purchase 2.7 million

shares of our common stock at purchase price of $6.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $162 million

the PIPE Investment The board of directors-approved the terms of the agreement for-the PIPE Investment on

March 12 2010 The PIPE Investment is subject to the final execution of mutually acceptable definitive agreements on

terms consistent with those set forth in the Binding Letter The Investor will be entitled to certain rights in connection

with the PIPE Investment including the appointment of designee to serve on our board of directors

We have previously filed shelf registration statement with the SEC for the-issuance of up to -$50.0 million aggregate

principal amount of common stock debt securities and warrants We issued approximately $43.6 million of common
stock under the shelf registration As we were unable to timely file our required SEC filings for the September 30
2Q08 March -31 2009 and June 30 2009 Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K
we cannot use Form S-3 Registration Statements for our securities with the SEC at this time Use of Form S-3 --

requires among other things that the issuer be current and timely in its reports under the Exchange Act for at least

twelve months Accordingly we will have to meet more demanding requirements-to register additional-securities until

the use of Form S-3 is again available which may make it more difficult for us to effect public offering transactions

and our range of available financing alternatives could be limited and more costly

CERTAIN CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS AND INDEMNITIES

At December 31 2009 we had irrevocable standby letters of credit in the amount of $3.7 million issued and

outstanding under our credit facility

During our normal course of business we have entered into agreements containing indemnities pursuant to which we

may be required to make payments in the future These indemnities are in connection with facility leases and liabilities

and operations and maintenance contracts entered into by our contract services businesses The duration of these

indemnities commitments and guarantees varies and in certain cases is indefinite Substantially all of these

indemnities provide no limitation on the maximum potential future payments we could be obligated to make and is not

quantifiable We have not recorded any liability for these indemnities

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Through the date of this report we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities orfinancial

partnerships such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities which would have

been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance-sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or

limited purposes In addition we do not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts We are

not materially exposed to any financing liquidity market or credit risk that could-arise if we had engaged in these

relationships We do not have relationships or transactions with persons or entities that derive benefits from their

non-independent relationship with us or our subsidiaries

We lease some of our equipment and office facilities under operating leases which are deemed to be off-balance sheet

arrangements Our future operating lease payment obligations are more fully described under the caption Contractual

Obligations above
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States GAAP These accounting principles require us to make estimates and judgments that affect the

reported amounts of assets liabilities revenue and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities We believe that the estimates and judgments are reasonable based upon information available to us at the

time that these estimates and judgments are made and they are evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis To the

extent our estimates and judgments are different than actual results our financial statements will be affected We
believe the following are the more critical accounting policies we use in preparing our financial statements and are

important to fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial position and results of operations

Regulated Utility Accounting

Our regulated utilities are subject to regulation by the public utility commissions or the local governments or both of

the jurisdiction in which they operate the Regulators In such cases rates are established or subject to approval

by an independent third-party regulator When the Regulators have allowed the future recovery of costs and credits

and it is probable that these costs and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in period different from

when the costs and credits were incurred we have recorded such costs and credits on the balance sheet as deferred

regulatory assets and liabilities These deferred amounts both assets and liabilities are then recognized in the income

statement in the same period that they are reflected in rates charged for water and wastewater service In the event

that our assessment as to the probability of the inclusion in the rate-making process changes the associated

regulatory asset or liability would be adjusted to reflect the change in assessment or change in regulatory approval

Two of our Alabama wastewater utilities in the Utilities segment and wholesale water business wholly owned by one

of the companies within the Texas Utilities segment have rates that are not established by or subject to approval by

an independent third-party regulator and thus do not meet the criteria to recognize regulatory assets and liabilities

Additionally three of our utilities in the Texas Utilities segment and Mississippi utility in the Utilities segment have

current rate structure which does not allow full recovery of cost of service As result the future recovery of costs

and credits of these assets are not recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities on the balance sheet Our remaining

utilities in both the Utilities and Texas Utilities segments do meet the criteria to allow for the future recovery of costs

and credits to be recognized as regulatory assets and liabilities

Revenue Recognition

Water utility revenue is recognized when water is delivered to customers including an estimate for revenue not yet

billed at period end caused by cycle billing during the month

At December 31 2009 and 2008 $4.8 million and $4.8 million respectively of estimated unbilled regulated

operations revenue was recorded representing customer water usage revenue since the previous billing cycles and

estimates of revenue earned on work completed but not yet billed

Revenue for contract operations are recognized and billed at the end of the month based on monthly fee for services

as outlined in each contract The Company generally bills for additional services provided beyond the basic scope of

the contract on time-and-materials basis as such services are rendered

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the $8.9 million and $8.5 million respectively of estimated unbilled non-regulated

operations revenue was recorded primarily representing contractual base fee revenue and estimates of time and

material revenue earned on work completed but not yet billed

Income Statement Impact of Applying Regulatory Accounting

If the Company had not applied regulatory accounting net income would have been $2.7 million $0.1 million and

$0.5 million less in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively as the company would have recognized higher purchased

water costs and regulatory expenses partially offset by revenue for low-income surcharges and houseline services

which had been deferred as regulatory assets and liabilities

Future Implications of Discontinuing Application of Regulatory Accounting

The Company regularly assesses whether it can continue to apply regulatory accounting to its operations If we had

stopped applying regulatory accounting to our regulated operations we would have written-off the remaining related

balances of our regulatory assets as an expense and would write-off our regulatory liabilities as income on our income

statement Based on the regulatory asset and liability balances if the Company had stopped applying regulatory

46



accounting to our regulated operations we would have recorded an extraordinary after-tax loss of $7.2 million at

December 31 2009 Discontinuing application of regulatory accounting would not affect the Companys cash flows

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the Companys goodwill totaled $16.4 million and $17.7 million respectively

We assess finite-lived intangible assets and other long-lived assets excluding goodwill for recoverability whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable through the estimated

undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the assets If it is determined that the carrying value of

intangible assets or other long-lived assets may not be recoverable the impairment is measured by using the

projected discounted cash-flow method

We test goodwill for impairment annually as of October 31 or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate

carrying values may not be recoverable We evaluate goodwill for impairment using discounted cash flow

methodologies transaction values for comparable companies and other valuation techniques for reporting units with

goodwill balances

We use two-step impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill

impairment loss to be recognized if any for each of the Companys reporting units The step calculation used to

identify potential impairment compares the estimated fair value for each of the Companys reporting units to their

respective net carrying values book values including goodwill on the measurement date If the fair value of any

reporting unit is less than its carrying value step of the impairment test is required to measure the amount of the

impairment loss if any

The step calculation of the impairment test compares the implied fair value of the goodwill to the carrying value of

goodwill for each reporting unit The implied fair value of goodwill represents the excess of the estimated fair value of

each reporting unit above the fair value of the reporting units identified assets and liabilities If the carrying value of

goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill for any reporting unit an impairment loss is recognized in an

amount equal to the excess not to exceed the carrying value of goodwill for that reporting unit

The determination of the fair value of each reporting unit and the fair value of each reporting units assets and

liabilities is performed as of the measurement date using observable market data before and after the measurement

date if that subsequent information is relevant to the fair value on the measurement date

The estimated fair value of the Companys utilities and service business units is based on combination of the

following valuation techniques

Valuation levels of comparable publicly-traded companies and

Discounted cash flow models developed from the Companys internal forecasts

The comparable publicly-traded companies technique applies average peer company revenue and EBITDA multiples to

the Companys utility and service business units historic and forecasted revenue and EBITDA The peer company

multiples are calculated using market prices of comparable equity securities of publicly-traded water utilities and

service companies

The second valuation technique forecasts each reporting units five-year cash flows using an estimated long-term

growth rate and discounts these cash flows at their respective estimated weighted average cost of capital

In conjunction with the step calculation we also reconcile the difference between the calculated market

capitalization and the aggregate carrying value of the reporting units to ensure that any excess is supportable by

relevant market information We make certain assumptions which we believe to be appropriate that support this

reconciliation We consider in addition to the listed trading price of the Companys shares the applicability of

control premium to the Companys shares and certain other factors we may deem appropriate As result we may
conclude that the Companys fair value exceeds what we might otherwise have concluded had we relied on market

price alone

Identifiable finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

ranging from three to thirty-four years
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During 2009 2008 and 2007 charges totaling $8.1 million $27.1 million and $4.8 million respectively were recorded

to reflect the impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets in continuing operations and $0.0 million $0.1

million and $0.7 million in discontinued operations in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

As of October 2009 we performed our annual assessment of goodwill and concluded that no adjustment for

impairment was warranted The analysis was consistent with the methodology used for prior years

In May 2009 we terminated our previously suspended software development project as result an impairment

charge of $8.0 million was recorded net of recoveries from vendors

During the annual goodwill impairment testing at October 31 2008 global market events including the credit market

crisis resulted in declines in valuation multiples of comparable water utilities and decline in our stock price These

combined factors led to lower estimated fair market value for all of our segments Discounted cash flows models

were updated based upon the current expectations of future period performance and consideration for past

performance The discount rate was adjusted for Texas Utilities from 10% in 2007 to ll% in 2008 The discount rate

was adjusted for Utilities from 8.5% in 2007 to 11% in 2008 The discount rate was adjusted for MUD Services from

12.5% in 2007 to l6% in 2008 The discount rate was adjusted from 11.5% in 2007 to 16% in 2008 for OM
Services The increase in all discount rates reflects the factors that are commonly considered in determining

premiums including risks related to financial projections access to capital markets litigation/regulatory risk among
others In addition the discount rates were higher related to the general cost of capital increase associated with both

debt and equity markets The higher discount rates in the service related business units as compared to the utilities

business units can generally be attributed to the less secure nature of our service revenue contracts as compared to

the nature of the more stable revenue from the utilities An increase of l% in the discount rates would not alter the

results of our testing

Based on updated projections .and the impacts of the market conditions we impaired the entire $25.0 million of

goodwill associated with our Texas Utilities and another $0.5 million of goodwill associated with our Alabama utilities

in 2008 leaving goodwill of $8.1 million $7.3 million and $2.3 million in the OM Services Texas MUD Services and

Utilities segments respectively

On December 31 2008 our stock price was trading at 52 week low point Due to the continued decline in our stock

price and the stock price of many of our peers we performed an impairment test as of this date but no additional

impairment was identified

During 2007 we impaired $0.7 million of goodwill in continuing operations Additionally we impaired $3.4 million of

plant and equipment related to our wholesale water operations in Texas and an abandoned well and $0.7 million of

intangibles related to certain trademarks

We may be required to recognize an impairment of goodwill in the future due to market conditions or other factors

related to our performance These market events could include additional declines over period of time of our stock

price decline over period of time in valuation multiples of comparable water utilities the lack of an increase in our

market price consistent with peer companies or decreases in control premiums and the overhang effect decline in

the forecasted results in our business plan such as changes in rate case results or capital investment budgets or

changes in our interest rates could also result in animpairment charge Recognition of impairments of a.significant

portion of goodwill would negatively affect our reported results of operations and total capitalization the effect of

which could be material and could make it more difficult to maintain our credit ratings secure financing on attractive

terms maintain compliance with debt covenants and meet expectations of our regulators

Share-Based Compensation

We use the Black-Scholes option valuation model to estimate the fair value of our stock options This option valuation

model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that do not havevesting restrictions and

that are fully transferable Option valuation models require subjective assumptions such as the expected future

volatility of the stock price Because the stock options we grant have characteristics that are significantly different

from those of traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the

calculated results in managements opinion the stock option valuation models including Black-Scholes may not

necessarily provide an exact measure of the fair value of employee stock options During the years ended
December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we recognized stock compensation expense of $0.9 million $1.2 million and

$1.0 million respectively using the Black-Scholes option valuation model
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Use of Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and

expenses during the reporting period The financial condition of the Company and results of operations may differ

from the estimates and assumptions made by management in preparation of the consolidated financial statements

accompanying this report

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in

order to recognize future tax effects attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases as well as the recognition of operating loss and tax credit

carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which the temporary differences are recovered or settled The effect of change in tax rates on

deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in the period that the enactment occurs We file consolidated U.S

federal income tax return which includes all of our subsidiaries

Liabilities are recorded for probable income tax assessments based on estimates of potential tax related exposures

Accounting for these assessments requires significant judgment as uncertainties often exist with respect to existing

tax laws new interpretations of existing laws and rulings by taxing authorities Differences between actual results and

assumptions or changes in assumptions in future periods are recorded in the period they become known

In 2009 we sold our NMUI operations resulting in gain on sale of approximately $26.2 million For income tax

purposes this transaction is considered an involuntary conversion under Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code
which allows for tax deferral on the gain if we acquire qualified replacement property by December 31 2011 We
currently intend to acquire qualified replacement property however there can be no assurance that we will

successfully complete such an acquisition

Our California regulated utilities recorded additional deferred income taxes as well as corresponding regulatory assets

and regulatory liabilities as permitted by the CPUC In addition unamortized investment tax credits have been

deferred and are amortized over the estimated productive lives of the related assets as allowed by the CPUC

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company did not have liabilities for uncertain tax positions that were material

The Companys policy is to classify interest and penalties related to liabilities for uncertain tax benefits in interest

expense and other expense respectively in the consolidated statements of operations There were no material

interest and penalties incurred during the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Refer to the Recent Accounting Pronouncements discussion in Note to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies included in Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

As of December 31 2009 we had $155.0 million of variable and fixed-rate debt We are exposed to market risk based

on changes in prevailing interest rates

Market risk related to our variable-rate debt is estimated as the potential decrease in pre-tax earnings resulting from

an increase in interest rates We have $74.5 million of long-term debt that bears interest at variable rates based on

either the prime rate or LIBOR rate Our variable-rate debt had weighted average annual interest rate of 4.30% at

December 31 2009 hypothetical one percent 100 basis points increase in the average annual interest rates

charged on our variable-rate debt would reduce our pre-tax earnings by approximately $0.8 million per year

Our fixed-rate debt which has carrying value of $80.5 million has fair value of $71.0 million at December 31
2009 Market risk related to our fixed-rate debt is deemed to be the potential increase in fair value resulting from

decrease in prevailing interest rates Our fixed-rate debt had weighted average annual interest rate of 6.5% at
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December 31 2009 hypothetical ten percent decrease in interest rates from 6.5% to 5.9% would increase the fair

value of our fixed-rate debt by approximately $4.7 million

We do not use derivative financial instruments to manage or reduce these risks although we may do so in the future

We do not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our consolidated financial statements supplementary financial data and financial statement schedules are included in

separate section at the end of this report The financial statements supplementary data and schedules are listed in

the index on page F-i of this report and are incorporated herein by reference

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

This report includes the certifications attached as Exhibits 3i.i and 31.2 of our CEO and CFO required by Rule i3a-i4

of the Exchange Act This Item 9A includes information concerning the controls and control evaluations referred to in

those certifications

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and i5d-i5e under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended Exchange Act are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be

disclosed in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within

the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is accumulated and

communicated to our management including the CEO and CFO as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding

required disclosures

Our management under the supervision and with the participation of our CEO and CFO evaluated the effectiveness of

the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2009 Based on our evaluation

and the identification of the material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting described below our CEO
and CFO concluded that as of December 31 2009 our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We do not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will

prevent or detect all errors control system no matter how well designed and operated can provide only

reasonable not absolute assurance that the control systems objectives will be met Further the design of control

system must acknowledge the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered

relative to their costs These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision making can be faulty

and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake Controls can also be circumvented by the

deliberate acts of one or more persons The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain

assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in

achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions Over time controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with associated policies or procedures Because of

the inherent limitations in cost-effective control system misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be

detected

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such

term is defined in Rules i3a-i5f and i5d-i5f under the Exchange Act Internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP
Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of

records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets

ii provide reasonable assurance that our transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
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statements in accordance with GAAP and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and our directors and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our CEO and CFO we conducted an

assessment of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 In making this assessment we
used the criteria set forth in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

material weakness is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting such

that there is reasonable possibility that material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will

not be prevented or detected on timely basis In connection with managements assessment of our internal control

over financial reporting described above management has identified control deficiencies that constituted material

weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 as described below

We did not maintain an effective control environment because of the following material weaknesses

We did not maintain an environment that consistently emphasized strict adherence to GAAP This control

deficiency in certain instances led to inappropriate accounting decisions and audit adjustments that have

been recorded in 2009 and 2008 This control deficiency was magnified in prior years by the decentralized

nature of the accounting function that existed at our various operating locations

In certain areas internal audit finance tax and accounting departments we did not maintain sufficient

complement ofresources with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge experience and training

commensurate with our structure and financial reporting requirements

We did not maintain complete and accurate business documentation to support certain transactions and

accounting records The controls in these areas with respect to the creation maintenance and retention of

complete and accurate business records were not effective

We did not maintain effective monitoring of controls in certain areas including period end financial reporting

process goodwill regulatory accounting stock-based compensation lease accounting property plant and

equipment estimates and accruals This deficiency resulted .in either not having adequate controls designed and in

place or not achieving the intended operating effectiveness of controls

We did not maintain effective controls over risk assessments Specifically we did not maintain processes to

evaluate certain business and fraud risks This deficiency resulted in either not having adequate controls designed and

in place or not achieving the intended operating effectiveness of controls

The material weaknesses in our control environment monitoring of controls and risk assessments described above
contributed to the material weaknesses set forth below

We did not maintain effective controls over accounting policies and application of GAAP Specifically we did not

maintain and communicate sufficient and consistent accounting policies which limited our ability to make accounting
decisions and to detect and correct accounting errors This deficiency contributed to other control deficiencies some
of which have resulted in material weaknesses as further described below

We did not maintain effective controls over the recording of journal entries both recurring and non-recurring

Specifically effective controls were not in place to ensure that journal entries were properly prepared with sufficient

supporting documentation or were reviewed and approved to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the journal
entries This deficiency contributed to other control deficienciessome of which have resulted in material weaknesses
as further described below

We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of key spreadsheets and system
generated reports Specifically effective controls were not designed and in place to ensure that key spreadsheets and
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system-generated reports were properlyreviewed for accuracy and completeness This deficiency contributed to

other control deficiencies some of which have resulted in material weaknesses as further described below

We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of our accounting for acquisitions

Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls with respect to the application of relevant GAAP and the

deficiency resulted in errors including audit adjustments in 2008 in the allocation of the purchase price to the

underlying assets acquired including goodwill and liabilitiesassumed This deficiency affected property plant and

equipment deferred income tax and liabilities goodwill and long-term liability accounts

We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of our accounting estimates related to

self-insurance Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls with respect to the maintenance and

reconciliation of claims and the review of actuarial valuations This deficiency affected accrued liabilities and expense

accounts in prior years This control deficiency resulted in adjustments identified through additional procedures

performed by management in 2009 and audit adjustments in 2008

We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of our accounting for the impairment of

goodwill Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls to ensure proper identification of reporting

units triggering events and fair value estimates This control deficiency resulted in audit adjustments in 2008

10 We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of our accounting for regulated

entities Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls with respect to the application of relevant GAAP

in the areas of regulatory assets and liabilities This control deficiency resulted in audit adjustments in 2009 and

2008

11 We did not maintain effective controls over the accuracy and valuation of stock-based compensation Specifically

we did not maintain effective controls over the assumptions used in the calculation of stock-based compensation This

control deficiency resulted in audit adjustments in 2008

12 We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of property plant and equipment and

related depreciation expense Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls to ensure that there was

timely transfer of property plant and equipment additions from construction work in progress that retirements were

properly recorded that depreciation expense was accurately recorded based on appropriate useful lives assigned to

the related property plant and equipment that assets are capitalized properly that contributions of cash were timely

transferred to CIAC for amortization and that impairment losses are timely identified and determined This control

deficiency resulted in adjustments identified through additional procedures performed by management in 2009 and

audit adjustments in 2008

13 We did not maintain effective controls over-.the completeness and accuracy of unbilled revenue Specifically we

did not maintain effective controls to standardize process and methodology of calculating and recording unbilled

revenue in the proper period This control deficiency resulted in audit adjustments in 2009 and 2008 and adjustments

identified through additional procedures performed by management in 2009

14 We did not maintain effective controls to ensure the completeness of the recording of accounts payable and

accrued liabilities on timely basis Specifically we did not review and approve invoices and their supporting

documentation on timely basis This control deficiency resulted in audit adjustments in 2008

15 We did not maintain effective controls to ensure the completeness accuracyand valuation of the revenue

recorded by our Southeast Utility operation Specifically we did not maintain appropriate controls over the design or

identify appropriate controls over the systems invoicing and other processes performed at the Southeast Utilities

This control deficiency could result in misstatement of accounts receivable and revenue that would result in

material misstatement in our annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or

detected in timely manner

16 We did not maintain effective controls over the completeness accuracy and valuation of our deferred tax assets

and liabilities Specifically we did not design and maintain effective controls with respect to accounting for the

difference between book and tax basis of the companys property plant and equipment and intangible assets This

control deficiency could result in misstatement of deferred tax assets and liabilities and the tax provision that would

result in material misstatement in our annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be

prevented or detected in timely manner

17 We did not maintain effective controls over the segregation of duties reJated to the initiation and approval of wire

transfers Specifically we did not maintain adequate segregation of duties allowing single individual exclusive right
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to execute wire transfers without independent confirmation or review This control deficiency could result in

unauthorized or inappropriate cash disbursements

The material weaknesses described above could result in misstatements of substantially all of the accounts and
disclosures related to it that would result in material misstatement in our annual or interim consolidated financial

statements that would not be prevented or detected in timely manner Although the deficiencies did not result in the

identification of material misstatement in 2009 management does not believe that the controls in place as of

December 31 2009 are sufficiently designed and effectively operating to prevent or detect such misstatement
Accordingly management has determined that each of thecontrol deficiencies aboveconstitutes material weakness
and concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over.financial reporting as of December 31 2009

Based on the performance of additional procedures by management designed to ensure the reliability of our financial

reporting we believethe consolidated financial statements included in.this report as of and for the periods ended
December 31 2009 are fairly stated in all material respects

The effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent registered publicaccounting firm as stated in their report which

appears herein ... ..

PLANS FOR REMEDIATION OF MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

We have engaged in and are continuing toengage in efforts toimprove our internal control over financial reporting
and our disclosure controls and procedures Specific initiatives to date have been focused on the following

communicating both internally and externatly our commitment to strong effective control environment
high ethical standards and financial reporting integrity

ii taking certain personnel actions including supplementing.exiting accounting staff with additional permanent
or contract employees

iiispecific training for Finance and Accounting Department personnel to reinforce the importance of our control

environment in addition to internal controls training to all Managers across the Company which reinforced the

importance of controls

iv the implementation of policies and procedures to ensure that we retain business and accounting records and
document the application of GAAP for business transactions and

the implementation of period end reporting processes including consolidated monthly close checklist journal

entry approval account reconciliations with supporting documentation documentation supporting accruals
and estimates additional processes for the valuation and recognition of utility unbilled revenue and additional

processes around manually prepared spreadsheets

vi Implementation of formal procedures over valuation of our accounting estimates related to our claims process
associated with medical automobile and workers compensation self-insurance

We have also implemented remediation plan the Plan to address the material weaknesses for each of the
affected areas presented above The Plan ensures that each area affected by material weakness is put through
comprehensive remediation process The remediation process entails thorough analysis which includes the following

phases

Define and assess the control deficiency ensure thorough understanding of the as is state process
owners and gaps in the control deficiency

Design and evaluate remediation action for each weakness for each affected area validate or improve the
related policy and procedures evaluate skills of the process owners with regards to the policy and adjust as
required

Implement specific remediation actions train process owners allow time for process adoption and adequate
transaction volume for next steps

Test and measure the design and effectiveness of the remediation plan and test and provide feedback on the
design and operating effectiveness of the updated controls
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Management review and acceptance of completion of the remediation effort

The Plan is administered by Controls Committee comprised of key leaders from cross functional portions of the

organization including the CFO The Committee reports quarterly or more frequently as needed to the Audit

Committee of our Board of Directors on progress

Although the efforts noted above were initiated during the second quarter of 2009 we spent substantial amount of

time and effort in the third quarter of 2009 completing our previously delinquent 1OQ quarterly financial statement

filings for the first and second quarter of 2009 As such the specific initiatives noted above occurred primarily during

the fourth quarter

We believe the steps taken to date have improved the effectiveness of manyof our internal controls over financial

reporting however we have not completed all of the corrective processes procedures and related evaluation or

remediation identified herein that we believe are necessary As we continue to monitor the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting in the areas affected by the material weaknesses described above we will

perform additional procedures prescribed by management including the use of manual mitigating control procedures

to ensure that our financial statements continue to be fairly stated in all material respects

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

As discussed above therehave been changes in our internal control over financial reporting thatoccurred during the

fiscal quarter ended December 31 2009 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to material affect our

internal control over financial reporting related to the implementation of formal procedures over the valuation of our

accounting estimates associated with medical automobile and workers compensation self-insurance

Although we have begun to take other specific actions to improve the overall effectiveness of our internal controls

over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31 2009 there were no other changes to our internal

controls over financial reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal

controls over filiancial reporting Furthermore the design or operating effectiveness of any changes in internal control

over financial reporting have not yet been evaluated through our remediation process

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The Companys Annual Meeting of Stockholders was held on October 23 2009 The total number of shares of the

Companyscommon and preferred stock issued outstanding and entitled to vote at the meeting was 24923809
shares of which 22 were present at the meeting either in person or by proxy The following proposals were

submitted to stockholders with the following results

Proposal To elect eight directors

Nominee Votes Votes Votes

For Against Abstain

01 Kimberly Alexy 20588344 913334 864337
02 Bruce Edwards 20697537 824068 844406
03 Donovan Huennekens 15410932 6867866 87213
04 Thomas 1mb 18716968 2798813 850229
05 William Jones 15438168 6071839 856004
06 Maureen Kindel 15264395 6252155 849461
07 Richard Newman 15343006 6934490 88515
08 Mark Swatek 18271204 4002628 92179

In addition to the directors elected above two directors term of office continued after the meeting until the next

annual meeting of stockholders

Frederick Christie

Linda Griego
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Proposal Ratification of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the Companys Independent Public Accountants

Votes

For 19873436

Against 1760533
Abstain 732626

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

On April 24 2009 the Company appointed David Stanton the Chief Operating Officer of the Company to the

additional position of interim Chief Financial Officer Cheryl Clary the Companys Chief Financial Officer until April 24

2009 was named Senior Vice President of Finance Ms Clary resigned the position on July 2009

On May 2009 the Company designated Ben Smith the Companys Vice President of Financial Services as the

Principal accounting officer of the Company

On January 25 2010 David Stantons employment with the Company was terminated

On January 26 2010 SouthWest Water Company appointed Ben Smith to the position of Chief Financial Officer on an

interim basis and designated him the Companys principal financial officer

On March 19 2010 Mark Minter resigned as the Companys Managing Director OM Services On March 22 2010
SouthWest Water Company appointed Chris Malinowski to the position of Managing Director OM Services

The following is list of the names and ages of our executive officers all positions and offices held by each person

and each persons principal occupations or employment during the past five years The officers were elected by the

Companys board of directors the Board and will hold office until the next annual election of officers and their

successors are elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal by the Board There are no family

relationships between any executive officers and directors

Name Age Position

Mark Swatek 57 President and Chief Executive Officer

Ben Smith 39 Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

William Dix 54 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Charles Profilet 51 Managing Director Texas Utilities

Michael Quinn 63 Managing Director West Utilities

Jim Brown 61 Managing Director Texas MUD Services

Chris Malinowski 45 Managing Director OM Services

Mark SwatekPresident and Chief Executive Officer

Mr Swatek joined SouthWest Water as chief executive officer in May 2006 at which time he was also appointed as

director and chairman of the board He served in both capacities until October 2009 when the roles of chairman and

chief executive officer were made separate and he was named president and chief executive officer Mr Swatek

brings executive management experience and expertise in the water and wastewater industry contract services asset

management and environmental regulation to the SouthWest Water board From 2005 until joining SouthWest Water
he was president of MWH Municipal and State Services the largest operating division of MWH Global From 2000 to

2005 he was president of MWH Constructors the design-build construction subsidiary of MWH Global Mr Swatek

also served as member of the board of directors of MWH Global from 2003 to 2006 MWH Constructors from 2000 to

2006 and MWH Americas from 2005 to 2006 Since July 2008 he has represented SouthWest Water as member of

the board of directors of California Domestic Water Company private wholesale water provider and Cadway Inc
private real estate holding company Mr Swatek has also served as director of the National Association of Water

Companies non-profit industry association since October of 2008
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Ben Smith Chief Financial Officer

Mr Smith joined SouthWest Water in May 2006 as Chief Financial Officer of the Services Group He was promoted to

Vice President of Financial Services in January 2008 and appointed Principal Accounting Officer in May 2009 He was
appointed Chief Financial Officer in January 2010 From January 2004 until joining SouthWest Water Mr Smith

served as Manager of Retail Power Accounting at Calpine Power America provider of electricity to commercial and

industrial customers in California and Texas His career also includes executive management positions with Commerce

Restructuring LLC and Veras Investment Partners Mr Smith is Certified Public Accountant

William DixVice President General Counsel and Secretary

Mr Dix joined the Company as Vice President General Counsel and Secretary in May 2007 From 2002 to May 2007
Mr Dix had corporate transactional legal practice representing variety of companies in Southern California From

2001 to 2002 Mr Dix was Vice President and General Counsel of Genetronics Biomedical Corporation

Charles ProfiletManaging Director Texas Utilities

Mr Profilet joined SouthWest Water in February 2007 as Executive Vice President of the Services Group He was

promoted to Managing .Director Texas Utilities in January2008 Prior to joining.SouthWest Water Mr Profilet was
Vice President of MWH Globals Houston Northeast Water Purification Plant from 2004 to 2007 where he was

responsible for the design construction start-up testing and operations of the 80-million- gallon-per-day MGD
surface water treatment facility He joined MWH in 1.985 and over his tenure there took on roles including Project

Manager for water and wastewater infrastructure projects Operations Officer for new utility Asset Management
Services group and led the companys Advanced Treatment Group which specializes in the design construction and

start-up of membrane treatment facilities Mr Profilet.is registered professional engineer in Texas and Florida

Michael QuinnManaging DirectorWestUtjlities

Mr Quinn has been the Managing Director West Utilities since June 2008 and has been President of Suburban Water

Systems since 1996 From 1992 to 1996 he was Chief Operating Officer for Suburban Water Systems From 1985 to

1992 he was President of ECO Resources Inc and prior to that was Controller/Treasurer at Suburban Water

Systems Among his water industry affiliations Mr Quinn -is past President of both the California Water Association

and the National Association of Water Companies and represents SouthWest Water as member on the boards of the

California Domestic Water Company Cadway Inc private real estate holding company and Covina Irrigating

Company

Jim BrownManagingDirector Texas MUD Services

Mr Brown joined SouthWest Water in May 2004 as Regional Vice President of ECO Resources Mr Brown was

promoted to Managing Director Texas MUD in January 2008 From May 2003 until joining SWWC Mr Brown was an

independent consultant for Terramark Development developer of commercial properties where he was responsible

for creating construction arm to build developments handled by Terramark Prior to that he was an investor and

advisor of EZ Talk Communications prepaid reseller of local phone service

Chris MalinowskiManaging Director OM Services

Mr Malinowski joined SouthWest Water in April 2007 as Vice President of Safety and Compliance and was promoted

to Managing Director OM Services in March 2010 Before joining SouthWest Water he was with PBS.J nationwide

full-service engineering firm where he was division manager for water and wastewater activities in Texas from 2004

to 2007 He also spent 17 years with United Water and its parent-company Suez where he progressed through

engineering operations and business development roles throughout the United States Puerto Rico and France

Mr Malinowski earned Bachelor of Science degree in civil engineering from Texas AM University and is registered

professional engineer in Texas Colorado and Oklahoma

DIRECTORS

In August 2009 the Board voted to amend our corporate governance guidelines lowering the mandatory Board

retirement age to 72 from the current 75 Based on this guideline change four incumbent directors will reach

mandatory retirement age by the time of the 2010 annual meeting of stockholders Messrs Christie Huennekens and

Newman and Ms Kindel will not stand for re-election and will retire as of this years annual meeting of stockholders

In addition the Board elected to separate the role of chairman and chief executive officer Mr Christie was named

Chairman of the Board after the 2009 annUal meeting of stockholders Since Mr Christie is retiring at the 2010

annual meeting of stockholders new chairman- will be named immediately following the 2010 annual meeting of

stockholders
..

Our Board is now de-classified and all directors will be elected for one-year terms at each annual meeting of

stockholders
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The following table and text set forth the names and ages of all independent directors as of April 28 2010
Information concerning Mr Swatek is contained in Item Part There are no family relationships among our
directors and executive officers Also provided herein are brief descriptions of the business experience of each

director executive officer and advisor during the past five years and list of directorships held by each director in

other companies subject to the reporting requirements under the Federal securities laws

Name Age Position

Kimberly Alexy 39 Director Chairman of the Compensation and Organization Committee
Frederick Christie 76 Director Chairman of the Board

Bruce Edwards 56 Director Chairman of the Audit Committee
Linda Griego 62 Director Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee
Donovan Huennekens 73 Director

Thomas lino 67 Director

William Jones 54 Director

Maureen Kindel 72 Director

Richard Newman 75 Director

Kimberly AlexyDirector since August 2009
Kimberly Alexy was appointed to SouthWest Water Companys Board in August 2009 She serves as chair of the

Companys Compensation and Organization Committee and is member of the Audit Committee Ms Alexy brings

equity market merger and acquisition financial and technology sector expertise to the SouthWest Water Board She
has also served on two public company board of director compensation committees one as chair as well as two

nominating and governance committees two audit committee and one corporate development and strategy

committees chair chartered financial analyst CFA she is the Principal of Alexy Capital Management private
investment management firm she founded in 2005 From 1998 to 2003 she was Senior Vice President and Managing
Director of equity research for Prudential Securities where she served as the principal technology hardware analyst
for the firm Prior to joining Prudential she was Vice President of equity research at Lehman Brothers Ms Alexy also

serves on the boards of Dot Hill Systems Corp provider of storage systems CalAmp wireless datacom and

satellite products provider and SMART Modular Technologies manufacturer of memory modules and solid state

drives She has also served previously on the Board of Maxtor Corporation prior to its sale to Seagate Corporation in

2006

Frederick ChristieDirector since 1996
Mr Christie served as Lead Director since May 2006 and was appointed Chairman of the Board in October 2009 He
was also chairman of the Compensation and Organization committee until October of 2009 An independent
consultant he retired in 1990 as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Mission Group subsidiary of SCEcorp
now Edison International From 1984 to 1987 he served as President of Southern California Edison Company
subsidiary of SCEcorp Mr Christie is director of Dine Equity Corporation AECOM Technology Corporation and
Ducommun Incorporated He also serves on the boards of certain funds in the American Funds Family managed by
the Capital Research and Management Company Mr Christie is Trustee Emeritus and past chairman of the Natural

History Museum of LA County and Vice Chairman of Chadwick School in Palos Verdes

Bruce EdwardsDirector since August 2009
Bruce Edwards was appointed to SouthWest Water Companys Board in August 2009 He serves as the chair of the

Companys Audit Committee and is member of the Nominating and Governance Committee as well as the Special
Committee which was formed to explore strategic alternatives Mr Edwards brings executive management experience
and expertise in accounting finance and mergers and acquisitions to the SouthWest Water board He has also served

previously as Executive Chairman of the Board of Powerwave Technologies public company Mr Edwards has
served on eight additional public company boards six audit committees including several as chair and three

Compensation Committees In November 2007 he was appointed Executive Chairman Emeritus of Powerwave
Technologies Inc leading supplier of antenna systems base station subsystems and coverage solutions to the
wireless communications industry Mr Edwards served as Executive Chairman of Powerwave Technologies from

February 2005 through November 2007 and Chief Executive Officer and director from February 1996 through
February 2005 Mr Edwards previously held executive and financial positions at AST Research Inc personal
computer company AMDAX Corporation manufacturer of RF modems and Arthur Andersen and Co public

accounting firm He currently serves as board director for Emulex Corporation leader in converged networking
solutions for data centers and Semtech Corporation leading supplier of analog and mixed signal semiconductor

products

57



Linda GriepoDirector since 2001
Linda Griego serves as chair of the Companys Nominating and Governance Committee and is member of the
compensation and organization committee She served on the Board from December 2001 until May 2006 and then
returned in December 2006 to fill departing Board members vacancy Ms Griego brings executive management
experience and expertise in government relations and publically appointed positions to the SouthWest Water Board
She has also served previously on three public company board of director governance committees two as chair as
well as on four audit committees and three compensation committees Ms Griego is President and Chief Executive
Officer of Griego Enterprises Inc business management company founded in 1986 She redeveloped and
renovated historical landmark building that houses Engine Co No 28 prominent restaurant in downtown Los

Angeles she founded in 1988 From 1990 to 2000 Ms Griego held number of government and public service

appointments including deputy mayor of Los Angeles President and Chief Executive Officer of the Los Angeles
Community Development Bank and Rebuild LA Ms Griego currently serves as director of publicly-traded CBS
Corporation since 2007 and AECOM Technology Corporation since 2005 She is also trustee of the David and Lucile

Packard Foundation and serves on the board of the Community Development Technologies Center During the past
five years she was also director of City National Corporation Granite Construction Incorporated and Blockbuster
Inc

Donovan HuennekensDirector since 1969
Mr Huennekens served as chairman of the Companys audit committee until October 2009 He has been partner of

HQT Homes real estate development company since its formation in 1993 He is also private real estate

investor and was director and member of the compensation committee of Bixby Ranch Company privately owned
family company primarily in the lusiness of developing managing and owning commercial real estate from the mid
1980s until its liquidation at the beginning of 2008

Thomas linoDirector since 2007
Thomas 1mb is chair of the Companys Special Committee which was formed to explore strategic alternatives and
member of the Audit Committee Mr Jino brings executive management experience and expertise in accounting
finance and mergers and acquisitions to the SouthWest Water Board He has also served previously on one public

company board of director audit committees as well as on one governance committee and one compensation
committee He is Chairman of the Board of Los Angeles-based Pacific Commerce Bank where hes served since

February 2006 From 1983 until he retired in May 2005 he served as partner-in-charge of Deloitte Touche LLCs
international practice in southern California focusing on audit .strategic planning merger and acquisitions and

managing bottom-line results Since his retirement Mr lino has been active serving on several boards of directors

including the Japanese American Community Cultural Center since 1995 the Keiro Retirement Home Chairman of the

Board of the US Japan Council and the Board of governors for the Japanese American National Museum since 1998
He also previously served on the Board of governors for the UCLA Foundation through 2007 He is CPA and past

president of both the National Association of State Boards of Accountancy and the California State Board of

Accountancy Mr 1mb serves on the Mayors Trade Advisory Committee formed to stimulate investments from foreign

entities

William JonesDirector since 2004
William Jones is member of the Companys Special Committee which was formed to explore strategic alternatives
and member of the Nominating and Governance Committee Mr Jones brings executive management experience
and expertise in finance government relations and land development to the SouthWest Water Board He has also

served previously on three public company board of director audit committees He has been president chief executive

officer and owner of CityLink Investment Corporation real estate investment development and asset management
firm since 1994 and City Scene Management Company property management firm since 2001 He has been

director of Sempra Energy since 1994 serves on the boards of certain funds in the American Funds Family managed
by the Capital Research and Management Company since 2006 and the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco since

2008 He has also served on the San Diego Padres board since 1998 and on the board of trustees of the Francis

Parker School since 2005

Maureen KindelDirector since 1997
Maureen Kindel is Principal at Kindel Gagan Public Affairs Advocacy firm recently founded in January 2010 Kindel

Gagan provides government relations community outreach crisis management relationship building issue

management and strategic communications services to wide variety of public agencies and private clients Until

January of 2010 Ms Kindel was Senior Managing Director of Rose Kindel consulting and public affairs firm she

founded in 1987 Ms Kindel formerly the Commissioner of Public Works for the City of Los Angeles and founding
member of the Pacific Council on Foreign Relations is currently chair of the LA Business Council Education Committee
and serves on the LA 84 Foundation Board the repository of the 1984 Los Angeles Olympic surplus She also serves
on the Executive Committee of the International Foundation of Election Systems and the Executive Committee of the

Los Angeles Chamber of Commerce She is Regent of Loyola Marymount University in Los Angeles and chairs the
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LMU School of Education Board of Visitors Ms Kinde is board member of the George Washington University School

of PubUc Affairs in Washington DC and the League of Women Voters Education Fund

Richard NewmanDirector since 1991

Mr Newman is the Chairman and founder of AECOM Technology Corporation which provides engineering and

diversified professional technical and management support services throughout the world In addition to serving as

Chairman since 1991 Mr Newman also served as President of AECOM from 1990 until 1991 President and CEO from

1992 to 2000 and Chairman CEO from 2000 to 2005 He is director of Sempra Energy Company and serves on the

boards of certain funds in the American Funds Family managed by the Capital Research and Management Company

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

At December 31 2009 no officer or director of the Company had any petition filed within the past five years in

Federal Bankruptcy or state insolvency proceedings on such persons behalf or on behalf of any entity of which such

person was an officer or general partner within two years of filing had been convicted in criminal proceeding

within the past five years or is currently named subject of pending criminal proceeding or had been the

subject within the past five years of any order judgment decree or finding not subsequently reversed suspended

or vacated of any court or regulatory authority involving violation of securities or commodities laws or barring

suspending enjoining or limiting any activity relating to securities commodities or other business practice

SECTION 16A BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Our directors executive officers and owners of more than 10 percent of our securities are required under Section

16a of the Exchange Act to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC To facilitate

compliance we prepare and file these reports on behalf of our directors and executive officers The Company is

required to disclose in this Proxy Statement any late filings or failures to file

Based upon review of the filings made on their behalf during 2009 as well as an examination of the SECs EDGAR

system Form and filings and the Companys records there were no exceptions to report

CODE OF ETHICS

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for all employees and our Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers

Code of Ethics can also be found on our website www.swwc.com by clicking on Investor Relations then Governance
and Management The Code of Ethics is intended to comply with the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
and applies to our directors and named executive officers including our Chief Executive Officer senior financial

officers and other members of the Companys senior management team We will provide without charge to any

person by written or oral request copy of our Code of Ethics Requests should be directed to Shareholder Services

SouthWest Water Company One Wilshire Building 624 South Grand Avenue Suite 2900 Los Angeles California

90017

NOMINATIONS FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

There have been no material changes in the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our

Board

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of four independent directors in compliance with the listing standards of NASDAQ and

the SEC rules The Audit Committee operates under written charter adopted by the Board that sets forth its

responsibilities and authority and met twelve times in 2009 in addition to seven telephonic meetings The Audit

Committee Charter is available on SouthWest Waters website at www.swwc.com

The Audit Committee has the duties prescribed in its charter and is responsible for overseeing the Companys financial

reporting and disclosure process on behalf of the Board It reviews acts on and reports to the Board with respect to

among other things auditing performance and practices accounting policies financial reporting and disclosure

practices of the Company

From January until October of 2009 the Audit Committee members included Don Huennekens as Chair Fred Christie

Thomas lino and William Jones Directly following last years annual meeting of stockholders committee assignments

were changed to include Bruce Edwards as Chair Don Huennekens Kimberly Alexy and Thomas lino
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The Board has determined that each Audit Committee member has sufficient knowledge in financial and auditing

matters to serve on this Committee In addition the Board has determined that at least one member of the Audit

Committee Bruce Edwards qualifies as an audit committee financial expert as defined by the SEC rules The Board

has also determined that each of the Audit Committee members satisfies the SEC rules regarding independence and

the NASDAQ requirements for Audit Committee membership including financial sophistication Stockholders should

understand that the financial expert designation is disclosure requirement of the SEC related to Mr Edwards

experience and understanding with respect to certain accounting and auditing matters The designation does not

impose upon Mr Edwards any duties obligations or liabilities that are greater than are generally imposed on him as

member of the Audit Committee and the Board The designation of any director as an audit committee financial expert

pursuant to this SEC requirement does not affect the duties obligations or liability of any other member of the Audit

Committee or the Board The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates annually its performance and charter

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes how we compensated the persons who served as the Companys
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and the other persons included in the Summary Compensation Table

below in this Item 11 during fiscal year 2009 Collectively this group of executive officers is referred to as the named

executive officers the EQ or NEOs

The CO Committee of our Board is responsible for determining the compensation of the named executive officers and

the other members of the Companys senior management team The CO Committee also reviews and oversees all

long-term incentive and equity-based plans defined contribution plans our deferred compensation plan and change-

of-control agreements

Objectives

Our executive compensation programs are designed with the intent of attracting motivating and retaining

experienced executives and rewarding them for their contributions to the Companys achievement of its annual and

long-term goals We believe that in this way we can align the interests of our executives with those of our

stockholders Historically we have put greater relative emphasis on at risk performance based incentives to

increase the relationship of pay to Company performance and offer greater compensation potential for superior

performance However in 2009 due to the ongoing restatement of our historical financial statements we elected not

to grant any equity as part of the 2009 long term incentive plan

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decision

Our Chief Executive Officer other members of management and outside advisors may be invited to attend CO
Committee meetings from time to time depending on the matters to be discussed The CO Committee may solicit

the input of the Chief Executive Officer as it relates to the compensation of other named executive officers However
neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any other member of management votes on items before the CO Committee

or participates in discussions regarding his or her compensation

Role of Compensation Consultant

From 2007 through the end of the third quarter of 2009 the CQ Committee engaged Compensation Design Group

CDG as an executive compensation consultant In 2009 the principal consultant from CDG started his own

compensation consulting firm Veritas LLC Veritas which the CO Committee continued to use for consulting

services through the third quarter of 2009

At various times over the last few years CDG and Veritas have provided the following services

Review the Companys total compensation philosophy peer group and competitive positioning for

reasonableness and appropriateness

Review the Companys total executive compensation program and advise the CO Committee of plans or

practices that might be changed to improve effectiveness
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Review director compensation philosophy peer group and competitive positioning for reasonableness and

appropriateness

Advise the CO Committee and/or Chair on management proposals as requested

Undertake special projects at the request of the CO Committee and/or Chair

Review the Companys total compensation philosophy peer group and competitive positioning for

reasonableness and appropriateness

Review the Companys total executive compensation program and advise the CO Committee of plans or

practices that might be changed to improve effectiveness

Provide market data and recommendations on CEO compensation without prior review by management except

for necessary fact checking

Review the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and related tables for the proxy statement

Periodically review the CO Committees charter and recommend changes and

Proactively advise the CO Committee on best practices for Board governance of executive compensation as

well as areas of concern and risk in the Companys program

In 2009 as part of its ongoing services to the CO Committee as described above Veritas worked on the following

projects

Advised the CO Committee on executive severance

Advised the CO Committee on long term incentives to best align executive performance with stockholder

interests

Reviewed proxy statement and supported company on 280G calculations and summary compensation tables

Advised on appropriate executive performance goals and metrics

Performed analysis on total compensation for directors

Conducted SouthWest Water peer restricted stock award dividend study

Provided guidance on restricted stock awards dividend equivalent rights and

Provided burn rate and overhang analysis

In 2009 the total amount of fees paid to Veritas did not exceed the SEC reporting requirement amount In addition

the Company reimbursed Veritas for all reasonable travel and business expenses Veritas does not perform any other

consulting services to SouthWest Water other than in the area of executive compensation

In the fourth quarter of 2009 the CO Committee engaged Pearl Meyer Partners as an independent compensation

consultant to conduct an analysis on change of control payments and retention incentives Fees paid to Pearl Meyer

Partners which does not provide any other consulting services to SouthWest Water did not exceed the SEC reporting

requirement

Setting Executive Compensation

The CO Committee has structured base salary non-equity incentive plan awards and long-term equity based

incentive awards to motivate named executive officers to achieve goals set by the Company and to reward

achievement of those goals From time to time the CO Committee engages independent compensation consultants to

assist with the review and development of the total compensation provided to its named executive officers For 2009
the CO Committee did not engage its compensation consultant to perform review of total compensation

The CO Committee reviews the base salaries of each of our named executive officers annually and the overall

executive salary ranges periodically The CO Committee determines the base salary of each named executive officer
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after considering the pay levels of our peer group the executives individual performance his or her long-term

contributions and the pay of others on the executive team We target our executive base salary to be in the 50th

percentile of our peer group Adjustments may be made at the discretion of the CO Committee due to superior

performance of the officer involved Our peer group consisted of seven utility companies and six service companies
that provide services in market similar to that which we serve or to the same clients we serve The peer companies
are

Utility Services

American States Water Company Hawkins Inc

Artesian Resources Corporation Matrix Service Company
California Water Service Group Michael Baker Company
SJW Corp TRC Companies
The Empire District Electric Co Insituform Technologies Inc

Middlesex Water Company Layne Christensen Company
Connecticut Water Service Inc

Components of Executive Compensation

The basic elements of compensation for our named executive officers are

Base salary

Non-equity short term incentive plan awards

Long-term equity based incentive awards and

401k deferred compensation plan and other benefits

Our named executive officers are compensated with mix of these key components of compensation The CO
Committee reviews each element separately and then considers all elements together to ensure that the goals and

objectives of our total compensation philosophy are met

Base Salary

Our objectives in setting reviewing and adjusting base salary are twofold to attract and retain executive talent and

to meet competitive practices Our base salary is intended to provide reasonable and competitive pay for services to

the Company The CO Committee after considering similarly situated competitors and taking into consideration the

performance history of the officers involved seeks to annually establish the base salary for such affected officers In

using this methodology the base salary adjustment has both quantitative and qualitative components For 2009
each officers base salary was the subject of discretionary review by the CO Committee taking into account the

Companys financial performance the officers personal performance for the prior year and factoring into consideration

related cost of living adjustments Based on the Companys performance and regional and national economic

conditions the CO committee determined that the NEOs would not receive an increase in 2009

Non-Equity Short-Term Incentive Plan Awards

Our objective in providing annual non-equity short-term incentive STI compensation in the form of cash awards is

to motivate executives to make improvements in individual and Company performance and to align the executives

compensation with the Companys performance and objectives the greater the improvement in Company
performance the greater the incentive opportunity We also believe annual non-equity STI compensation is

necessary to remain competitive with our peer group

The CO Committee annually reviews non-equity incentives for executives generally in the first quarter of the fiscal

year to determine award payments for the last completed fiscal year as well as to set performance goals and

incentive targets for the current fiscal year Non-equity incentives Short-Term Incentives or STI are based on

performance against both formulaic financial objectives and discretionary non-financial individual goals The CO
Committee approves the incentive level for the Chief Executive Officer and for each named executive officer taking

into consideration the Chief Executive Officers recommendations at the beginning of the year as performance

objectives are established The performance objectives are combination of both financial objectives and non
financial objectives established individually or collectively for the NEO5 and the weighting of each goal is established

by the CO Committee taking into consideration Chief Executive Officer recommendations The financial objectives

may include objectives relating to EPS EBIT Profit before Taxes Group or Division Income or other financial metric
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measures that are pertinent to the individuals span of control Non-financial goals are established to assure focus on

activities that help the Company achieve its strategic incentives such as critical acquisitions or realignment of

individual operations Individual operational performance achievement levels are determined at the discretion of the

CO Committee which is familiar with the individual performance that is expected for each unique job in question

When these targets are met the awards are paid in cash

For the 2009 SI plan the C0 Committee established threshold target and maximum awards for plan participants

that were based on percentage of base salary as follows

NEO Threshold Award Target Award Maximum Award

CEO COO 25% 50% 100%

CFO Managing Directors 20% 40% 80%

Each NEO shared total Company EBIT goal for 2009 The goal was established at threshold target and maximum

performance levels based on the Companys approved 2009 budget All other performance objectives were tailored to

each NEO and his or her specific objectives for 2009 and performance against these goals are summarized below

Mr Swatek

Non-GAAP EBIT SouthWest Water Goal $11764000 excluding New Mexico 25% weighting The Company
did not achieve the goal

EPS SouthWest Water Goal $0.30 excluding New Mexico 25% weighting The Company did not achieve the

goal

Non-Financial Objective 30% weighting Establish new investor relations campaign to increase interest in

SouthWest Water as an investment of choice Mr Swatek achieved this goal

Operational Objective 10% weighting Assure company borrowings are controlled to prevent default and to

conserve adequate borrowing capacity on current credit lines Mr Swatek achieved this goal

Personal Development lO% weighting Broaden knowledge and experience of director best practices

through attendance at training programs or other avenues Mr Swatek achieved this Goal

Because overall financial performance of the Company did not meet threshold performance levels Mr Swatek

did not receive STI award for 2009

Mr Stanton

Mr Stanton separated from the Company prior to evaluation of performance for the short term incentives for

2009 and therefore did not receive STI award for 2009

Ms Clary

Ms Clary separated from the Company prior to evaluation of performance for the short term incentives for

2009 and therefore did not receive STI award for 2009

Mr Profilet

Non-GAAP EBIT SouthWest Water Goal $11764000 excluding New Mexico 30% weighting The Company
did not achieve the goal

Texas Utilities EBIT Goal prior to corporate allocation of $9503000 40% weighting Mr Profilet exceeded

maximum performance levels for this goal

Texas Utilities EBIT Margin Total EBIT unallocated/Total Revenue of 36.0% 15% weighting Mr Profilet

did not achieve this goal

Lost Time Incident Rate Safety Objectives 7.5% weighting Mr Profilet exceeded threshold performance

levels for this goal

Recordable Incident Rate Safety Objectives 7.5% weighting Mr Profilet did not achieve this goat
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Mr Quinn

Non-GAAP EBIT SouthWest Water Goal $11764000 excluding New Mexico 30% weighting The Company

did not achieve this goal.

Western Utility EBIT Goal prior to corporate allocation of $21218000 excluding New Mexico 40% weighting

Mr Quinn did not achieve this goal

Western Utility EBIT Margin Total EBIT unallocated/Total Revenue of 38.0% 15% weighting Mr Quinn did

not achieve this goal

Lost Time Incident Rate Safety Objectives 7.5% weighting Mr Quinns operation had no lost time ihcidents

in 2009 and thus met maximum objectives of this goal

Recordable Incident Rate Safety Objectives 7.5% weighting Mr Quinn did not achieve this goal

Mr Profilet and Mr Quinn did not receive an STI award for 2009 However in 2010 the CO Committee approved .à

discretionary cash bonus for fiscal year 2009 to Mr Profilet and Mr Quinn of $45000 and $20000 respectively

Any non-equity incentive awards granted to the named executive officers are detailed in the Grants of Plan-Based

Awards table below in this Item 11

Long-Term Incentive Awards

In 2009 the Committee did not grant any long term incentive awards

The Company believes thatstock-based long-term incentive awards align the interests of executives with those of

stockholders Both wish to see an increase in value In addition we believe stock ownership encourages executives to

take more entrepreneurial and longer term view of the Company and its business In 2008 the CO Committee

established multi-year long term incentive plan for the NEOs and other management using non-qualified stock

options and restricted stock awards as the form of long-term incentive as permitted under the Equity Incentive Plan

The amount of the option and stock awards were based on rewarding individual contributions and target of

competitive total compensation relative to our peŁr The NEO awards were based on analysis and guidance from

Veritas on market practices of our peer and industry group on long term incentives in relationship to total

compensation market practices Long term target values were set in accordance with the Companys compensation

strategy and based on results of an extensive compensation study by Veritas Fdr 2009 the CO Committee did not

award any long term incentives

In February 2010 the CO Committee approved the elimination of dividend payments on any future grants of

performance contingent restricted stock awards

Long term incentives include performance accelerated stock options PASOs performance contingent restricted

stock PCRS and performance shares

PASOS Performance Accelerated Stock Options

PASOs are options to buy SouthWest Water stock at future date at the closing fair market value the stock

is trading at on the grant date PASOs fully vest five years from the grant date however they may vest

earlier in the five-year period based on meeting speciflc performance objectives Vesting may be accelerated

if SouthWest Water shares reach and maintain the target price thresholds listed in the table below for

minimum of 10 consecutive trading days

Share Price Threshold Accelerated Vesting.%

$15.00 25%

$18.00 25%

$21.00 25%

$24.00 25%

There is no limit on accelerated vesting in any plan year provided that share price targets are met and held

If performance objectives are not met stock option awards vest five years from the date of award based on

continued employment Vesting can be accelerated to an earlier date based on meeting pre-established and

stated performance objectives

64



PASOs are issued at fair market value and the participant is entitled only to the appreciation in the value of

the PASO from the date of the grant to the date of exercise The initial grant of options to individual

participants is based on gain multiplier i.e multiple of base salary that is derived from competitive

practices and used to determine the target long-term incentive value for each participant of base salary and

an option pricing valuation PASOs provide long-term focus on share-price performance and align the

interests of participants with those of the Company

The PASO performance objective is based on the Companys stock maintaining the threshold price for

minimum of ten 10 consecutive trading days at which point 25% of the options will undergo accelerated

vesting There are four such share price thresholds and there is no limit on the number of accelerated

vesting occurrences in one year provided that share price targets are met and held Un-accelerated options
will vest fully five years after the grant date and have term of seven years from the grant date The
exercise price used was the final after-hours trading price of the Companys stock on the date of grant In the

event of change in control such as that contemplated by the merger agreement the vesting for all PASOs
will accelerate

During 2009 no thresholds were reached and therefore no acceleration of vesting occurred

PCRS Performance Contingent Restricted Stock

PCRS are shares of SouthWest Water stock with performance-contingent vesting restrictions They have an

initial value equal to the closing price of SouthWest Water stock on the grant date Any unvested awards
i.e where performance was not achieved will be forfeited at the end of the five year performance period

Vesting occurs if the Company achieves four quarter trailing pre-tax earnings objectives as noted below
Once vesting target is achieved the four quarter period is reset and the objective will become the next

lowest vesting target

Since shares are restricted participants will not own the shares until they vest However participants will

receive dividends and have voting rights on unvested shares Effective February of 2010 the CO Committee

approved the elimination of dividend payments on any future grants of performance contingent restricted

stock awards

Pre-Tax Earnings
Objectives Accelerated Vesting

$19778000 25%
$25765000 25%
$30046000 25%
$38319000 25%

PCRS are restricted stock awards that are an at-risk form of compensation Vesting is entirely performance
based with the potential for shares to be forfeited if the established objectives are not met over five year

performance period following the grant date The valuation of shares is based on fair market value at the

time of grant The participant is entitled to the full value of the share including the appreciation or gain in

stock value over the original grant price at the time of vesting The initial grant of shares to individual

participants is based on gain multiplier of base salary During the restriction period the participant

receives dividends if any and can vote the shares As restrictions lapse the participant receives unrestricted

shares which may be sold transferred or pledged PCRS provides long-term focus on share price and

Company performance and aligns the interests of participants with those of the Company

PCRS requires the Companys pre-tax earnings to be above specified four-quarter total value at the end of

the 4-quarter period not necessarily in single fiscal year at which point 25% of the restricted stock will

undergo accelerated vesting and the four-quarter period is reset Any unvested restricted stock is forfeited at

the end of the five year performance period In the event of change of control such as that contemplated

by the merger agreement the vesting for all PCRS will accelerate

During 2009 no pre-tax earnings objectives were met and therefore no vesting or acceleration of vesting
occurred
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Performance Shares

Performance shares are phantom stock designed to link to specific balance sheet performance of the

Company They have three year term and give participant the right to receive cash award at the end of

three years based on the achievement of predetermined performance objectives Performance share value is

variable and may payout at above or below target. In the event of poor performance if the minimum goals

are not achieved the performance shares will not have any value or payout

Performance Share value will be measured at the end of the performance period based on improvement in the

Companys Return on Invested Capital ROIC as compared to 2007 levels Plan participants will be paid

cash at the end of 2010 based on improvement in ROIC over the 2008-2010 plan percent as forecasted by the

Companys 2007 long range plan If successful the Company will improve its ROIC by the end of 2010 by

73% from 2007 year end levels and if this level of improvement is achieved the plan participants will be

entitled to 100% of the target Performance Share award Actual awards will be made on the basis of the

relative percentage of the achieved improvement If ROIC is improved by 50% over 2007 year end levels

then the plan participants will receive 50/73 or 68% of the target award Conversely if ROIC improves by

100% over the 2007 year end levels plan participants will receive 100/73 or 137% of the target award The

target Performance Share award to individual participants is based on multiplier of base salary Payments
will be made in cash Performance shares provide long-term focus on specific financial/operational

performance and aligns the interests of participants with those of the Company During 2009 the Company
did not meet its target for ROIC In the event of change of control such as that contemplated by the merger

agreement the vesting of all of the performance shares will accelerate However based on expected

performance the Company believes that the stated performance metrics will not meet minimum goals and
therefore the performance shares will have no value

Most of the long-term incentive awards are made to named executive officers during the first quarter of the year
These awards are referred to as in-cycle awards The process for these awards is structured The Chief Executive

Officer reviews the performance of the named executive officers and management against long-term goals of the

organization

strategic initiatives and the role each individual may have in moving the Company toward those goals and initiatives

The Chief Executive Officer recommends long-term incentive awards to the CO Committee after discussion and

review approves final awards

Occasionally out-of-cycle long-term incentives are made to named executive officers The most typical out-of-cycle

awards are made when an executive is first hired .or is promoted These out-of-cycle long-term incentive awards are

made effective as of the date of hire or promotion The CO Committee has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer

the authority to make out-of-cycle long-term incentive awards of non-qualified stock options up to 2500 shares with

the provision that the CO Committee is informed of the award at the next CO Committee meeting The Chief

Executive Officer did not make any out-of-cycle awards in 2009

All options or restricted shares are granted at.fair market value of the stock on the date of grant Fair market value is

determined as the closing price of the Companys stock on the NASDAQ on the grant date

Compensation and Risk

The CO Committee is aware of the ongoing economic conditions and the consequences to companies that have not

appropriately balanced risk and reward in executive compensation The CO Committee believes that the emphasis on

long-term performanc.e in its approach to the overall compensation program does not reward excessive risk-taking for

the Company Historically the Companys executive compensation .strategy is focused on mitigating risk by

emphasizing long-term compensation and financial performance measures that correlate with growing stockholder

value rather than rewarding shorter performance periods and payouts The CO Committee believes the Companys
executive compensation and overall compensation practices and policies do not have material effect on the

Companys risk profile or its ability to manage risks

The CO Committee notes the following

The CO Committee is responsible for considering risk related to its compensation policies for executive

officers and the management team for all non-executive officers and the risk mitigation policies in place i.e
mix of long term and short term incentives etc.

All employees are reviewed on an annual basis for merit review The merit is based on budget and business

performance In 2009 the Company did not award merit increases
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Variable compensation is part of our ongoing compensation program and is not only for executive
management Its an important element of compensation for our employees in the field operating lines of
business as well as office support functions

The Company does have short term annual incentive plan for certain management and key contributor roles

across all business units and support functions The incentives are based on Company performance business
unit objectives and individual objectives Any bonus pool is approved by the CO Committee For 2009 the
CO Committee approved bonus pool for the annual short term incentive for certain management and key
contributors in field operating units and office support functions

The Companys executive compensation approach is to balance both short and long term incentives

The use of both quantitative and qualitative finance metrics are significant factors in the CO Committees
decision in making payments to executive management

The LTIs long term focus on share based compensation over multi-year period mitigates risks over short
term goals that could be potentially detrimental to the stockholders

Long term incentive awards under the 2008 LTIP are intended to promote accomplishment of long term focus
on specific financial/operational goals that align the interests of the Company and plan participants

As matter of best practice we will continue to manage our executive compensation and general compensation
program that aligns the interests of our employees and stockholders while avoiding unnecessary or excessive risk

Retirement and Other Benefits

Profit Sharing/Savings Plans All employees including named executive officers may participate in one of two
401k Plans depending on the subsidiary in which they work The contract services business employees
typically participate in the Profit Sharing 401k Plan established in 1988 and the owned utHity business
employees typically participate in the 401k Retirement and Savings Plan established in 1994 In both plans
employees may elect to make before-tax contributions of up to 60% of their base salary subject to current
Internal Revenue Service limits Neither 401k Plan permits an investment in our stock The Company
matches employee contributions up to set percentage of the employees contribution depending on the
specific plan and the Company contributed portion has specific vesting period For the Profit Sharing 401k
Plan the Company matches 50% of the first 2% of the employees contribution The Companys contribution
vests 100% after one year of service For the 401k Retirement and Savings Plan the Company matches
100% of the first 2% of the employees contribution and 50% of the next 4% The Company match vests at

graduated rate over years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan All employees including named executive officers may participate in the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan the ESPP established in 1989 when they meet the eligibility requirements
Eligible employees are those who work more than 20 hours week and are employed at least 90 days The
ESPP provides eligible employees an option to purchase the Company stock at discounted price at the end of

set offering period Our offering period is quarterly The discount in the ESPP is 10% off the lesser of the
Companys stock price based on the average of the high and low price for the last or first three days of the
offering period Employees can participate through payroll deduction and there is 1000 share limit per
purchase as well as an annual Internal Revenue Service limit of $25000 in value of stock that can be
purchased through the ESPP In November of 2008 the Company temporarily suspended the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan due to our ineligibility to use registration statements on Form S-8 until we became current in all

SEC filings The Company reinstated the ESPP on October 2009 In accordance with the provisions of the
merger agreement the ESPP was suspended after March 31 2010

Deferred Comensation Plan The Company offers highly compensated employees and directors an
opportunity to participate in nonqualified unfunded Deferred Compensation Plan established in 2002 In
2009 ten employees elected to participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan The named executive officers
who participated in the Deferred Compensation Plan are identified in the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
Table In the Summary Compensation Table and the Director Compensation Table the base salary non-equity
plan award or fees to each named executive officer and director who participated in the Deferred
Compensation Plan have not been reduced by the amount of their deferral In other words base salary is base
salary before any deferrals Director fees reflect fees before any deferrals
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Pension Plan The Company does not provide pension plan for any of the named executives as outlined in

the Pension Benefits section on below in this Item 11

Health and Welfare Benefits

All ftill-time employees including our NEOs may participate in our health and welfare benefit programs including

medical and dental coverage disability insurance life insurance and long-term care All employees may elect to

purchase additional life and disability insurance through payroll deductions The additidnal benefit of the Company
paid premium is taxable income and is included in the employees W-2

Perquisites

We provide additional benefits to named executive officers that match competitive market practice or are relevant to

the business we conduct All such payments are reflected in the Summary Compensation Table below Our Chief

Executive Officer andcertain named execytive officers receive car allowance which is included as taxable income in

the NEOs salary Additionally the Company pays the monthly parking fees for named executive officers located in

downtown Los Angeles

The Chief Executive Officer is reimbursed for tax preparation up to an annual maximum of $5000

Club membership is provided or reimbursed for the Chief Executive Officer The club to which the chief Executive

Officer belongs benefits the Company in the conduct of our business through establishing or maintaining business

connections and the conducting of business meetings

Severance Agreements Change of Control Agreements

Businesses face number of risks including the risk of losing executive talent when .new ChiefExecutive Officer

joins the Company or there is change in ownership of the Company We believe that severance arrangements and

change of control agreements with certain of our named executiveofficers has helped us attract and retain our

executives

The Company has Change of Control Severance Agreement CCSA into which certain named executive officers

and other key executive officers have entered All except one of these agreements have term of 2.99 years subject

to automatic renewal for three-year terms unless a- 90-day notice of non-renewal is given prior to the expiration of

current term One agreement was .entered into in 1999 and has no expiration or renewal date The CCSA ends if

named executive officers employment has terminated before the change of control has occurred as in the case of Mr
Stanton and Ms Clary Other named executive officers who hae entered into CCSAs are Messrs Swatek Quinn and

Profilet Additionally three other executive officers have CCSAs with similar terms as those for the named executive

officers

The CCSA provides .that.the executive officer will upon change of control as defined in the CCSA agreement be

entitled for period of.two years after the change of control1 to severance payment if the executive officers

employment is terminated by the Company for other than Cause or the employee elects to terminate for Good

Reason as defined in the CCSA The severance consists of up to 2.99 times the sum of the executives most recent

base salary plus the average bonus or Non-Equity STI Plan compensation for the prior three full years The

severance benefits may also include an acceleration of vesting of previously granted stock options or non-vested

restricted shares held as of the date of the change of control Total benefits may not exceed the limits imposed by

Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code The consummation of the merger would result in change of control for

purposes of the CCSA Details on the payments that each of the above named executive officers would receive in the

event their employment terminates are shown on the Potential Payments Upon Post Terminationtables specific to

each named executive officer below in this Item 11

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Stock ownership guidelines have not been implemented by the CO Committee for our named executive officers We
will continue to periodically review and evaluate our position with respect to stock ownership guidelines for executive

officers

Tax and Accounting Considerations of Executive Compensation

Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code limits the deductibility of compensation in excess of $1 million paid by

public company to its chief executive officer and four other highest-paid executive officers unless certain specific and
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detailed criteria are satisfied The CO Committee takes into consideration the economic effect on the Company of

compensation which would not be deductible under Section 162m or otherwise and therefore considers the
anticipated tax treatment to the Company and our executive officers when we review and establish compensation
programs and payments In the future compensation may be set for competitive or other reasons which will not be
fully deductible The Company believes that for fiscal year 2009 there were no compensation amounts paid to any
named executive officer which were not deductible by reason of Section 162m

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table summarizes the compensation paid or earned by each of the named executive officers for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2009

Non
Equity Change of

Incentive Pension Value

Plan Nonqualified All Other
Stock Option Compen- Deferred Compen

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards sation Compensation sation Total
Position Year $1 $2 $2 $3 Earnings
Mark Swatek 2009 467308 55391 522 699
President Chief 2008 450000 1495826 310700 41241 2297767
Executive Officer 2007 435077 127600 105250 305552 973479
David Stanton 2009 336538 38180 374718
Former COO 2008 300000 1010002 259838 24475 1594315
CFO 2007 270200 42100 60000 372300
Cheryl Clary 2009 141375 24793 157216 323384
Former CFO 2008 253500 204167 127936 22567 21769 629939

2007 262485 63800 63150 55000 17309 461744
Chuck Profilet 2009 253383 45000 211 22934 321528
Managing Director 2008 249780 159998 100261 39200 23258 572497
Texas Utilities

Michael Quinn 2009 263250 20000 13506 20718 317474
Managing Director 2008 253500 122500 76760 11448 71566 535774
Western Utilities 2007 255723 63800 63150 45000 10051 437724

Any non-qualified deferred compensation amounts are included under Salary and footnoted below for the two named
executive officers who deferred portion of their salary Earnings on non-qualified deferred compensation are reflected

under Change of Pension Value Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Earnings Amounts shown under Salary before
2008 include car allowances for the named executive officers In 2008 car allowances are reflected under All Other
Compensation Salary in 2009 reflects 27 pay periods instead of 26
Figures reflect the grant date fair value calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 No awards were granted in

fiscal 2009 2008 stock awards include performance contingent restricted stock performance shares and non-
performance-based restricted stock 2008 option awards include performance-accelerated stock options and non-
performance-based stock options 2007 awards include non-performance-based restricted stock and stock options For
additional information on valuation assumptions refer to Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in

Part II Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The amounts reported in this column reflect cash incentive compensation based on performance in the respective year and
was determined by the CO Committee and Board in March of the following year and paid shortly thereafter more
detailed discussion of our non-equity incentive plan awards including the criteria used to determine such awards may be
found under Compensation Discussion and Analysis above
All other compensation for Mr Swatek includes $1400 for tax preparation $12461 in car allowance $3751 for Group
Term Life $2066 in LTD $10300 in Company 401k matching $4830 in club memberships $1332 in discounted ESPP
purchases $2400 in Company paid parking and $16851 in dividends on restricted stock awards
All other compensation for Mr Stanton includes $12462 in car allowance $872 for Group Term Life $10300 in Company
401k matching $1021 in discounted ESPP purchases $2400 in Company paid parking and $11126 in dividends on
restricted stock awards Effective April 24 2009 Mr Stanton was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company His

employment with the Company terminated January 25 2010 at which time all unvested stock options and unvested
restricted stock awards were canceled
All other compensation for Ms Clary includes $5169 in car allowance $1190 for Group Term Life $602 in LTD $6495 in

Company 401k matching $1200 in Company paid parking and $1268 in dividends on restricted stock awards Effective

April 24 2009 Ms Clary no longer served as Chief Financial Officer and her employment with the Company terminated
July 2009
All other compensation for Mr Profilet includes $10200 in car allowance $1932 for Group Term Life $1079 in LTD
$8632 in Company 401k matching $204 in discounted ESPP purchases and $887 in dividends on restricted stock
awards Mr Profilet was not named executive officer in 2007
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All other compensation for Mr Quinn includes $2027 in car allowance $5757 for Group Term Life $1162 in LTD $10300
in Company 401k matching $204 in discounted ESPP purchases and $1268 in dividends on restricted stock awards He

deferred $8044 of his compensation which is included in his salary shown above

GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS

There were no grants made to any of the Named Executive Officers during 2009

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table provides information for each of the Companys Named Executive Officers regarding outstanding

stock options and unvested stock awards held by the officers as of December 31 2009 Market values are presented

as of the end of 2009 based on the closing price of SouthWest Water stock on December 31 2009 of $5.89 for

outstanding stock awards which include all prior year grants Market values are not presented for stock options The

accumulated equity holdings reflect our long-term incentive structure Company performance and an executives

length of service performance shares which are cash-based are not presented in this table

EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN AWARDS

Option Awards Unvested Restricted Stock Awards

Number of Securities Underlying Service-Based Performance-Based

Unexercised Awards Awards

Options

Market or

Payout

Market Number of Value of

Number of Value of Unearned Unearned

Shares or Shares or Shares Shares Units

Unitsof Unitsof Unitsor or

Named Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Stock That Stock That Other Other

Executive Options Options Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not Rights Not Rights Not

Officer Exercisable Unexercisable Price Cs Date Vested Vested Vested Vested

Mark Swatek

Equity Awards 1066396 628104 219787 129450

Stock Options 919231 11.28 1/29/2015

166662 83342 12.76 3/14/2014

750003 13.20 6/3/2013

Cheryl Clary

Equity Awards

Stock Options 100002 378511 11.28 1/29/2015

-- 50002 12.76 3/14/2014

200004 17.75 3/8/2013

210004 11.39 3/9/2012

132304 11.02 10/26/2011

David Stanton

Equity Awards 774799 456351 115257 67882

Stock Options 482021 11.28 1/29/2015

100005 200005 11.04 1/22/2015

66662 33342 12.76 3/14/2011

250002 12.04 11/10/2013

Charles Profilet

Equity Awards 70927 41772

Stock Options 296631 11.28 1/29/2015

60004 90004 12.88 2/17/2014

Michael Quinn

Equity Awards 166610 9813 54307 31983
Stock Options 227101 11.28 1/29/2015

100002 50002 12.76 3/14/2014

150004 100004 17.75 3/8/2013

168004 42004 11.39 3/9/2012

165374 12.97 2/12/2011

Vesting can be accomplished based on performance objective of the Company stock maintaining set threshold pricesat
which point 25% of the options will undergo accelerated vesting There are four such share price thresholds $15 $18 $21
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and $24/share Un-accelerated options will fully vest five years after the grant date As of December 31 2009 none of the

targets have been met
These stock options vest 33 1/3% each year over three years
on June 2006 75000 stock options were awarded to Mr Swatek These options vest 50% each year over two years

These stock options vest 20% each year over five years

On January 22 2008 30000 stock options were awarded to Mr Stanton in connection with his promotion to COO These

options would have vested 33 1/3% each year over three years until fully vested on January 22 2011 however all options

canceled upon the termination of Mr Stantons employment

On October 17 2008 Mr Swatek was granted 103306 restricted stock award which will fully vest at three years or

earlier upon involuntary termination for any reason other than cause On March 13 2008 Mr Swatek was awarded 10000
shares of restricted stock which he declined and which were immediately canceled On March 14 2007 Mr Swatek was

awarded 10000 shares of restricted stock which vests 33 l/3% per year over three years

The performance contingent restricted stock awards have five years in which to reach performance targets and will vest

25% upon reaching each goal of pre-tax earnings of $19778000 $25765000 $30046000 and $38319000 If goals

are not reached awards cancel at five years As of December 31 2009 none of the targets have been met
On March 14 2007 Ms Clary was awarded 5000 shares of restricted stock which vests 33 1/3% per year over three years

This Restricted Stock Award was 2/3 vested at the time of her resignation The unvested balance was canceled

On October 17 2008 Mr Stanton was granted 77479 shares of restricted stock which would have fully vested at three

years or earlier upon involuntary termination for any reason other than cause This Restricted Stock Award was canceled

upon the termination of Mr Stantons employment

10 On March 14 2007 Mr Quinn was awarded 5000 share Restricted Stock Award which vests 33 l/3% per year over three

years

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

The following table shows information on stock options exercised stock awards vested and the value realized from

options exercised or awards vested during 2009

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number of

Securities Shares Value

Acquired on Value Realized Acquired on Realized on

Name and Principal Position Exercise on Exercise$ Vesting Vestings
Mark Swatek Chief Executive Officer 3333 $14999

Cheryl Clary Former Chief Financial Officer 1667 7502
David Stanton Former Chief Operating Officer CFO

Michael Quinn Managing Director Western Utilities 1667 7502
Charles Profilet Managing Director Texas Utilities

PENSION BENEFITS

The SouthWest Water Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan the SERP was adopted by the Company
effective May 2000 None of the current executives are participants or have accumulated any benefits under the

plan

NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan was implemented January 2002 The purpose of the Plan is to provide

benefits to select group of management or highly compensated employees and directors who contribute materially

to the continued growth development and success of the Company

Participants in the Deferred Compensation Plan annually may elect to defer up to 5O% of their base annual salary and

up to 100% of their bonus commission or director fees The Deferred Compensation Plan provides for fixed rate of

interest on amounts deferred The interest is determined annually and is referred to as the preferred crediting rate

The preferred crediting rate is 120% of the crediting rate which is based on the average corporate bond yield

published in the Merchant Bond Record as the Corporate Bond Yield Average AV Corp for the previous September
participant in the plan earns the preferred crediting rate after five years of plan participation Should the participant

not participate for five years then she or he will only earn the crediting rate on amounts deferred All earnings are

based on the preferred crediting rate In 2009 the preferred crediting rate was 6.47% and the crediting rate was

5.61%

The following table summarizes the nonqualified deferred compensation paid or earned by each of the named

executive officers for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009
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Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate

Name and Contribution in Contributions Earnings Withdrawals Balance at

Principal Position Last FY$1 in Last FY$ FY$ DistributionsS Last FYE$

247932 $339753

David Stanton

Former Chief Operating

Officer Chief Financial

Officer

Charles Profilet Managing

Director Texas Utilities 27003 211 2911

Michael Quinn

Managing Director Western

Utilities 80444 13506 186660

Amounts disclosed are included in the Summary Compensation Table on above under Salary and noted in the footnotes to

each named executive officer who participated in the Deferred Compensation Plan in 2009

Ms Clary did not defer any of her earnings in 2009 In 2008 Ms Clary deferred $51395 and acquired aggregate earnings

of $22567 In 2007 Ms Clary deferred $138800 and acquired aggregate earnings of $26207
Mr Profilet did not participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan prior to 2009

Mr Quinn deferred $7598 in 2008 and acquired aggregate earnings of $11448 In 2007 Mr Quinn deferred $7329 and

acquired aggregate earnings of $10051

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CONTROL

The following tables reflect the amount of compensation which would be paid or has been paid to each of the named

executive officers in the event of termination of their employment The amount of compensation payable to each

named executive officer upon voluntary termination or retirement involuntary not-for-cause termination for cause

termination termination following change of control and in the event of disability or death of the executive is shown

Unless the executive officer has actually terminated the amounts shown assume that the termination was effective as

of December 31 2009 and thus includes amounts earned through that time and are estimates of the amounts which

would be paid to the executives upon termination The actual amounts to be paid can only be determined at the time

of the executives separation from the Company However the Merger Consideration of $11.00 included in the Merger

Agreement detailed in Item under the caption Definitive Merger Agreement is considerably higher than the

common stock closing price of $5.89 on December 31 2009

Payments Made Upon Termination

Regardless of the manner in which named executive officers employment terminates he or she may be entitled to

receive amounts earned during his or her employment Such amounts include

shares awarded under the Companys Equity Incentive Plan

amounts contributed under the 401k Plan and the Deferred Compensation Plan and

unused vacation pay vacation entitlement

Payments Made Upon Change of Control

The Company has entered into Change of Control Severance Agreements with certain named executive officers

Pursuant to these agreements if an executives employment is terminated within two years following change of

control other than termination by the Company for cause or by reason of death or disability or if the executive

terminates his or her employment in certain circumstances defined in the agreement which constitute good reason

in addition to the benefits listed under the heading Payments Made Upon Termination

the named executive officer will receive lump sum severance payment ranging from 1.5 to 2.99 times the

sum of the executives base salary and the average annual bonus either discretionary or performance-based

as reflected in the Bonus and Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation columns of the Summary

Compensation Table respectively earned by the executive pursuant to incentive compensation plans

maintained by the Company in the three prior fiscal years

all stock options held by the executive will automatically vest and become exercisable and

Mark Swatek

Chief Executive Officer

Cheryl Clary

Former Chief Officer
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the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan benefits for the named executive officer are determined using

the preferred crediting rate regardless of years of plan participation

Generally pursuant to the agreements change of control is deemed to occur

if any person or group acquires 50% or more of the Companys voting securities other than securities

acquired directly from the Company or its affiliates

if majority of the directors as of the date of the agreement are replaced other than in specific

circumstances

in the event of merger or other reorganization or business combination in which voting control of the

Company changes hands or if there is sale of all or substantially all of the Companys assets or

in the event of liquidation or dissolution of the Company

The completion of the merger would constitute change of control under these agreements and therefore if the

named executive officers employment is terminated under the circumstances described above within two years of the

completion of the merger then the named executive officer would be entitled to the lump sum severance payment
and other benefits described above

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON POST TERMINATION AS OF DECEMBER 31 2009

Mark Swatek President and Chief Executive Officer

Executive Payments Benefits Upon
Termination/COC

Severance
Vested and Unvested Stock Options2
Unvested Restricted Stock3
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

Disability Benefit Plan4
Death Benefit Plan Insured Benefits5

401k Plan Company Contributions

Vacation Entitlement

280G Scaleback6
__________________________________________________________________________

Total
__________________________________________________________________________

Cheryl Clary Former Chief Financial Officer

Executive Payments Benefits Upon
Termination/COC

Severance1
Cobra benefits for one year

Vested and Unvested Stock Options2

Unvested Restricted Stock3

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

Disability Benefit Plan4
Death Benefit Plan Insured Benefits5

401k Plan Company Contributions

Vacation Entitlement

280G Scaleback6 ______________________________________________________________________________

Total

Change-of-Control Termination Death Disability

$1345500

757554

$112500
$750000

38427 $38427 38427 38427
45876 45876 45876 45876

119363
$2067994 $84303 $834303 $196803

Change-of
Controt71

Termination8 Death Disability

$682801 $273500
21073

325486

26913
29238

$682801 $676210
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David Stanton Former Chief Operating Officer and CFO

Executive Payments Benefits Upon
Termination/COC

Change-of-Control Termination9 Death Dusability

Severance1
Vested and Unvested Stock Options2
Unvested Restricted Stock3
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

Disability Benefit Plan4
Death Benefit Plan Insured Benefits5

401k Plan Company Contributions

Vacation Entitlement

280G Scaleback6

Total

Charles Profilet Managing Director Texas Utilities

Executive Payments Benefits Upon
Termination/COC

Severance
Vested and Unvested Stock Options2
Unvested Restricted Stock3
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

Disability Benefit Plan4
Death Benefit Plan Insured Benefits5

401k Plan Company Contributions

Vacation Entitlement

280G Scaleback6

Total

$29072
31052

$60124

Michael Quinn Managing Director Western Utilities

ExŁcütive Payments Benefits Upon
Termination/COC

Severance1
Vested and Unvested Stock Options2
Unvested Restricted Stock3
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

Deferred Compensation Plan

Disability BØneuit Plan4
Death Benefit Plan Insured Benefits5

401k Plan Company Contributions

Vacation Entitlement

280G Scaleback6

Total

186660 $186660 $186660 $186660
63375

750000
87852 87852 87852 87852
52647 146331 146331 146331

166080
$1005690 $420843 $1170843 $484218

NEO will receive lump sum severance payment ranging from 1.5 to 2.99 times the sum of the executives base salary plus
the average annual bonus earned by the executive pursuant to corporate incentive compensation plans in the three prior

fiscal years

Options are assumed cashed out at each options intrinsic value assuming SouthWest Waters stock closing price of $5.89 on

December 31 2009 Since all NEO putstanding options are under water at this price i.e the strike price is greater than the

market price the value at December 31 2009 is zero

Represents full value of restricted shares at the Companys stock closing price of $5.89 on December 31 2009 However

using the per share value of $11.00 Merger Consideration included in the Merger Agreement detailed in Item under the

caption Definitive Merger Agreement the value of the unvested restricted stock on December 31 2009 for Messrs

Change-of-Control Termination Death Disability

$385598

41772

2911 $2911 $2911 $2911
63346

750000
26429 26429 26429 26429
18149 18149 18149 18149

$474859 $47489 $797489 $110835

Change-of-Control Termination

$802815

41795

Death Disability
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Swatek Profilet and Quinn would equate to $1414787 $78012 and $78056 respectively Restricted shares may or may
not vest at the discretion of the CO Committee

Represents payments by the Company of 90 days of salary prior to disability insurance coverage

Payout of Company-paid life insurance of times annual base salary up to $750000
Under the executives Change of Control Severance Agreement if payments are subject to excise taxes imposed under IRC

Section 4999 the executives Change of Control Payments and other severance benefits under this Agreement shall be

reduced by this amount

Change of Control Payment would only be payable to Ms Clary if change of control transaction is completed by one year

from her termination date or July 2010
Effective April 24 2009 Ms Clary no longer served as Chief Financial Officer and resigned from the Company effective July

2009
Effective January 25 2010 Mr Stantons employment with the Company terminated

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table provides information on SouthWest Waters the non-employee directors compensation who served

during fiscal year ended December 31 2009

Change of Pension

Non-Equity Value

Incentive Plan Nonqualified All Other

Fees Earned Stock Option Compen- Deferred Compen
or Paid Awards Awards sation Compensation sation5

Name1 in Cash $2 $34 $34 Earnings Total

Kimberly Alexy6 22295 44300 66595

Frederick Christie7 102750 345 103095

Bruce Edwards8 22087 44300 66387

Linda Griego9 64500 345 64845

Donovan 104500 22116 345 126961

D.Huennekens10
Thomas Iino11 90750 345 91095

William iones12 95375 345 95720

Geoffrey Ketcham 13 3000 3000

Maureen Kindel14 59000 345 59345

Richard Newman15 55750 345 56095

Mark Swatek the Companys Chief Executive Officer and President is not included in this table because he is an

employee of the Company and receives no compensation for his service as director

The fees for non-employee directors include an annual retainer of $24000 fee of $1500 per Board meeting

$1000 per Compensation and Organization Nominating and Governance and Special Committee meetings and $1500 per

Audit Committee meeting annual retainer of $5000 for the chair of both the Compensation and Organization and the

Nominating and Governance Committees and $10000 for the chair of the Audit Committee an annual fee of $12000
for the Lead Director received in October 2009 the Lead Director position was changed to Chairman of the Board and

received an annual fee of $25000 and the chair of the Special Committee received one-time retainer of $5000 and

each committee member received one-time retainer $2500
non-employee director receives an initial option grant of 10000 shares of the Companys common stock when he or she

becomes director In 2008 each director additionally received Restricted Stock Award for 2756 shares which vests

50% per year over years Fair market value is determined as the closing price of the Companys stock on the NASDAQ on

the date of grant if not otherwise determined by the CO Committee In 2009 the two new directors Kimberly Alexy and

Bruce Edwards received only the initial stock option grant of 10000 shares None of the directors was awarded restricted

stock in 2009

Figures reflect the grant date fair value calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 For more detailed information

including valuation assumptions refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data

Represents dividends paid

As of December 31 2009 Ms Alexy had total of 10000 outstanding stock options Ms Alexy joined the Board in August

2009
In October 2009 Mr Christie was appointed Chairman of the Board As of December 31 2009 Mr Christie had total of

51925 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from restricted stock awards

As of December 31 2009 Mr Edwards had total of 10000 outstanding stock options Mr Edwards joined the Board in

August 2009
As of December 31 2009 Ms Griego had total of 22025 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards

10 As of December 31 2009 Mr Huennekens had total of 51925 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards
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11 As of December 31 2009 Mr 1mb had total of 10000 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards

12 As of December 31 2009 Mr Jones had total of 44575 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards

13 As of December 31 2009 Mr Ketcham had no outstanding stock options or restricted stock awards Mr Ketcham served on

our Board from October 2008 until his resignation for personal reasons in January 2009

14 As of December 31 2009 Ms Kindel had total of 51925 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards

15 As of December 31 2009 Mr Newman had total of 51925 outstanding stock options and 1378 unvested shares from

restricted stock awards

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

None of the members of our Compensation and Organization Committee are or have been an employee or officer of

the Company During fiscal 2009 no member of the Compensation Committee had any relationship with us requiring

disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K During fiscal 2009 none of our executive officers served on the

Compensation Committee or equivalent or board of another entity whose executive officers served on our

Compensation Committee or Board

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The CO Committee of the Company has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required

by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with management and based on such review and discussions the CO Committee

recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

THE COMPENSATION AND ORGANIZATION COMMITTEE

Kimberly Alexy Chairperson

Frederick Christie

Linda Griego

Donovan Huennekens

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following information is as of December 31 2009 and shows plans under which shares of SouthWest Waters

common stock may be issued

Number of securities to Number of securities

be Weighted-average available for future

issued upon exercise of exercise price of issuance

outstanding options outstanding options under equity

warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation DiansPlan Category

Equity Incentive Plan approved by Stockholders

the EIP 1360782 $11.59 798263

Employee Stock Purchase Plan approved by

stockholders the ESPP 585062

Equity compensation plans not approved by

stockholders1 143581 $6.23

Total 1504363 1383325

Represents warrants issued to consultants as compensation for their participation in the Companys purchase of the City of

West Covinas water distribution system and facilities in 2000 The warrant are currently exercisable terminate in 2014

and contain certain anti-dilution rights

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP TABLE

The following table provides information concerning the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 28

2010 for each director and nominee for director of the Company ii each executive officer named in the

Summary Compensation Table in Item 11 and iii all directors including nominees and executive officers as
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group Except as otherwise noted to our knowledge the named individual or their family members have sole voting

and investment power with respect to the securities beneficially owned by the Stockholder

We calculate beneficial ownership by including shares owned in each directors or named executive officers name or
by any member of his or her immediate family Also in calculating the percentage ownership we count securities

which the director or named executive officer could purchase within 60 days of April 28 2010 such as exercisable

stock options that are listed in separate column as outstanding securities No director or named executive officer

owns shares of our preferred stock

Total Shares

of
Common Stock Stock and Percentage

Exercisable Exercisable of

Name of Beneficial Owner Options Options Class

SW Merger Acquisition Corp 2700000 2700000 9.8%

245 Park Avenue Second Floor

New York NY 10 1674

BlackRock Inc 1438647 1438647 5.2%

40 East 52nd Street

New York NY 100223

Directors

Kimberly Alexy5
Frederick Christie 41675 44575 86250

Bruce Edwards5
Linda Griego 7756 22025 29781
Donovan Huennekens 130460 44575 175035
Thomas lino 2756 10000 12756
William Jones 6989 44575 51564
Maureen Kindel 10423 44575 54998
Richard Newman 84796 44575 129371

Named Executive Officers

Mark Swatek 140379 100000 240379
Cheryl Clary 3556 3556
David Stanton 767 767

Charles Profilet 7357 9000 16357
Michael Quinn 39383 72537 111920
All Directors and Executive Officers

as Group 14 476927 436437 912734 33%

Represents less than l% of the outstanding shares as of April 28 2010

Includes shares held directly or in joint tenancy shares held in trust by broker bank nominee or other indirect means over

which the individual has voting or shared voting and/or investment power
Includes options that become exercisable within 60 days of April 28 2010
Based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed on January 29 2010
Based on information contained in Schedule 13D/A filed on March 23 2010 As disclosed in such filing SW Merger

Acquisition Corp Parent may be deemed to be member of group within the meaning of Section 13d3 of the

Exchange Act that includes WAM TRF Master Fund Cayman LP Cayman Islands limited partnership the WAM
Stockholder Water Investment Advisors Cayman Ltd Cayman Islands exempted company the WAM General

Partner Matthew Diserio an individual Mr Diserio Disque Deane Jr an individual Mr Deane and together

with WAM WAM Stockholder WAM General Partner and Mr Diserio the WAM Investors IIF Subway and hF Water

Manager LLC Delaware limited liability company hF GP and together with hF the hF Investors and collectively with

the WAM Investors the Investors WAM Stockholder WAM General Partner and the hF Investors are the direct or

indirect owners of Parent WAM is the investment manager of WAM Stockholder Parent privately acquired an aggregate of

2700000 shares of our common stock on March 16 2010 the Purchased Stock as described under Summary of the

Merger Long-Term Infrastructure Investment WAM Stockholder previously acquired 1173969 shares of our common
stock in the public markets Parent expressly disclaimed beneficial ownership of any of the shares of our common stock

that may be beneficially owned by the Investors other than the Purchased Stock All of the information set forth in this

footnote relating to Parents beneficial ownership of our common stock is based upon the information contained in the

previously referenced Schedule 13D/A

Appointed to the Board August 10 2009
Ms Clary ceased serving as Chief Financial Officer on July 2009
Mr Stanton ceased serving as Chief Financial Officer on January 25 2010

26
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ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The Company is required by law and generally accepted accounting principles to disclose to investors certain

transactions between the Company and related party related party would include director nominee for director

executive officer certain stockholders and certain others As part of the process in determining its disclosure

obligations the Company circulates questionnaire to each director nominee for director executive officer and other

persons who the Company believes could be related party containing questions calculated to discover the existence

of related party transaction The Company also conducts such other investigations as it deems appropriate under

the circumstances

Our Code of Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers states that our executive officers and directors including their

family members are charged with avoiding situations in which their personal family or financial interests conflict with

those of the Company The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving all related person transactions between

the Company and any directors or executive officers The Compensation and Organization Committee reviews

compensation related transactions with directors or executive officers such as salary and bonus Any request for us

to enter into transaction with an executive officer or director or any such persons immediate family members or

affiliates must be presented to the Board for review and approval In considering the proposed agreement the Board

will consider the relevant facts and circumstances and the potential for conflicts of interest or improprieties

No director nominee executive officer or any member of their family had any indebtedness to the Company any

business relationship with the Company or any transaction with the Company in 2009 No director nominee
executive officer or any member of their family at any time during the past three years has been employed by any

entity including charitable organization that has made payments to or received payments from including

charitable contributions the Company for property or services in an amount which in any single fiscal year exceeded

the greater of $1 million or 2% of the other entities consolidated gross revenues reported for that fiscal year

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Based on information solicited from each director in the form of an annual questionnaire and upon the advice and

recommendation of the Companys Nominating and Governance Committee the Board has determined that each of

the current directors except the President and Chief Executive Officer Mr Swatek has no material relationship with

SouthWest Water either directly or as partner Stockholder or officer of an organization that has relationship with

the Company and is independent within the meaning of the director independence standards as currently in effect

The NASDAQ independence definition includes series of objective tests such as the director is not an employee of

the Company and not engaged in various types of business dealings with the Company Furthermore the Board has

determined that each of the members of the Audit Compensation and Organization and Nominating and Governance

Committees has no material relationship with SouthWest Water directly or as partner stockholder or officer of an

organization that has relationship with the Company and is independent within the meaning of NASDAQs
director independence standards

Independent director sessions of non-employee directors are held at each regularly scheduled Board meeting The

sessions are chaired by an independent director selected by the Board from time to time Any director can request

that an additional independent director session be scheduled

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

FEES PAID TO INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was the Companys independent accountant for the fiscal years ending December 31
2008 and 2009 The following table shows the fees billed to SouthWest Water for audit arid other services provided

by the accountant during those two years in thousands

Fiscal Fiscal

Fee Category 2009 Fees 2008 Fees

Audit Fees $1991 $8000
Audit Related Fees 159

Tax Fees 34

All Other Fees

Total Fees $2154 $8000
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Audit Fees 2008 audit fees include $2.1 million incurred for prÆfessional services rendered in connection with the

2008 audit of the annual conolidated financial statements for the audit of internal controls under Section 404 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the review of the quarterly condensed consolidated financial statements included in the

Companys Form 10-Q and $5.9 million for the audit fees associated with the 2008 restatement of the Companys
consolidated financial statements for 2007 and 2006

Audit Related Fees Consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the

performance ofthe audit or review of SouthWest Waters consolidated financial statements and are not reported under

Audit Fees These services include additional internal contrdl assessriients related to information technology and

merger transaction due diligence support

Tax Fees Consist of fees billed
for professional services for tax consulting and advice

Audit Committee Pre-ApprovÆlof Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Accountants

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services provided by the independent accountants The

Audit Committee has adopted policy regarding the pre-approval of services provided by the independent

accountants Under the policy pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is

subject to specific budget The Audit Committee may deldgate pre-approvthl authority to one or more of its

members

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

The consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules filed with this report are included in

separate section at end ofthis report and are listed in an Index on page F-i

EXHIBIT LISTING

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of SouthWest.Water Company dated May 24 2005 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended

June 30 2005.
3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of SduthWes Water Company incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed onMay 22 2008
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of SouthWest Water Company dated August 20 2009 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.2 included in the .Companys Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on

September 18 2009
4.1.1 Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust between Suburban Water Systems and U.S Bank National

Association formerly First Trust of CalifOrnia N.A dated October 1986 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.3 included in the Companys Form10-K for the year ended December 31 1986
4.1.2 First Amendment and Supplement to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust between Suburban

Water Systems and U.S Bank National Association formerly First Trust of California N.A dated

February 1990 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2A included in the Companys Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 1989
4.1.3 Second Arrendment and Supplement to Indenture of Mortgage andDeed of Trust between Suburban

Water Systems and U.S Bank National Association formerly First Trust of California N.A dated

January 24 1992 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2B included in the Companys Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 1991
4.1.4 Third Amendment and Supplement to Indenture of Mortgage dated October 1996 between

Suburban Water Systems and U.S Bank National Association formerly First Trust of california N.A

incorporated by reference tO Exhibit 4.2C included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1996
4.1.5 Fourth Amendment and Supplement to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust between Suburban

Water Systems and U.S Bank NationalAssociation formerly First Trust of California N.A dated

October 19 2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1E included in the Companys Form 10-K for

the year ended December 31 2004
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4.1.6 Fifth Amendment and Supplement to Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust between Suburban
Water Systems and U.S Bank National Association dated October 20 2006 incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1.6 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30
2006

4.2 Bond Purchase Agreement dated February 20 1992 for Suburban Water Systems incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3A included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
1991

4.3 Bond Purchase Agreement dated October 21 1996 for Suburban Water Systems incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3B included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
1996

4.4 Bond Purchase Agreement dated October 19 2004 for Suburban Water Systems incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004

4.5 Bond Purchase Agreement dated October 20 2006 for Suburban Water Systems incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

4.6 Bond Purchase Agreement dated December 15 2004 for New Mexico Utilities Inc incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004

4.7 Indenture dated at July 20 2001 between SouthWest Water Company and Chase Manhattan Bank and

Trust Company as Trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit included in the Companys
Registration Statement of Form S-3 Amendment No File No 333-63196 filed with the

Commission on July 13 2001
4.10.1 SouthWest Water Company 2006 Equity Incentive Plan incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.13.1

included in the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-134575 filed with the

Commission on May 31 2006
4.10.2 SouthWest Water Company 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Notice of Restricted Stock Award and

Restricted Stock Agreement incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.13.2 included in the Companys
Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-134575 filed with the Commission on May 31
2006

4.10.3 SouthWest Water Company 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Notice of Restricted Stock Unit Award and

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.13.3 included in the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-134575 filed with the Commission on

May 31 2006
4.10.4 SouthWest Water Company 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement incorporated by

reference as Exhibit 4.13.4 included in the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-8 File

No 333-134575 filed with the Commission on May 31 2006
4.10.5 SouthWest Water Company 2006 Equity Incentive Plan SAR Agreement incorporated by reference as

Exhibit 4.13.5 includedin the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-8 File No 333-134575
filed with the Commission on May 31 2006

10.1.1 Form of Employee Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Second Amended and Restated

Stock Option Plan as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit biB included in the Companys
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003

10.1.2 Certificate of Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan dated May 2003

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1B1 included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31 2003

10.2.1 Certificate of Amendment for Option Plan fr Non-Employee Directors dated May 13 2004

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 included in the Companys Form b0-Q for the quarter ended

June 30 2004
10.2.2 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors

as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the

quarter ended June 30 2004
10.3 Amended and Restated Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan dated April 2005

incorporated by reference to the Companys Form S-3/A Registration Statement filed with the

Commission on April 2005
10.4 Deferred Compensation Plan dated January 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6

included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004
10.5 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated May 2000 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7

included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004
10.6 Not Used

10.7.1 Amended and Restated Master Loan Agreement dated September 12 2005 MLA No RX 0936
between Monarch Utilities L.P and CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 included

in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2005
10.7.1.1 First Amendment of Amended and Restated Master Loan Agreement MLA No 0936 dated

November 2006 between Monarch Utilities L.P and CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to
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Exhibit 10.17.1.1 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006
10.7.2 Promissory Note and Supplement dated May 2002 Loan No ML0936T1 between Tecon Water

Company L.P now Monarch Utilities L.P and CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4.1 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarterended September 30 2005
10.7.3 Promissory Note and Supplement dated May 2002 Loan No ML0936T2 between Tecon Water

Company L.P now Monarch Utilities L.P and CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.4.3 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2005
10.7.4 First Amendment to Promissory Note and Supplement dated September 12 2005 Loan

No ML0936T2 between Monarch Utilities L.P formerly known as Tecon Water Company L.P and

CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4.4 included in the Companys Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended September 30 2005
10.7.5 Promissory Note and Supplement dated September 12 2005 Loan No RX0936T3 between Monarch

Utilities L.P and CoBank ACB incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4.5 included in the

Companys Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2005
10.8 Official Statement for $31555000 of San Juan Basin Authority Lease Revenue Bonds Ground Water

Recovery Project Issue of 2002 containing descriptions and summaries of various documents relating

to the project including the Service Contract for the Design Construction Financing and Operation of

the San Juan Basin Desalter Project by and among ECO Resources Inc SouthWest Water Company
and the Capistrano Valley Water District Orange County California dated at September 2002.

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 included in the Companys Form 10-K forthe year ended

December 31 2002
10.9.1 Investors Rights Agreement dated February 25 2000 among SouthWest Water Company and the

investors named therein incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.1 included in the Companys
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

10.9.2 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated October 2003 from SouthWest Water Company to

Guaranty Trust Co TIFE FBO William McIntyre Jr covering 30000 shares of common stock of

SouthWest Water Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.2 included in the Companys
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

10.9.3 Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated October 2003 from SouthWest Water Company to

William.L McIntyre Jr covering 18837 shares of common stock of SouthWest Water Company

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24.3 included in the Companys Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2005
10.10 Executive Employment Agreement dated April 17 2006 between Mark Swatek and SouthWest

Water Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed

with the Commission on April 18 2006
10.11 Executive Emplpyment Agreement dated April 28 2006 between Cheryl Clary and SouthWest

Water Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed

with the Commission on May 2006
10.12 Change of Control Agreement dated April 28 2006 between Cheryl Clary and SouthWest Water

Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed with the

Commission on May 2006
10.13 Executive Employment Agreement dated April 28 2006 between Michael Quinn and SouthWest

Water Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed

with the Commission on May 2006
10.14 Change of Control Agreement dated April 28 2006 between Michael Quinn and SouthWest Water

Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed with the

Commission on May 2006
10.15 Change of Control Agreement dated at May 15 2006 between SouthWest Water Company and

Mark Swatek the Companys Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 included in the Companys Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 19

2006
10.16 Lease Agreement effective December 28 2007 between the Company as lessee and Fidelity National

Capital Inc as lessor incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 included in the Companys Form 8-K

filed with the Commission on January 2008
10.17 Credit Agreement dated at February 15 2008 among the Company as borrower the several lenders

parties thereto Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent Swing Line Lender and Letter of

Credit Issuer Banc of America Securities LLC as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Book Manager Keybank
National Association as Syndication Agent and CoBank ACB U.S Bank National Association and

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A as Documentation Agents incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

included in the Companys Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 22 2008
10.17.1 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 19 2008

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.1 included in the Companys Form 10-K filed with the
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Commission on July 2009
10.17.2 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 28 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.2 included in the Companys Form 10-K filed with the

Commission on July 2009
10.17.3 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 17 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.3 included in the Companys Form 10-K filed with the

Commission on July 2009
10.17.4 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 2009 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.17.4 included in the Companys Form 10-K flied with the Commission on

July 2009
10.17.5 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 31 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.5 included in the Companys Form 10-Q filed with the

Commission on August 2009
10.18 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 2010 by and among SouthWest Water Company SW

Merger Corp and SW Merger Sub Corp incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 included on the

Companys Form 8-K filed with the Commission on March 2010
12 Computation of Earnings to Fixed Charges Ratios

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereto duly authorized

SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY REGISTRANT

By Is/MARK SWATEK
Mark Swatek

Chief Executive Officer and President

Date March 15 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By /s/ FREDERICK CHRISTIE By /s/ WILLIAM JONES

Frederick Christie William Jones

Director and Chairman Director

By is THOMAS IINO By Is MAUREEN KIN DEL

Thomas lino Maureen Kindel

Director Director

By /s/ LINDA GRIEGO By /s/ RICHARD NEWMAN
Linda Griego Richard Newman

Director Director

By is DONOVAN HUENNEKENS By /5/ MARK SWATEK

Donovan Huennekens Mark Swatek

Director Chief Executive Officer and President

Principal Executive Officer

By is BRUCE EDWARDS By Is/ BEN SMITH

Bruce Edwards Ben Smith

Director Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer

By /s/ KIMBERLY ALEXY By

Kimberly Alexy

Director

Date March 15 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SouthWest Water Company

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all material respects the
financial position of SouthWest Water Company and its subsidiaries at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America In addition in our opinion the financial statement
schedules listed in the accompanying index present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein when read in

conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements Also in our opinion the Company did not maintain in all material
respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO because
material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting related to its control environment la the adherence to

generally accepted accounting principles ib the complement of resources ic the completeness and accuracy of business
documentation its monitoring of controls its risk assessments its accounting policies and application of generally
accepted accounting principles the recording of journal entries the completeness and accuracy of key spreadsheets and
system-generated reports the completeness and accuracy of the accounting for acquisitions the completeness and

accuracy
of our accounting estimates related to self-insurance the completeness and accuracy of the accounting for the impairment of

goodwill 10 the completeness and accuracy of its accounting for regulated entities 11 the completeness and accuracy of stock-
based compensation 12 the completeness and accuracy of property plant and equipment and related depreciation expense 13
the completeness and accuracy of unbilled revenues 14 the completeness of the recording of accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 15 the completeness accuracy and valuation of revenue recognition 16 the completeness accuracy and valuation of

deferred tax assets and liabilities 17 segregation of duties for manual wire transfers existed as of that date material weakness
is deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting such that there is reasonable possibility
that material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on timely basis The
material weaknesses referred to above are described in Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A We considered these material weaknesses in determining the nature timing and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the December 31 2009 consolidated financial statements and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Companys
internal control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements The Companys
management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for

its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in managements report referred to above
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements on the financial schedules and on the Companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining
on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of

internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the
risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to

the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and iii provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that
could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles California

March 15 2010
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
In thousands except per share data 2009 2008

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2874
Accounts receivable net 26968
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12909

Total current assets
42751 57711

Property plant and equipment net 313716 427458

Other assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other assets
_____

Total assets
400095 527207

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Current portion of long-term debt

Other current liabilities

__________ __________

Total current liabilities
37514 46722

Other liabilities and deferred credits

Long-term debt less current portion

Deferred income taxes

Advances for construction

Contributions in aid of construction

Other liabilities and deferred credits

Commitments and contingencies See Note 10

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value per share 250 shares authorized shares issued and

outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value per share 75000 shares authorized 24887 and 24897
shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders equity 115914 113800

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 400095 527207

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

1112
29697
26902

16434
2966

17652
3459

_2Q7

14130
2171

21213

16139
2213

28370

190578

23750
8910

117113

26334

458

152820
13100
8784

53841
18122

458

249

148407

33200

249

147775

34794
112
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

199957

14857
8115

_224 929

196385

14299
27103

237787

181252

11177
4839

197268

Operating income loss
Other income expense

Interest expense

Interest income

Other net

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Provision for benefit from income taxes

Income loss from continuing operations
Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax

Net income loss
Preferred stock dividends

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders 4049 31941 1565

Earnings loss per common share
Basic

Income loss from continuing operations
Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders

0.57
0.74

0.17

1.13
0.18
1.31

0.06
0.13

0.07

Diluted

Income loss from continuing operations

Income loss from discontinued operations

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders

0.57
0.74

0.17

1.13
0.18
1.31

0.06
0.13

0.07

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

In thousands except per share data

Operating revenue

Operating expenses
Operations and maintenance

Depreciation and amortization

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets

Total expenses

Years Ended December 31
2009

211093

2008

$2P7 204807

11836 27130

9856
190

8402
520

7539

7717
629

64

387

1836

21502 35012
7468 7417

14034 27595 1449
18101 4322 3038

4067
18

31917
24

1589
24

24604 24446 24101
24604 24446 24101

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LOSS

Comprehensive income

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Amortization of actuarial net gain

Amortization of prior service costs

Comprehensive income

Dividend reinvestment and stock purchase

plans

Common stock issuance from stock options

exercised

Tax benefit from stock options exercised

Share-based compensation

Debenture conversions

Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock$2.67 per share

Common stock$0.23 per share

Additional

of Paid-in

Amount Shares Amount Capital

458 23802 238 $138577

1589

44
57

1602

2779

767

131

1000
529

24 24
5625 5625

BalanceDecember 31 2007 458 24268 243 143778 2190 85 146754

Comprehensive income loss

Net loss

Other comprehensive income

Amortization of actuarial net gain

Comprehensive loss

Dividend reinvestment and stock purchase

plans

Common stock issuance from stock options

exercised

Post-vest cancellations of non-qualified

stock options

Share-based compensation

Debenture conversion

Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock$2.67 per share

Common stock$0.20 per share

227 2503

112 315

73
286 1211

41

31917

27 27

31890

2505

316

73
1214

41

24 24
5043 5043

BalanceDecember 31 2008 458 24897 249 147775 34794 112 113800

Comprehensive income loss
Net income

Other comprehensive income

Amortization of actuarial net gain

Comprehensive loss

Common stock issued through the

employee stock purchase plan

Post-vest cancellations of non-qualified

stock options

Restricted stock awards cancelled and

repurchased

Share-based compensation
Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock$2.00 per share

Common stock$0.10 per share

BalanceDecember 31 2009

4067

112 112
3955

51

275

18
874

18 18
2455 2455

$458 24887 $249 $148407 $33200 $115914

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

In thousands except per share data

BalanceDecember 31 2006

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Number Number
of

Shares
__________ __________ ________

Retained

Earnings

Accumulated

Deficit

6250

1589

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income

Loss Total

72 $145595

44
57

216 2777

172 765

131

27 1000
51 528

31917

4067

11 51

275

21 18
874
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31
In thousands 2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations

Net income loss 4067 31917 1589
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operating

activities

Loss income from discontinued operations net of tax 18101 4322 3038
Depreciation and amortization 14857 14299 11177
Deferred income taxes 5967 7803 895
Provision for doubtful accounts 1858 2038 299

Share-based compensation expense 874 1214 1000
Post-vest cancellations of non-qualified stock options 275 73
Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets 8115 27103 4839

Other net 57 854 731

Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions

Accounts receivable 75 2919 153

Other current assets 1550 2851 595

Prepaid expenses and other assets 3849 2216 269
Accounts payable

193 205 2181
Other current liabilities 1363 70 4825
Other liabilities and deferred credits 966 1128 1461
Other net 33 38

Net cash provided by operating activities 14617 6457 21764

Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations

Additions to property plant and equipment 16516 32135 29834
Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 23406 8294
Proceeds from sales of businesses 54849 2219
Proceeds from sales of land and equipment 159 49

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 38492 53313 38079

Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations

Borrowings under revolving credit facility 35700 153000 40500

Repayments under revolvin credit facility 59200 106000 25500
Capital improvement reimbursements 2977 3013 3924
Proceeds from share-based equity incentive plans and stock purchase plans net of

repurchases 33 2821 3546

Contributions in aid of construction 18 885

Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised net of post-vest cancellations 131

Dividends paid 3102 5901 5562
Payments on long-term debt and capital leases 14335 2265 2540
Deferred financing cost payments 2755 532
Repayment of advances for construction 658 555 841

Net cash used in provided by financing activities J41340 43599 14543

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Operating activities 9610 3302 4555

Investing activities 291 1517 5292
Financing activities 106 366 1165

Net cash provided by used in discontinued operations 10Q21 1419 428

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1762 1838 1344
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1112 2950 4294

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2874 1112 2950

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

F-6



SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE BUSINESS BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business

SouthWest Water Companys principal business activities are owning operating and maintaining water and

wastewater infrastructure Unless context indicates otherwise references to we us our the Company or

SouthWest Water mean SouthWest Water Company and its subsidiaries The Company provides broad range of

operations maintenance and management services including water production treatment and distribution

wastewater collection and treatment customer service and utility infrastructure construction management The

Company owns regulated water and wastewater public utilities and also serves cities utility districts and private

companies under operating contracts Our owned utilities are defined as the Utilities segment except for those in

Texas which are reported as separate operating segment Texas Utilities because they have different economic

characteristics This is primarily because the Texas Utilities segment is not recovering its cost of service including

reasonable return on equity as we have made large asset investments not yet being recovered through customer

rates Our contract operations are segmented by contract type into larger stand-alone operations OM Services

and those that are small full service contracts operated by common team of personnel that allocates portion of

each cost center to each client Texas MUD Services SouthWest Water was incorporated in California in 1954 and

reincorporated in Delaware in 1988

On March 2010 we entered into an agreement and plan of merger the Merger Agreement with SW Merger

Acquisition Corp Parent and SW Merger Sub Corp direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent Merger Sub
Parent and Merger Sub are entities controlled by institutional investors advised by J.P Morgan Asset Management

hF and Water Asset Management L.L.C WAM Under the terms of the Merger Agreement all of our

outstanding common stock would be converted into right to receive $11.00 per share in cash The completion of

the Merger is subject to customary closing conditions including stockholder and regulatory approvals

If the Merger Agreement is adopted by our stockholders and all closing conditions are met we will be the surviving

corporation of the merger and wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Upon completion of the Merger our common

stock will cease to be traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market and we will no longer be publicly held

corporation The Merger Agreement contains restrictions on our operations prior to the closing of the Merger

including restrictions related to capital expenditures the incurrence of debt acquiring and disposing of assets

entering into material contracts and capital transactions

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement we also executed binding letter of intent the Binding

Letter with Parent hF and WAM collectively the Investor under which the Investor is to purchase 2.7 million

shares of our common stock at purchase price of $6.00 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $16.2 million

the PIPE Investment The board of directors approved the terms of the agreement for the PIPE Investment on

March 12 2010 The PIPE Investment is subject to the final execution of mutually acceptable definitive agreements on

terms consistent with those set forth in the Binding Letter The Investor will be entitled to certaih rights in connection

with the PIPE Investment including the appointment of designee to serve on our board of directors

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SouthWest Water and its wholly-owned subsidiaries All

significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated except where permitted for intercompany

transactions involving our regulated utilities as further described in Regulated Utility Accounting

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions The reported amounts of assets and

liabilities disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period could be affected by both changes in those estimates

and actual results We have prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements under the rules of the

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
Certain amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the present year presentation Specifically the 2008

and 2007 consolidated statements of operation and cash flows were revised to conform to our 2009 presentation of

continuing and discontinued operations see Note Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions

Additionally cash provided by operating and financing activities previously reported for 2008 and 2007 have been
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

adjusted by $0.8 million and $0.1 million respectively to correct differences between dividends declared and paid for

each period

Regulated Utility Accounting

Our regulated utilities are subject to regulation by the public utility commissions of the states in which they operate

the Regulators These Regulators have allowed recovery of certain costs and required refund of certain credits

which the Company has recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities In accordance with utility accounting as

prescribed by Accounting Standards Codification ASC 980 costs and credits on the balance sheet are deferred as

regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that future revenue or expense in an amount at least equal to the

capitalized cost or credit will result from inclusion of those costs or credits in allowable costs for ratemaking purposes

Except for income taxes regulatory assets are excluded from the Companys rate base and do not earn return

although as approved by the regulators we accrue interest on the net regulatory balance at the 90 day commercial

paper rate for future surcharging/surcrediting customers In the event that the assessment as to the probability of the

inclusion in the rate-making process changes the associated regulatory asset or liability would be adjusted to reflect

the change in assessment or change in regulatory approval

Two of our Alabama wastewater utilities in the Utilities segment wholesale water business within the Texas Utilities

segment and wholesale wastewater business sold in December 2008 do not meet the criteria for utility accounting

because the rates charged by these entities are not established by or subject to approval by an independent third-

party regulator Also two of our utilities in the Texas Utilities segment do not meet the criteria for utility accounting

as their cost structures do not currently allow full recovery of cost of service

Our remaining utilities in both the Utilities and the Texas Utilities segments meet the ASC 980 utility accounting

criteria Their regulatory assets and liabilities form part of our other long-term assets see Note Other Assets or

other long-term liabilities see Note Other Liabilities respectively The resulting regulatory assets and liabilities

are shown in the following table

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008

Regulatory assets

Regulatory tax assets 4432 4369
Supply cost balancing account 7274 2836
ARO regulatory asset 117 114

WRAM 93 196
Regulatory other 1064 1791

12980 8914
Regulatory liabilities

Regulatory tax liability 255 337
LIRA 638 219
Residential houseline 313
Removal cost 606 487
Regulatory refunds and other 43 1010

1855 20
Net regulatory assets $11125 $6861

Regulatory income tax assets are included in rate base Regulatory income tax liabilities reduce the rate base

As permitted by the California Public Utilities Commission CPUC our California utility maintains water supply cost

balancing accounts Balancing accounts track differences between non-controllable costs authorized in rates and

recorded costs and defers those amounts for future surcharge or surcredit to customers Deferred amounts are

charged or credited to customers over 12 to 36 month period once approved by and in accordance with the terms of

the CPUC advice The supply cost balancing accounts track differences between the cost per unit charged by

providers of supply items purchased water purchased power and pump taxes and the cost per unit for those items

provided for in our rates Under-collections recorded as regulatory assets occur when the recorded costs per unit

exceeds costs per unit in rates and conversely over-collections recorded as regulatory liabilities occur when the

recorded cost per unit is less than the cost per unit in rates Typically under-collections or over-collections when

they occur are tracked in the supply cost balancing accounts for future recovery or refund through surcharge in the

event of an under-collection or through surcredit in the event of an over-collection on customers bills We accrue
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

interest on our supply cost balancing accounts at the rate prevailing for 90-day commercial paper established by the

cPuC

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 approximately $5.7 million $1.5 million and $1.7 million of

net under-collections including interest respectively were recorded in the water supply cost balancing accounts

Amortization of surcharges that are in rates to recover under-collections from customers also decreased the water

supply cost balancing accounts as applicable During the year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

approximately $1.2 million $1.3 million and $0.9 million of surcharges excluding interest were billed to customers

which reduced under-collections in the water supply cost balancing accounts

As of December 31 2009 the water supply cost balancing accounts have approximately $7.3 million in net cost

under-collections Currently there are surchargØs in place expiring on December 31 2010 to recover approximately

$1.2 million of this net under collection The remaining $6.1 million will be included fOr recovery in future filing

Effective August 2008 with the adoption of the Monterey-style Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism WRAM we

began recording the difference between inclining block quantity rates which are the tariff rates approved by the

CPUC and equivalent uniform rates also established by the CPUC Differences are recorded as an adjustment to

revenue with an offsetting entry in the WRAM balancing account which is either regulatory asset or liability and

represents amounts that will be billed or refunded to customers in the future

The balances in the WRAM asset and liability accounts will fluctuate on monthly basis depending upon the mix of

customer usage among the inclining rate blocks and the variance between adopted and actual results We accrue

interest on the WRAM at the rate prevailing for 90-day commercial paper When the WRAM amount reaches two

percent of the approved revenue requirement whether positive or negative the CPUC allows us to file an advice letter

to request the recover or amortization of the balance in the account Account balances less than those levels may be

refunded or collected in our general rate case proceedings or appended to future requests for recovery or refund For

the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 approximately $0 million of under-collections including interest

and $0.2 million of over-collections respectively were recorded in the WRAM accounts

The low income ratepayer assistance LIRA memorandum account captures the net cost of this program which

provides monthly credits to qualifying low income customers and also related monthly charges to non-qualifying

residential customers Also all revenue net of expenses associated with the non-tariff LifeLine houseline maintenance

program is deferred in memorandum account pending resolution of the CPUCs current affiliated transactions

rulemaking

Billings in advance for the cost of asset removal required by normal maintenance and repair of the water system are

recorded as liability prior to the commencement of construction

The regulatory other category includes costs associated with ratecªse filings that are recoverable through the rate

making process At December 31 2008 $1.0 million of regulatory other assets related to an escrow account

established in 2008 with approval of the New Mexico Public Regulation Commission to accrue sewer fees charged to

customers but were subject to litigated dispute between the Company and its wastewater treatment service

provider This regulatory asset was part of the net assets sold in the disposition of our New Mexico utility in 2009 See
Note Acquisition Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions Also in 2008 $0.6 million cost of developing NMUI

water diversion rights that was previously considered probable for recovery was expensed based upon negative

finding by the granting authority

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liqUid investments withan original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equivalents

Property Plant and Equipment

The cost of additions to regulated utility plant includes labor material and capitalized interest Capitalized interest

totaled $0.1 million in 2009 $0.3 million in 2008 and $0.8 million in 2007 Depreciation expense on utility plant is

recorded using the straight-line method over useful lives primarily ranging from five to fiftyyears primarily using the

composite method of depreciation as prescribed by the applicable regulatory authorities Depreciation expense on

average gross depreciable plant was 3.7% in 2009 3.8% in 2008 and 3.2% in 2007 Upon retirement at our
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

California utility the cost of the property net of salvage value is charged to accumulated depreciation in accordance
with regulatory utility accounting For the other utilities and service businesses any gains and losses resulting from
retirements are recorded in the results of operations in the period of the retirement

Property plant and equipment used in non-regulated operations are depreciated using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives ranging from two to forty years Maintenance costs are recognized in the period in which they
are incurred The Company utilizes the direct expensing method for planned major maintenance projects Under this

method all costs associated with planned major maintenance are expensed as incurred

Valuation of Goodwill and Long-Lived and Intangible Assets

We assess finite-lived intangible assets and other long-lived assets excluding goodwill for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable through the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows resulting from the use of the assets If it is determined that the carrying value of

intangible assets or other long-lived assets may not be recoverable the impairment is measured by using the
projected discounted cash-flow method

We test goodwill for impairment annually as of October 31 or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate

carrying values may not be recoverable We evaluate goodwill for impairment using discounted cash flow

methodologies transaction values for comparable companies and other valuation techniques for its reporting units
with goodwill balances

We use two-step impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill
impairment loss to be recognized if any for.each of the Companys reporting units The step calculation used to

identify potential impairment compares the estimated fair value for each of the Companys reporting units to their

respective net carrying values book values i.ncluding goodwill on the measurement date If the fair value of any
reporting unit is less than itscarrying value step of the impairment test is required to measure the amount of the

impairment loss if any

The step calculation of the impairment test compares the implied fair value of the goodwill to the carrying value of

goodwill for each reporting unit The implied fair value of goodwill represents the excess of the estimated fair value of
each reporting unit above.the fair value of the reporting units identified assets and liabilities If the carrying value of

goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodwill for the reporting unit an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess not to exceed the carrying value of goodwill for that reporting unit The determination of

the fair value of the reporting unit and the fair value of its assets and liabilities is performed as of the measurement
date using observable market data before and after the measurement date if that subsequent information is relevant

to the fair value on the measurement date

The estimated fair value of the Companys utilities and service business units is based on combination of the

following valuation techniques

Valuation levels of comparable publicly-traded companies and

Discounted cash flow models developed from the Companys internal forecasts

The comparable publicly-traded companies technique applies average peer company revenue and EBITDA multiples to
the Companys utility and service business units historic and forecasted revenue and EBITDA The peer company
multiples are calculated using market prices of comparable equity securities of publicly-traded water utilities and
service companies

The second valuation technique forecasts each reporting units five-year cash flows using an estimated long-term
growth rate and discounts these cash flows at their respective estimated weighted average cost of capital

In conjunction with the step calculation we also reconcile the difference between the calculated market

capitalization and the aggregate carrying value of the reporting units to ensure that any excess is supportable by
relevant market information We make certain assumptions which we believe to be appropriate that support this
reconciliation We consider in addition to the listed trading price of the Companys shares the applicability of
control premium to the Companys shares and certain other factors we may deem appropriate As result we may
conclude that the Companys fair value exceeds what we might otherwise have concluded had we relied on market

price alone
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SOUTHWEST WATER COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Identifiable finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
ranging from three to thirty-four years

Other Assets

Deferred financing costs are amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the related debt

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Companys revolving credit facility and long-term debt with aggregate book values of $155.0 million and
$192.8 million had fair values of approximately $145.5 million and $196.4 million at December 31 2009 and 2008
respectively The estimated fair values are based on current rates for similar issues for debt of the same remainingmaturities The carrying value of all other financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximates fair value because of the short maturity of the instruments AtDecember 31 2009 the Company had no derivative financial instruments hedging activities financial instruments
with off-balance sheet risk or financial instruments with concentrations of credit risks requiring accounting or
disclosure

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in order to
recognize future tax effects attributable to differences between the financial statement assets and liabilities and their
respective tax basis as well as the recognition of operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are recovered or settled The effect of change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the period that the change occurs

Liabilities are recorded for more likely than not income tax assessments based on estimates of potential tax related
exposures Accounting for these assessments requires significant judgment as uncertainties often exist with respect to
existing tax laws new interpretations of existing laws and rulings by taxing authorities Differences between actual
results and assumptions or changes in assumptions are recorded in the period they become known

Our California regulated utility recorded additional deferred income taxes as regulatory assets and liabilities because
recovery/refund of these amounts is expected to be allowable in future rates by the CPUC In addition investment tax
credits have been deferred and are amortized over the estimated productive lives of the related assets as allowed bythe Regulator

Advances for Construction and Contributions in Aid of Construction

Developers builders governmental agencies and municipalities contribute property or cash to extend our water andwastewater service to their properties For ratemaking purposes these contributions in aid of construction CIAC
generally serve as rate base reduction since they represent non-investor supplied funds We depreciate utility plantfunded by contributions and amortize the CIAC balance as reduction to depreciation expense producing resultwhich is functionally equivalent to reducing the original cost of the utility plant for the contributions Advances for
Construction are contributed property or cash which is refundable for limited periods as new customers begin to
receive service or other contractual obligations are fulfilled Advances which are no longer refundable are reclassified
to CIAC

Revenue Recognition

Water utility revenue is recognized when water is delivered to customers including an estimate for revenue not yetbilled at period end caused by cycle billing during the month At December 31 2009 and 2008 $4.8 million and$4.8 million respectively of estimated unbilled regulated operations revenue was recorded representing customerwater usage revenue since the previous billing cycles and estimates of revenue earned on work completed but not yetbilled

Revenue for contract operations are recognized and billed at the end of the month based on monthly fee for servicesas outlined in each contract The Company generally bills for additional services provided beyond the basic scope of
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the contract on time-and-materials basis as such services are rendered At December 31 2009 and 2008 the $8.9
million and $8.5 million respectively of estimated unbilled non-regulated operations revenue was recorded primarily

representing contractual base fee revenue and estimates of time material revenue earned on work completed but not

yet billed

Asset Retirement Obligations

We record the fair value of the legal liability for asset retirement obligations ARO associated with our wells and

other regulated utility infrastructure Amounts recorded as asset retirement obligations are subject to various

assumptions and determinations such as determining whether legal obligation exists to remove assets and

estimating the fair value of the costs of removal when final removal will occur and the credit-adjusted risk-free

interest rates to be utilized on discounting future liabilities Changes that may arise over time with respect to these

assumptions will change amounts recorded in the future Estimating the fair value of the costs of removal were
determined based on third party costs

When the liability is initially incurred we capitalize the cost of the ARO by increasing the carrying amount of the

related long-lived asset We accrete the liability to its estimated future obligation and the capitalized cost is

depreciated over the useful life of the related asset Upon the assets retirement and the settlement of the ARO any
difference between the cost to retire the asset and the liability recorded is recognized as gain or loss in the

consolidated statement of operations

Removal Costs

When Regulator approves billings in advance for the cost of removal of assets required by the normal on-going
maintenance and repair of the water system we meet the accounting requirements concerning regulated operations
and recognize regulatory liability for financial reporting purposes only for the difference between removal costs

collected in rates and actual costs incurred

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share measures the performance of the Company over the reporting period by dividing net income

applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the

period Diluted earnings per share gives effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that would have been

outstanding if those shares had been issued We have stock options and warrants outstanding that give rise to

potentially dilutive common shares We also have convertible subordinate debentures outstanding that are convertible

into common stock When the assumed conversion of the debentures has dilutive effect on earnings per share the

debentures will be included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share after adjusting net income for the after-tax

effect of the debenture interest expense

Accounting Adjustments Impacting Other Periods

For the quarter ended December 31 2009 we recorded net of tax expense of $0.2 million related to prior periods
This adjustment relates primarily to the disposition of unbilled service orders

We recorded net of tax expense of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31 2009 related to prior periods The
adjustment relates primarily to our accounting estimates for self-insurance

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We only discuss recent accounting pronouncements that will or could have significant effect on our financial

statements or disclosures currently or in the near term

On January 2009 we adopted new accounting guidance as issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB which originally included delay in the effective date of fair value accounting for all nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities by one year except those recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on

recurring basis The adoption of this accounting guidance did not have material impact on our consolidated financial

statements
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On January 2009 we adopted new accounting guidance for the determination of the useful life of intangible assets

as issued by the FASB The new guidance amends the factors that should be considered in developing the renewal or

extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset The new guidance also

requires expanded disclosure regarding the determination of intangible asset useful lives The adoption of this

accounting guidance did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

During the second quarter of 2009 we adopted new accounting guidance related to subsequent events as issued by

the FASB The new requirement establishes the accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance

sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued See Basis of presentation
included above The adoption of this accounting guidance did not have material impact on our consolidated financial

statements

During the third quarter of 2009 we adopted the new ASC as issued by the FA$B The Accounting Standards

Codification ASC has become the source of authoritative U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP
recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities The ASC is not intended to change or alter

existing GAAP The adoption of the ASC did not have material impact on our consolidated financial statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance related to the disclosure requirements for fair value

measurements and provides clarification for existing disclosures requirements More specifically this update will

require an entity to disclose separately.the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Levels and fair value

measurements and to describe the reasons for the transfers and information about purchases sales issuances

and settlements to be presented separately i.e present the activity on gross basis rather than net in the

reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs Level inputs This guidance
clarifies existing disclosure requirements for the level of disaggregation used for classes of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value and requires disclosure about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value

for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements using Level and Level inputs The new disclosures

and clarifications of existing disclosure are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2009 except for the

disclosure requirements related to the purchases sales issuances and settlements in the rollforward activity of Level

fair value measurements Those disclosure requirements are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15
2010 We do not believe the adoption of this guidance will have material impact to our consolidated financial

statements

NOTE ACQUISITIONS ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisitions

During the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 we acquired several regulated utilities and non-

regulated businesses All of the acquisitions were accounted for as business combinations and the assets acquired and

liabilities assumed have been recorded at their estimated fair values with the difference between the aggregate

purchase price and the fair value of the identifiable net assets recorded as goodwill Our consolidated financial

statements reflect the financial position and results of operations of the acquired utilities and businesses subsequent

to their respective acquisition dates The acquisitions are summarized below

On January 31 2008 we acquired substantially all of the assets of wastewater collection system and related

treatment plant in Birmingham Alabama The total purchase price was $23.4 million in cash which we borrowed

under our revolving line of credit The assets acquired consisted of $20.9 million of utility plant and $2.5 million of

land

During 2007 we acquired

substantially all of the assets of small water and wastewater collection utility in northern Mississippi

all of the common stock of two water utilities in an area northwest of San Antonio Texas

substantially all of the assets of wastewater collection and treatment system located in north of Huntsville

Alabama and
substantially all the assets of service business

The aggregate purchase price for these acquisitions was $8.3 million in cash plus $0.9 million of liabilities assumed

Utility plant totaling $5.1 million and goodwill totaling $4.1 million were recorded The acquisitions were funded with
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borrowings under our revolving line of credit These acquisitions are not material either individually or in the

aggregate to our consolidated financial statements

Dispositions and Assets Held for Sale

New Mexico Utilities Inc

As part of settlement of eminent domain proceedings against our New Mexico utility New Mexico Utilities Inc

NMUI we completed the sale of NMUI in May 2009 We received $53.9 million in cash at closing $60.0 million

settlement and $0.9 million net cash settlement primarily related to accounts receivable less $7.0 million retained by

the condemning entity in settlement of previously disputed sewer treatment fees and recorded gain of $26.2

million net of $0.1 million of transaction costs The sale reflects $107.2 million reduction in assets of which $103.5

million were property plant and equipment offset by reduction in liabilities of $79.5 million which includes $69.0

million of contributions in aid of construction The results of operations and cash flows for NMUI are reflected as

discontinued operations for all periods presented As of December 31 2008 the net assets held for sale which

consisted of related property plant and equipment were approximately $10.4 million

Texas wholesale water and waste water

During 2007 the Company committed to plan to sell its wholesale water and wastewater operations in Texas In

December 2008 the Company completed the sale of its wholesale wastewater business for net cash proceeds of

$2.2 million and note receivable of $0.6 million The wastewater operating results have been included in

discontinued operations for all periods presented In 2009 we decided not to sell the wholesale water component of

the business accordingly the business activity of the water component has been included in consolidated continuing

operations for all periods presented

Discontinued Operations

The following table summarizes the results of operations of the Texas wastewater and NMUI operations included in the

consolidated statement of operations as discontinued operations

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

4729 10858 10704

Expenses

Operating expenses

Impairment of good will and long-lived assets ______________

Total expenses
2884 17197 7311

Operating income loss
Other income expense

Interest expense

Interest income

Other net

Income loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Income tax provision benefit

Income loss before gain on sale of discontinued operations

Gain on sale of discontinued operations net of tax of $9363

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax

1845 6339 3393

281 768 756
12

95 52

1564 7004 2701

258 2682 337

1306 4322 3038

16795
18101 4322 3038

Impairment charges related to discontinued operations aggregating $0.1 million all related to property plant and

equipment were recorded in 2008 and $0.7 million of goodwill was recorded in 2007 to reduce the carrying value of

the long-lived assets to expected realizable value

Interest expense reflects interest on debt relating to these operations and costs and expenses exclude the allocation

of general corporate overhead

In thousands

Operating revenue

2884 17103 6633
94 678
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Southwest Environmental Laboratories Inc

In April 2009 we sold certain assets of our Southwest Environmental Laboratories Inc SWEL part of the Texas
MUD Services segment for $0.5 million cash and up to an additional $0.8 million consisting of 25% of the buyers
quarterly sales subsequent to the closing Subsequent to the sale $0.4 million of the contingent payments have been

paid leaving remaining balance of $0.4 million as of December 31 2009 We also sold the remaining real property
for $0.7 million through the issuance of note receivable The sold operations were not considered discontinued

operation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements since SWEL continues to provide services to us

NOTE CURRENT ASSETS

Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for receivables deemed uncollectible based on

managements periodic review of past due or delinquent accounts Generally such losses have been within

managements expectations Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $2.2 million and

$2.1 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008
Deferred income tax asset 4338 $19619
Prepaid and accrued expenses 3437 5161
Income tax receivable 2910
Inventory 1248 1274
Other receivables 373 145

Other 603 703
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets $12909 $26902

NOTE PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment recorded at cost consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008

Regulated utilities

Land and land rights 8889 9081
General plant 22180 14401
Transmission and distribution 393855 495144
Construction work-in-progress 4999 24778

Total cost 429923 543404
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 128305 139661
Net regulated utilities 301618 403743

Non-regulated operations

Property and equipment 23348 22741
Construction work-in-progress 45 9829

Total cost 23393 32570
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 11295 8855
Net non-regulated operations 12098 23715

Net property plant and equipment 313716 427458

Depreciation and amortization expense for regulated utility property plant and equipment was reduced by the

amortization of contributions in aid of construction totaling $3.5 million $3.6 million and $3.3 million in 2009 2008
and 2007 respectively
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Certain expenditures relating to the development of software for internal use are capitalized Property and equipment

at December 31 2009 includes $2.9 million of capitalized software costs $4.2 million net of accumulated

amortization of $1.3 million

In October of 2008 the Company postponed elements of its Cornerstone internal-use software development project

Based on the postponement it was determined that it was not probable that the implementation of certain software

modules would be completed As result impairment charges aggregating $1.3 million were recorded in 2008 against

the costs capitalized in construction work-in-progress In May 2009 the Company based on additional information

determined that it was not probable that the implementation of the remaining uncompleted software modules would

be completed and recorded an additional charge of $8.0 million during the year ended December 31 2009

Substantially all of the Companys utility property plant and equipment as well as assets under capital leases are

pledged as collateral for various long-term debt obligations see Note Long-Term Debt

NOTE OTHER ASSETS

Goodwill

The table below summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment see Note 15

Segment Information during the two years ended December 31 2009

Texas

Texas MUD 0M
In thousands Utilities Utilities Services Services Total

Balance December 31 2007 $2787 $24988 8188 7312 43275

Impairment of goodwill 452 24988 25440
Other adjustments

134 49 183

Balance December 31 2008 2335 8054 7263 17652

Dispositions 904 264 1168
Other adjustments ________

99 49 50
Balance December 31 2009 $1431 7691 7312 16434

The Company has acquired several businesses during 2007 and 2008 and prior periods all of which were accounted

for as business combinations see Note Acquisitions Asets Held for Sale and Dispositions As result the assets

acquired and liabilities assumed have been recorded at their estimated fair values with the difference between the

aggregate purchase price and the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired recorded as goodwill Other

adjustments to goodwill resulted primarily from the sale of assets and from tax related adjustments to correct

purchase accounting amounts previously recorded As described in Note Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and

Dispositions we sold NMUI and SWEL in 2009 Included in the assets sold were $0.9 million of goodwill related to

NMUI and $0.4 million related to SWEL

In accordance with the policy described in Note Business Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies the Company tests goodwill for impairment at the reporting segment level annually or when

events or circumstances indicate the carrying values may be impaired

As of October 2009 we performed our annual assessment of goodwill and concluded that no adjustment for

impairment was warranted However there can be no assurances that the Company will not be required to recognize

an impairment of goodwill in the future due to market conditions or other factors related to the Companys

performance These market events could include decline over period of time of the Companys stock price

decline over period of time in valuation multiples of comparable water utility and service companies the lack of an

increase in the Companys market price consistent with its peer companies or decreases in control premiums

decline in the forecasted results in our business plan such as changes in rate case results or capital investment

budgets or changes in our interest rates could also result in an impairment charge Recognition of impairment of

significant portion of goodwill would negatively affect the Companys reported results of operations and total

capitalization and the ability to maintain compliance with debt covenants and meet expectations of our regulators

During annual impairment testing at October 31 2008 global market events including the credit market crisis

resulted in declines in valuation multiples of comparable water utilities and decline in the Companys stock price
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These combined factors led to lower estimated fair market value for all of the Companys segments Discounted cash

flows models were updated based upon the current expectations of future period performance and consideration for

past performance The discount rate was adjusted for Texas Utilities from lO% in 2007 to ll% in 2008 The discount

rate was adjusted for Utilities from 8.5% in 2007 to 11% in 2008 The discount rate was adjusted for MUD Services

from 125% in 2007 to 16% in 2008 The discount rate was adjusted from 11.5% in 2007 to 16% in 2008 for OM
Services The increase in all discount rates reflects the factors that are commonly considered in determining

premiums including risks related to financial projections access to capital markets and litigation/regulatory risk

among others In addition the discount rates were higher related to the general cost of capital increase associated

with both debt and equity markets The higher discount rates in the service related business units as compared to the

utilities business units can generally be attributed to the less secure nature of service revenue contracts as compared
to the nature of the more stable revenue from the utilities

Based on updated projections and the impacts of the market conditions the Company impaired the entire

$25.0 million of goodwill associated with the Companys Texas Utilities and another $0.5 million of goodwill associated

with the Companys Alabama utilities in 2008

On December 31 2008 the Companys stock price was trading at 52-week low point Dueto the continued decline in

the Companys stock price and the stock price of many of its peers1 the Company performed an impairment test as of

this date but no additional impairment was identified

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets of $3.0 million and $3.5 million net of $7.8 million and $7.6 million of accumulated amortization at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively include purchased contracts acquired customer relationships and

covenants not to compete and are amortized on straight-line basis overestimated useful lives ranging from three to

thirty-four years Intangible assets amortization expense was $0.4 million $0.4 million and $0.8 million for the years
ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Estimatedfuture annual amortization expense for all

identifiable intangible assets with finite useful lives for the five-year period ending December 31 2014 is as follows

Intangible

Assets

Amortization

In thousands Expense
Year ending December 31

2010 347
2011 280
2012 139
2013 57

2014 57

Other Long-Term Assets

Other long-term assets consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008
Regulatory assets 12980 8914
Deferred financing costs net 4064 2666
Investments in Company-owned life insurance policies 3296 3214
Self insurance deposits 759 1155
Other 3129 78

Total other long-term assets 24228 20927

To assist in funding the liabilities related to its supplemental executive retirement plan and deferred compensation

liabilities the Company has invested in corporate-owned life insurance policies Note 14 Employee Benefit Plans
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NOTE LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt balances consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008

Revolving credit facility 74500 98000
6.85h convertible subordinated debentures due 2021 11839 11962

Capital leases 3138 4332
Term Loans

Monarch Utilities Inc Monarch
7.37% fixed rate term loan due 2022 9497 10267
5.77% fixed rate term loan due 2021 654 706

6.10% fixed rate term loan due 2031 20000 20000
First Mortgage Bonds

Suburban Water Systems
9.09% series first mortgage bond due 2022 8000 8000
5.64% series first mortgage bond due 2024 15000 15000
6.30% series first mortgage bond due 2026 10000 10000

New Mexico Utilities Inc
6.10% series first mortgage bond due 2024 12000

Economic Development Revenue Bonds

6.0% series 1998A due 2018 1690 1810
Acquisition-related indebtedness and other 78 78

Total long-term debt payment obligations 154396 192155
Unamortized Monarch term loan fair value adjustments 595 636

Total long-term debt 154991 192791
Less current portion of long-term debt 2171J 2213

Long-term debt less current portion 152820 190578

Revolving Credit Facility

In February 2008 we replaced our previous revolving line of credit by entering into credit agreement with several

lenders including Bank of America as lender and Administrative Agent KeyBank CoBank U.S Bank JPMorgan Chase

Bank Comerica Bank Bank of the West Citibank and Union Bank of California the Bank Group The credit

agreement initially provided for $150.0 million revolving credit facility Proceeds from the initial borrowing under the

credit agreement were used to repay borrowings under the Companys prior $100.0 million revolving line of credit

We pay commitment fees under the facility and must maintain customary financial ratios prescribed cash flow results

and meet other restrictive covenants We were not in compliance with certain covenants due to our failure to timely

file our September 30 2008 March 31 2009 and June 30 2009 Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and 2008 Annual

Report on Form 10-K In addition we were in violation of our debt-to-capitalization ratio at December 31 2008 and

at March 31 2009 However we received amendments from the Bank Group which waived existing and anticipated

defaults primarily granting additional time to complete our financial filings and waiving the debt-to-capitalization ratio

for the periods of non-compliance The May 28 2009 amendment also reduced the credit amount available under the

line to $110.0 million secured the facility with substantially all assets of the Company not previously encumbered

and significantly increased our borrowing margins Fees and expenses charged by the Bank Group for all the

amendments were $3.3 million of which $2.8 and $0.5 million were incurred during the years ended December 31
2009 and 2008 respectively These fees were capitalized and are being amortized over the remaining life of the

facility which extends through February 2013

Borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at our option based on either margin over the designated LIBOR

rate or the prime rate If our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 60% or lower the applicable margins are 4.0O% over the

LIBOR rate and 3.OO% over the prime rate As of December 31 2009 our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 58%
therefore the applicable margins are 4.00% over the LIBOR rate and 3.00% over the prime rate The margins decline

on sliding scale as our debt-to-capitalization ratio improves The weighted average interest rates excluding bank

amendment and waiver fees on all credit facility borrowings outstanding were 4.30% and 1.58% at Oecember 31
2009 and 2008 respectively
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As of December 31 2009 we had irrevocable standby letters of credit in the amount of $3.7 million issued and

outstanding under our revolving credit facility and our available borrowing capacity was $31.8 million

Convertible Subordinated Debentures

We had $11.8 million of 6.85% convertible subordinated debentures issued and outstanding at December 31 2009

compared to $12.0 million at the end of the prior year The debentures are convertible at the option of the holder

into shares of the Companys common stock at conversion price of $11.018 per share and are convertible at any

time prior to maturity During the year ended December 31 2009 no debentures were converted into shares of

common stock However during the year ended December 31 2008 debentures in the aggregate principal amount of

$0.04 million were converted into 4172 shares of common stock At December 31 2009 all of the debentures

outstanding are convertible into 1.1 million shares of common stock and have an antidilutive effect on the

computation of earnings per share

The debentures are unsecured general obligations of the Company are subordinated to all existing and future secured

and senior debt and are due on July 2021 with interest payable quarterly The Company may redeem the

debentures at any time in whole or in part at redemption price of 100% of the face value

Capital Lease Facility

In December 2007 we entered into $30.0 million equipment leasing line of credit for an initial term of one year with

automatic annual extensions until terminated by either party Leases under the agreement have five-year term from

each lease commencement date are structured as capital leases and are secured by the leased assets The lease rate

is based on the three-year treasury rate in effect on each lease commencement date At December 31 2009 and

2008 the Companys outstanding balances under this line were $2.8 million and $3.7 million respectively The

weighted-average annual interest rate of all capital lease obligations outstanding was 5.3% and 5.3% at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

As part of the Amended Credit Agreement we have agreed to utilize only up to an additional $12.5 million under this

capital lease facility

We have also entered into other lease agreements that have been classified as capital lease arrangements
Outstanding balances under such lease arrangements aggregated $0.3 million and $0.6 million at December 31 2009
and 2008 respectively with effective annual interest rates ranging from 4.30% to 5.40%

Term Loans

When we acquired Monarch Utilities in 2004 we assumed two fixed-rate term loans due through 2022 As the loans

were at interest rates generally higher than the then prevailing market rates the carrying value of the acquired loans

was increased by $1.2 million to fair value and the difference is being amortized as reduction of interest expense
over the remaining loan term The remaining unamortized fair value adjustment is $0.6 million at both December 31
2009 and 2008 and is included in long-term debt

The loans are secured by substantially all of the assets of Monarch Monarch is subject to the maintenance of certain

financial ratios and other restrictive covenants Monarch was in compliance with all covenants at the year ended
December 31 2009 with the exception of certain timely filing requirements for which waivers were granted

First Mortgage Bonds

Interest on our first mortgage bonds is payable semiannually and they may be redeemed at any time prior to maturity
at par plus call premium Additional mortgage bonds may be issued subject to the provisions of the mortgage bond

indentures and revolving credit facility Substantially all of the utility plants of Suburban Water Systems Suburban
were pledged as collateral for these bonds The mortgage bond indentures limit the amount of cash and property
dividends that Suburban may pay to the parent company Dividends have averaged between $5.0 million to

$5.6 million per year and are less than the aggregate cumulative dividend restriction threshold by $23.4 million as of

December 31 2009 We were in compliance with or had obtained waivers for all loan agreement covenants during the

year ended December 31 2009
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As discussed in Note Acquisitions Assets Held for Sale and Dispositions on January 29 2009 Settlement

Arbitration Award and Acquisition Agreement was executed whereby certain of the assets pledged as collateral of the

New Mexico Utilities Inc first mortgage bonds were sold On May 2009 the proceeds from the sale were used to

repay the entire $12.0 million balance outstanding at December 31 2008

Economic Development Revenue Bonds

Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $1.7 million are due in 2018 and bear annual interest at 6.0% payable

semi-annually and are secured by wastewater treatment plant assets Annual principal payments commenced in 2009

and continue in increasing amounts until maturity

Aggregate Maturities

Total annual maturities of the revolving credit facility and debt outstanding at December 31 2009 are as follows

In thousands

Year ending December 31
2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015 and thereafter

Total annual maturities

Unamortized fair market value adjustment to acquired term loans

Total long-term debt

NOTE OTHER LIABILITIES

Other Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities and deferred credits consist of the following

Annual

Maturities

2171
2004
1909

75477
983

71852

154396
595

154991

In thousands

Accrued salaries wages and benefits

Purchased water accrual

Customer deposits and deferred revenue

Self insurance liabilities

Accrued interest payable

Franchise and other taxes payable

Taxes payable

NMUI sewer fee settlement

Insurance premiums payable

Dividends payable

Other

Total other current liabilities

December 31
2009 2008

5615 4926
5840 3356
2375 2408
1954 1956
1536 1434
1341 1470

653

7054
1451

628

1899 3687

21213 28370
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Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008
Deferred revenue 4062 3465
Self insurance liabilities 2555 2178
Deferred rent expense 2055 1302
Regulatory liabilities 1855 2053
Deferred compensation plan obligations 1889 2684
Capital improvement reimbursements 607 9816
Other 5099 4836

Total other long-term liabilities 18122 26334

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records obligations for the fair value of the legal liability for asset retirement obligations associated with

its wells and other infrastructure Amounts recorded as asset retirement obligations are subject to various

assumptions and determinations such as determining whether legal obligation exists to remove assets and

estimating the fair value of the costs of removal when final removal will occur and the credit-adjusted risk-free

interest rates to be utilized on discounting future liabilities Changes that may arise over time with regard to these

assumptions will change amounts recorded in the future Estimating the fair value of the costs of removal were

determined based on third party costs

When the liability is initially incurred we capitalize the cost of the ARO by increasing the carrying amount of the

related long-lived asset We accrete expense and adjust the liability to its present value periodically and the

capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset Because retirement costs for our utilities assets

have been recovered through rates prior to the time of retirement we defer any timing differences between rate

recovery and depreciation expense as either regulatory asset or regulatory liability

The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the asset retirement

obligations which is included in Other Long-Term Liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31
2009 and 2008

In thousands Total

Obligation at December 31 2007 1472
Liabilities settled in 2008

Accretion 89

Obligation at December 31 2008 1552

Liabilities incurred in 2009 93

Liabilities settled in 2009 260
Accretion 84

Obligation at December 31 2009 1469

Lease Exit Costs

As discussed in Note Property Plant and Equipment in October 2008 the Company postponed elements of its

Cornerstone internal-use software development project At the same time the leased facilities used for the

Cornerstone project implementation were vacated and the Company recorded related liability the balance of which

was $0.5 million at December 31 2009 This liability represents the remaining fair value of lease obligations for this

exited location determined as of the cease-use date of that facility net of estimated sublease income that could be

reasonably obtained in the future and will be paid out over the remaining lease term the last of which ends in

September 2012 Projected sublease income is based on managements estimates which are subject to change
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NOTE INCOME TAXES

The components of income before taxes are as follows

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

$21502 $35012
1564 7004

26170
6232 42016 __________

The components of the provisions for income taxes benefits are as follows

In thousands

Current

Federal

State

Total current

Deferred

Federal

State

Total deferred

Change in valuation allowance

Change in regulatory assets and liabilities net

Investment tax credit amortization

Total provision benefit for income taxes

Allocation of total provision benefit for income taxes

Income tax benefit

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Tax applied to gain oh condemnation of water

assets

Net provision benefit for income taxes

3082
892 ___________ ___________

2190 ___________ __________
433

797

24 ___________ __________
2153 ___________ __________

7468 $7417 $1836
258 2682 337

9363
2153 10099 1499

reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to our effective tax rate is as follows

Provision computed at statutory rates

Goodwill impairment charges not deductible for

tax purposes

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit

Other net

Effective tax rate

In thousands
Income loss before income taxes from

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Gain on condemnation of water assets

Income loss before income taxes

387

2701

3088

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

1126 736
117 175

12431 561

1793
454

2247

848
303

1151

452

49
1499

9290
878

10168

679

49
10099

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

34% 34% 34%

13 425

1_ 13

35% 21% 474%
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008
Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation 33552 27231
Section 1031 like-kind property exchange gain 763 813
Production cost balancing accounts 3075 1113
Gains on condemnation of water assets 10405 477
Other 311 787

Total deferred tax liabilities 48106 30421
Deferred tax assets

Goodwill and asset impairment charges 5513 5764
Contributions in aid of construction and advances for construction 1726 1782
Allowances and other reserves 5071 5933
Net operating loss carryforwards 22383 8552
Capital loss carryforwards 1424 1424
Share-based compensation 1638 1601
Investment tax credits 237 253
Deferred Revenue 1608 2083
Other 1595 322

Total deferred tax assets 41195 27714
Net deferred tax liabilities before valuation allowance 6911 2707
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 1851 1424

Net deferred tax liabilities 8762 4131

Balance sheet classification

Long-term deferred tax liabilities 13100 23750

Current deferred tax assets 4338 19619
Net deferred tax liabilities 8762 4131

At December 31 2009 we had federal and state operating loss carryforwards in the amount of approximately $59.1

million and $31.6 million respectively of which $0.4 million will benefit equity when realized

During 2005 we realized capital loss of $4.0 million on the sale of Master Tek which is reflected as discontinued

operation We were able to utilize $0.2 million of the capital loss in prior year to offset capital gains The remaining

$3.8 million of capital loss will be carried forward to future years to offset any future capital gains The capital loss

carryforward expires in 2010 The $3.8 million capital loss carryforward benefit has been fully offset by valuation

allowance at December 31 2009 because management does not believe It is more likely than not the Company will

generate future capital gains prior to the expiration date of the loss carryforward

Furthermore the Company has applied an additional $0.4 million of valuation allowance This amount is related to

losses in certain state jurisdictions that the Company believes to be unrealizable due to either exiting the state or

winding up operations in that state

Based upon the Companys current and historical pre-tax earnings management believes it is more likely than not

that the Company will realize the benefit of its remaining deferred income tax assets Management believes the

existing net deductible temporary differences will reverse during periods in which the Company generates net taxable

income However there can be no assurance that the Company will generate any earnings or any specific level of

continuing earnings in future years Management regularly reviews the recoverability of deferred income tax assets

and has determined that no additional valuation allowances are necessary at December 31 2009

The Company is subject to federal and various state and local income taxes Tax regulations within each jurisdiction

are subject to the interpretation of related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply The

Company is no longer subject to federal state and local income tax return examinations by taxing authorities for

years before 2004 The Companys federal income tax returns for the 2002 through 2004 tax years were examined by
the Internal Revenue Service The examination was concluded in February 2007 and resulted in no net change for the
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tax years examined State and local income tax returns from 2005 to the present and federal income tax returns from

2006 to the present are still subject to examinations by taxing authorities

The Company is amending certain federal and state income tax returns as result of the restatement in 2008 All

material adjustments including interest have been reflected in these financial statements

At December 31 2009 and 2008 we had no liabilities for uncertain tax positions that were material Our policy is to

record interest and penalties related to liabilities for uncertain tax benefits in the interest expense and operating

expense line items respectively of the consolidated statements of operations There were no material interest and

penalties incurred during the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

In January 2009 we reached settlement in proceedings against NMUI whereby we agreed to sell the NMUI business

in lieu of condemnation For income tax purposes the Company elected to treat the transaction as an involuntary

conversion under Section 1033 of the Internal Revenue Code which allows for tax deferral on the gain if we acquire

qualified replacement property by December 31 2011 We currently intend to acquire qualified replacement property

however there can be no assurance that we will successfully complete such an acquisition

NOTE STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue 250000 shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock of which 10373 shares are designated

Series Preferred Stock There are 9156 Series preferred shares issued and outstanding at both December 31

2009 and 2008 Each share is entitled to receive dividends of $2.625 per share per year Series preferred shares

may be redeemed by the Company at any time for $52.00 per share and have liquidation preference of $50.00 per

share

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue 75000000 $0.01 par value common shares of which 24.9 million shares are issued and

outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008 At December 31 2009 total of 3.3 million common shares are

reserved for issuance upon exercise of all outstanding warrants and stock options the conversion of the subordinated

debentures and stock purchase plans

Dividends

The Company declared cash dividends on its common stock of $2.5 million $5.0 million and $5.6 million for the

years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The current quarterly cash dividend rate is $0.05 per

share The Company will continue to review its ability to pay cash dividends and dividends may be declared at the

discretion of the Board of Directors depending upon among other factors the Companys growth results of

operations profitability and financial condition as well as other factors deemed relevant The dividend payments in

2009 represent return of capital and decrease to Additional Paid-in Capital as the Company is in an accumulated

deficit position resulting from operating losses incurred in 2008

On March 12 2010 we declared cash dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock and $0.65625 per share of

Series preferred stock The dividends will be paid on March 31 2010 to stockholders of record on March 22 2010

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan DRIP DSPP

We have dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan that gives common stockholders the option of receiving

their dividends in cash or in common stock at discount from prevailing market prices DRIP The plan also permits

existing stockholders to purchase additional common stock up to maximum of $10000 per month at discount

DSPP new investors may participate in the plan subject to $250 minimum initial investment The Company

may at its sole discretion permit purchases above the $10000 stated maximum The discounts may range from 0%
to 5% as determined from time to time by the Company The DRIP and DSPP discounts were last modified by the

Board of Directors in December 2006 at 5% for the DRIP and 0% for the DSPP However in November 2008 we

determined that participation in these plans should be suspended due to the Companys ineligibility to use its

Registration Statement on Form S-3 until 12 months after the Company is current in all SEC filings Though the

Company has been current in its SEC filings since November 2009 the Merger Agreement described in Note
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Business Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies effectively suspended the DRIP and

DSPP

At December 31 2009 there are 3.7 million shares authorized for issuance under the plan of which 0.7 million

shares remain available for issuance

Warrants

In 2000 we issued warrants to consultants as compensation for their assistance in connection with an acquisition At

December 31 2009 there are warrants to purchase 143581 shares of common stock outstanding and exercisable at

$6.23 per share and expire in 2014

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company leases equipment and office facilities under operating and capital leases that expire through 2026

Aggregate rental expense under all operating leases was $6.0 million $8.8 million and $8.5 million in 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively At December 31 2009 the future minimum commitments under existing non-cancelable capital

and operating leases are as follows

Operating Capital

In thousands Leases Leases

Year ending December 31
2010 4759 $1263
2011 3907 1112
2012 2997 962

2013 1922
2014 1201
2015 and thereafter 6729

Total minimum payments required 21515 3342

Less amounts representing interest 204
Total capital lease obligation 3138
Less current portion of capital lease obligation 1145

Long-term capital ease obligation net of current portion $1993

We lease most of our vehicles under fleet leasing arrangement Under this arrangement vehicles must be leased for

minimum of twelve months After the initial twelve month period vehicles may be returned to the lessor or the

lease may be continued on month-to-month basis Historically we have replaced our fleet every three years The

lease commitments in the table above include $4.1 million of vehicle lease commitments assuming an initial three-

year lease term for each vehicle

Water Supply Commitments

Three of our regulated utilities and our wholesale water entity have water supply contracts providing for the purchase

of water These agreements require us to purchase minimum quantities of water or capacity annually at specified

price In some cases the amount is subject to increases in future periods for production costs increases and may also

increase but not decrease if average actual usage exceeds specified amount At December 31 2009 the

estimated minimum annual purchase commitment for the agreements is $1.1 million in 2010 and increasing to $3.1

million in 2011 when new supply is estimated to be online Thereafter the range is estimated between $4.0 million

to $5.0 million through 2036 These commitments expire in 2037

Legal Proceedings

New Mexico Utilities Inc

NMUI one of the Companys wholly-owned regulated utilities had an agreement with the Albuquerque Bernalillo

County Water Utility Authority political subdivision of the State of New Mexico the ABCWUA whereby the
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ABCWUA treated the effluent from NMUIs wastewater collection system for fee The treated effluent is returned to

the Rio Grande Underground Basin creating return flow credits Return flow credits supplemented NMUIs existing

water rights enabling it to pump additional water from the basin

In August 2004 the ABCWUA increased the fee charged to NMUI using different formula than had been used to

calculate fee increases since 1973 The Company believed the increase violated the terms of 1973 written

agreement between the parties Subsequently the ABCWUA also claimed ownership of the return flow credits On

September 13 2004 the Company filed Complaint for Declaratory Judgment in the Second Judicial District Court

County of Bernalillo State of New Mexico the Court requesting that the Court settle these disputes

In addition on January 19 2007 the ABCWUA and the City of Rio Rancho home-rule municipal corporation as

Petitioners filed Petition for Condemnation against NMUI and others as defendants in the Court the Petition
The Petition sought to acquire by condemnation all of the assets of NMUI including all real property through the

stated power of eminent domain The Petition also alleged that the Petitioners need to acquire the NMUI assets for the

public purposes of providing water and wastewater services to NMUI customers and that the acquisition of NMUI is

necessary appropriate and in the public interest The Company contested the Petition

In October of 2008 the Company attempted to settle the sewer rate and return flow credit issues with an $8.0 million

cash offer The settlement offer was not accepted by ABCWUA

On January 29 2009 NMUI and the ABCWUA entered into Settlement Arbitration Award and Acquisition

Agreement the Agreement to resolve all outstanding claims demands and existing lawsuits between them Under

the Agreement the ABCWUA acquired certain of the assets of NMUI necessary for the ABCWUA to own operate and

maintain the water and wastewater system of NMUI in settlement of condemnation In consideration of the assets

acquired the ABCWUA agreed to pay to NMUI at the Closing as full final and complete consideration the sum of

$60.0 million ii an amount equal to the NMUI accounts receivable at the date of Closing and iii an amount

equal to the unbilled services at the date of Closing The Agreement closed on May 2009 the Closing

NMUI also received the right to customer billings previously placed into escrow The total amount received by the

Company on May 12 2009 from these escrow funds was $0.9 million

In addition the settlement resolves all other legal issues between NMUI and ABCWUA including the dispute over the

sewer fee the ABCWUA charged NMUI for the treatment of wastewater and the ownership of the return flow credits

from that treated wastewater as well as all other disputed amounts of the ABCWUA As part of the settlement NMUI

agreed to pay $7.0 million to the ABCWUA at the time of closing to resolve the sewer fee issue This amount was

accrued at December 31 2008

Net cash proceeds from settlement were $53.9 million and the resulting gain net of direct transactional costs of $0.1

million was $26.1 million Substantially all of the utility plant assets of NMUI were pledged as collateral for $12.3

million in first mortgage bonds with an original maturity of 2024 and related accrued interest We repaid these bonds

in full including accrued interest of $0.3 million The remaining cash proceeds of $41.6 million were used to pay the

balance of liabilities of NMUI and to pay down our revolving credit facility The sale reflects $107.2 million reduction

in assets offset by reduction in liabilities of $79.5 million which includes $69.0 million reduction in contributions in

aid of construction

Investigations

On May 18 2005 the Environmental Protection Agency EPA executed search warrant at our Texas-based testing

laboratory and on July 20 2006 the laboratory received subpoena to provide additional records and information to

grand jury We have cooperated fully with the EPAs investigation and have provided the records requested We

remain in close cooperation and coordination with both Department of Justice DOJ and EPAs counsel in an attempt

to resolve the matter favorably In April 2009 we submitted our formal request that the DO not pursue criminal

sanctions By letter dated November 10 2009 that request was granted Civil action by the Government is still

possible but the Company has not been made aware that any action will be pursued As result no amounts have

been accrued related to any possible civil fines penalties or liabilities

We received letter dated January 28 2008 from the California State Water Resources Control Board Office of

Enforcement the Board The letter indicates that the Board has conducted an investigation of the operations of one

of our subsidiaries with respect to various California wastewater treatment facilities which are operated but not
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owned by the subsidiary The Board alleges that the subsidiary has violated certain provisions of the California Water

Code and may be subject to civil administrative liability in excess of $15.0 million and possible administrative action

against the subsidiarys status as contract operator in California Since receipt of the letter we have conducted an

internal investigation and worked in cooperation with the Board to resolve the matter favorably We have reached

preliminary settlement requiring that we implement an acceptable compliance program and pay fines and penalties of

$0.8 million which we have accrued

Environmental Matters

Some of our groundwater sources for our California water utility have been affected by the presence of certain

groundwater Contaminants These contaminants consist mainly of chemicals disposed of by various industrial

companies in the 1940s and 1950s In 2001 and 2002 this contamination necessitated the shutdown of number of

our wells and we purchased replacement water at cost substantially higher than the cost of water pumped from our

own wells Prior to May 2002 these costs were recorded as operating expenses and reduced our operating income

In May 2002 settlement agreement was reached between some of the parties allegedly responsible for the

contamination Cooperating Respondents and certain water entities including our California water utility As

result of this settlement agreement we have received payments during the last several years and we expect to

continue to receive payments until completion of remediation These payments represent the incremental cost of

purchasing water over the cost that would have been incurred by us to pump water from our wells had they not been

shut down as result of contamination and excluded costs covered in the $1.7 million settlement discussed above
The settlement agreement provided for ongoing reimbursement of our excess water costs and how we bill and collect

this reimbursement monthly These monthly reimbursements are recorded as reduction to operating expenses The
reimbursements were $0.9 million $1.7 million $3.4 million $3.1 million $3.4 million $3.3 million and $4.0 million

during 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 and 2003 respectively

The settlement agreement also provides for contributions by the Cooperating Respondents for construction of new
wells and interconnections with nearby water sources These contributions were $0.1 million $0.5 million $0.8 million

$1.6 million $0.5 million $0.7 million and $2.5 million for 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 and 2003
respectively and were recorded as contributions in aid of construction Currently the parties are in disputes regarding

certain matters under the Agreement which are subject to arbitration and mediation

Class Action Litigation

Perrin SouthWest Water Company et al Case No CV 08-07844 Central District of California and related
consolidated cases On November 26 2008 an alleged purchaser of our publicly traded common stock filed

securities class action lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Central District of California The complaint

generally alleges that from May 10 2005 through November 2008 we made false statements or omitted to state

facts necessary to make our disclosures not misleading Five additional and substantially similar cases were filed in

the same court On January 26 2009 motions for consolidation and for the appointment of lead plaintiff and lead

counsel were filed by the plaintiffs On February 12 2009 the court granted the motion for consolidation and for the

appointment of lead plaintiff and lead counsel Pursuant to stipulation of the parties the lead plaintiff on October 15
2009 filed consolidated complaint The Company is defending against the amended complaints as of this date and

no final complaint is on file Given the nature and preliminary status of these Cases we cannot yet determine the

amount or even reasonable range of potential loss in these matters if any

Derivative Litigation

Sherman Christie etal Case No 6C404946 Los Angeles County Superior Court and related cases On
January 2009 an alleged shareholder of our publicly traded common stock filed shareholder derivative case
alleging breach of fiduciary duty arising from the announcement of our intent to restate financial statements against
certain present and former members of our Board of Directors Two additional substantially similar cases were filed

Stipulations were entered extending the time to respond to the complaints On April 23 2009 the court found that

the three derivative suits were complex and related and transferred the cases to single judge for all purposes and

ordered an initial status conference for December 2009 The cases were consolidated on May 19 2009 The lead

plaintiff by stipulation of the parties filed consolidated complaint on October 2009 The Company is defending

against the amended complaints as of this date and no final complaint is on file Given the nature and preliminary

status of these cases we cannot yet determine the amount or even reasonable range of potential loss in these

matters if any
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Other Matters

After the announcement of the Merger Agreement described in Note Business Basis of Presentation and Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies we were made aware of alleged investigations and the filing of lawsuits alleging

breach of fiduciary duty by the Companys Board of Directors in relation to the process leading up to the execution of

the Merger Agreement Though we aware of the lawsuits we have not been served with such litigation Accordingly it

is not possible to quantify potential loss if any

We are also involved in other routine legal and administrative proceedings arising during the ordinary course of

business We believe that the ultimate disposition of such matters will not have material adverse effect on our

consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows Any related legal costs are expensed when

incurred

Certain Contractual Commitments and Indemnities

During the normal course of business we have entered into agreements containing indemnities pursuant to which we

may be required to make payments in the future These indemnities are in connection with facility leases and liabilities

and operations and maintenance and construction contracts entered into by our contract services businesses The

duration of these indemnities commitments and guarantees varies and irt certain cases is indefinite Substantially all

of these indemnities provide no limitation on the maximum potential future payments the Company could be obligated

to make and is not quantifiable The Company has not recorded any liability for these indemnities

NOTE 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table is reconciliation of the numerators income or loss and denominators shares used in .both the

basic and diluted earnings per share calculations

Years Ended December 31
In thousands 2009 2008 2007

NumeratorsNet income loss applicable to common stockholders

Income loss from continuing operations $14034 $27595 $1449
Less preferred stock dividends 18 24 24

Income loss from continuing operations applicable to common stockholders 14052 27619 1473
Income loss from discontinued operations 18101 4322 3038

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders $4049 $31941 $1565

DenominatorsWeighted average common shares outstanding

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 24604 24446 24101
Plus shares issued on assumed exercise of stock options and warrants

Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 24604 24446 24101

The difference between reported basic and diluted earnings per share is the effect of stock options and other securities

that under the treasury share method give rise to potentially dilutive common shares During the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we incurred losses and as result options to purchase 18000 184000 and

318000 shares of common stock respectively are considered antidilutive and therefore are not included in the

computation of diluted loss per share for 2009 2008 and 2007

As described in Note Long-Term Debt we have $11.8 million of 6.85% fixed-rate convertible subordinate

debentures outstanding at December 31 2009 that are convertible until maturity at conversion price of $11.018

per share 1.1 million shares at December 31 2009 At such time as the assumed conversion of the debentures has

dilutive effect on earnings per share the debentures will be included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

after adjusting net income for the after-tax effect of the debenture interest expense

Approximately 1737000 1492000 and 604000 share-based equity awards were excluded from the computation of

diluted earnings per share in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively due to their antidilutive effect

NOTE 12 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The following information supplements the Companys consolidated statements of cash flows
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In thousands _________ _________ _________
Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes paid refunded net

Components of cash paid for acquisitions

Fair value of assets acquired less cash acquired

Liabilities assumed _________ _________ _________
Cash paid for acquisitions _________ _________

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Non-cash contributions in aid of construction and advances for construction

conveyed to Company by developers

Capital expenditures financed with capital lease obligations

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable

Debentures converted into common stock

NOTE 13 SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLANS

Share-Based Equity Incentive Plans

Equity Incentive Plan EIP
The stockholder-approved Equity Incentive Plan EIP authorizes us to award up to 5.4 million shares of our

common stock At December 31 2009 0.8 million shares were available for granting future awards under the plan

which may be granted until May 16 2016 We have reserved total of 2.2 million shares of our authorized common
shares for issuance upon exercise of options granted and for awards granted in the future

Under the EIP we may award either qualified or non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights restricted

stock restricted stock units and other share-based awards to officers employees and non-employee directors with the

provision that the exercise price may not be less than the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant The

Compensation and Organization Committee of the Board of Directors administers the EIP and establishes each awards

vesting schedule and term at the time of the award The Committee has generally established straight-line vesting

schedules over periods of two to five years An awards term may not exceed ten years from date of grant and have

generally been set at seven years from date of grant with options being forfeited upon expiration or when

participant terminates employment prior to vesting Upon change in control as defined in the EIP any previously

unvested options immediately vest

Compensation Expense

The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense in its consolidated financial statements based on the fair

value of an award on the date of grant on straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately

vesting portion of the award The following table summarizes the compensation expense and related income tax

benefit related to share-based compensation expense recognized during the periods presented

Years Ended December 31
In thousands 2009 2008 2007

Stock options 287 797 850
Stock purchase plan 10

Restricted stock awards 577 _________ _________
Share-based compensation expense 874

Income tax benefit 304 ________ ________
Share-based compensation expense net of tax 570

_________ _________

No share-based compensation was capitalized during the three years ended December 31 2009 At December 31
2009 aggregate unrecognized compensation costs was $2.2 million and is expected to be recognized over the next

five years 2.2 years on weighted average basis

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

8763 8335 7689
490 1764 703

23406 9758
1464

$23406 8294

550 4606 319

75 303 4844
1025 2912 2060

46 557

417

1214

433
781

150

1000

357
643
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Stock Options

The fair value of each option grant with the exception of the PASOs noted below is estimated on the date of grant

using the Black-Scholes option pricing model The expected volatility of fair value is estimated based on historical

volatility of the Companys common stock The expected dividends are based on the current dividend yield of the

Companys stock at the date of the grant The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is

based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant The expected term represents the period of time

stock options are expected to be outstanding and is for the majority of the options valued prior to 2009 based on the

simplified method The Company believes that the simplified method is appropriate due to several factors that result

in historical exercise data not being sufficient to determine reasonable estimate of expected term In 2009 we used

historical experience to calculate the expected term The assumptions used are shown in the following table

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

Dividend yield 2.1% 2.1% 1.8%

Expected volatility 48.17% 36.8% 34.3%

Risk-free interest rate 3.4% 2.7% 4.6%

Expected life in years 7.0 5.0 4.8

The weighted average grant date fair value per share of options granted using these assumptions was $1.87 $3.37

and $3.91 per share for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

On January 29 2008 the Company issued Performance Accelerated Stock Options PASO5 The PASOs can

accelerate vesting subject to market conditions The market conditions are based on Company stock price targets The

awards are settled in stock and are recorded at the grant date fair value The fair value of the PASOs was estimated

using customized Monte Carlo simulation The value of those stock options is amortized through expense over the

requisite service period using the straight line method

The following table summarizes stock option and warrant activity during the three years ended December 31 2009

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise

In thousands except exercise prices Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 1703 $11.62 1487 $11.19 1573 $10.45

Granted 20 4.43 489 11.27 366 12.85

Exercised 174 6.13 228 6.93

Forfeited 137 12.27 54 12.90 139 13.90

Expired 225 10.74 45 13.45 85 11.57

Outstanding at end of year 1361 11.60 1703 11.62 1487 11.19

Exercisable at end of year 886 11.60 923 11.10 877 9.65

The total intrinsic value of options vested and expected to vest was $0.0 million $0.0 million and $2.9 million at

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The following tables summarize information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2009

Vested

and

Expected Fully

In thousands except as indicated Outstanding to Vest Vested

Number of shares 1361 1236 886

Weighted average remaining contractual life in years 2.76 2.62 2.15

Weighted average exercise price per share $11.60 $11.62 $11.61

Aggregate intrinsic value at closing stock price of $5.89 per share $29 $25 $0
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Outstanding Exercisable

Number Weighted- Number
Outstanding Average Weighted- Exercisable Weighted-

as of Remaining Average as of Average
December 31 Contractual Exercise December 31 Exercise

In thousands except per share and life in years data 2009 Life Price 2009 Price

Range of per share exercise prices

4.43 to $10.63 309 1.45 years $8.41 282 $8.64

$10.64to$11.07 41 0.5oyears 11.05 21 11.05

$11.O8to$11.28 339 4.l4years 11.28 11.28

$11.29to$12.76 284 2.47years 12.23 229 12.17

$12.77 to $17.75 388 3.03 years 13.99 345 13.71

4.43 to $17.75 1361 2.76 years 11.60 886 11.61

Restricted Stock Awards and Performance Shares

The Company has established straight-line vesting schedule over three-year period of continuous service to the

Company for all awards granted to date Restricted stock is forfeited in the event participant terminates employment
with the Company prior to the award vesting The grant date fair value of stock awarded is recognized as

compensation expense over the vesting term The restrictions on these shares automatically lapse in the event of

change in control as defined in the EIP

The following table summarizes non-performance based restricted stock award activity during the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008

Weighted-
Number Average

of Grant Date

In thousands except weighted average grant date fair value Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31 2006

Awarded 27 12.76

Vested and released

Forfeited 12.76

Outstanding at December 31 2007 25 $12.76

Awarded 307 10.35

Vested and released 12.76

Forfeited 19 11.69

Outstanding at December 31 2008 305 $10.39

Awarded

Vested and released 16 11.88

Forfeited 19 11.41

Outstanding at December 31 2009 270 $10.24

On January 29 2008 the Company also issued 96762 Performance Contingent Restricted Stock PCRS and

109147 Performance Shares The PCRS are settled in stock and vest subject to performance conditions based on the

achievement of EBITDA targets For awards which vest based on performance conditions the Company recognizes

expense for the portion of awards where achievement is considered probable At December 31 2009 no PCRS awards

are considered probable of meeting performance conditions and therefore no expense has been recognized related to

these awards Performance Shares are cash settled awards which vest contingent upon performance condition

measured based on the increase in the Companys return on invested capital No Performance Shares are considered

probable of achievement of performance targets and therefore no expense has been recognized related to these

awards

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP
The Company has stockholder-approved employee stock purchase plan ESPP that allows eligible employees to

purchase 1.0 million shares of common stock through payroll deductions up to 1O% of their salary not to exceed

$25000 per year The purchase price of the stock is 90h of the lower of the three-day average share price calculated

at the beginning and end of each three-month offering period Under the ESPP employees purchased approximately

11000 23000 and 21000 shares in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively At December 31 2009 0.6 million shares
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remain available for future purchases The Merger Agreement described in Note Business Basis of Presentation

and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies prohibits additional purchases after March 31 2010

The fair value of ESPP shares purchased is estimated using Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following

weighted average assumptions

Year Ended
December 31

2009 2008

Dividend yield
2.10% 2.10%

Expected volatility
43 80% 41.10%

Risk-free interest rate 0.10% 2.64%

Expected life in years
0.25 0.25

The Companys expense related to this plan was less than $0.1 million for each of the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007

NOTE 14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401k Retirement Plans

Substantially all employees are eligible to participate in one of the 401k retirement plans we sponsor which are

defined contribution plans under the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 The

Company makes discretionary matching contributions to the plans that vest over period of one to six years The

Companys expense related to its matching contributions was $1.0 million $1.0 million and $0.9 million for the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP

We have non-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan SERP originally established for certain key

executives and officers for the purpose of providing supplemental income benefits to plan participants or their

survivors upon retirement or death Two executive officers were originally selected by the compensation committee of

the Board of Directors to participate in the SERP and as of December 31 2009 there is only one remaining

participant The sole remaining participant in the SERP is former Chief Executive Officer of the Company who

retired in May 2008 accordingly there are no current employees participating Additionally there are no intentions of

selecting any other participants

Prior to 2009 we accounted for the SERP in accordance with pension benefits accounting standards whereby actuarial

gains and losses and prior service costs or credits were recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

loss net of tax effects until they were amortized as component of net periodic benefit cost In 2009 with the

expectation of no new participants we credited the related accumulated deferred balance of $0.1 million included in

other comprehensive income as of December 31 2008 to earnings in 2009

The liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31 2009 and 2008 was $1.0 million and

$1.1 million respectively

The SERP is an unfunded plan and the contributions for the next year are expected to equal the benefits paid

However to assist in funding the benefit obligations we invested in company-owned life insurance policy However

there is no direct relationship between the aggregate participants SERP benefits and the policy coverage The cash

surrender value of the policy was $1.6 million and $1.5 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and is

included in non-current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets see Note Other Assets

Deferred Compensation Plan DCP
We have non-qualified deferred compensation plan DCP that permits key employees to annually elect to defer

portion of their compensation until their retirement The retirement benefit to be provided Es based upon the amount

of compensation deferred Deferred compensation expense was $0.1 million $0.1 million and $0.1 million in 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively Total deferred compensation liabilities were $1.4 million and $1.6 million at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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To assist in funding the deferred compensation liability the Company has invested in company-owned life insurance

policies The cash surrender value of these policies was $1.7 million and $1.7 million at December 31 2009 and 2008
respectively and is included in other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets see Note

Other Assets

NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

SouthWest Waters principal business activity is to operate and maintain water and wastewater infrastructure

Through its operating subsidiaries the Company owns 144 systems and operates hundreds more under contract to

cities utility districts and private companies

Operations are divided into four major reportable segments to better focus the distinct strategies of each operating
business Each operating segment contains direct operating costs and allocated common support functions Each

operating segment is led by Managing Director and Financial Director We believe this management structure

brings both direct operational and financial management accountability to each of our operating segments

We separate our segments first by whether we own the utility or provide contract services to others Our owned water

and wastewater utilities are referred to as Utilities operations Utilities In our financial statements we report our

Texas Utilities operations Texas Utilities as separate segment because of different economic characteristics This

is primarily because our Texas Utilities are currently under-recovering our cost of service as we have made large

investments in these operations that are not yet being recovered through our rates Our contract operations are

segmented by contract type into those that are generally larger stand alone operations OM Services and those

that are small full service contracts operated by common team of personnel resulting in model that proportions
fractional cost to each client Texas MUD Services
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The following table presents information about the operations of each segment for the three years ended

December 31 2009 Amounts related to discontinued operations have been excluded from the data presented

Reflects corporate headquarters general and administrative expenses and interest expense net of interest income charged

on intercompany debt Corporate and other assets reflect corporate headquarters assets excluding investments in and

receivables from subsidiaries

Texas

Texas OM MUD Consolidat

In thousands Utilities Utilities Services Services Corp.1 ed

Year ended December 31 2009
RevenueUnaffiliated customers $65168 $36525 $36976 $72424 $211093

Expenses

Operations and maintenance 38132 24640 36129 72946 28110 199957

Depreciation and amortization 7748 4428 548 777 1356 14857

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets 122 7993 8115

Total expenses 45880 29068 36677 73845 37459 222929

Operating income loss 19288 7457 299 1421 37459 11836
Interest expense 1726 2655 390 344 4741 9856
Interest income 135 39 190

Other income expense
Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes $17697 $4841 $88 $1756 $42196 $21502

Other information

Additions to property plant and equipment $9134 $6912 $297 $129 $44 $16516

Total assets as of period end date 187897 149336 17022 23869 21971 400095

Year ended December 31 2008
RevenueUnaffiliated customers $60927 $34784 $40493 $74453 $210657

Expenses

Operations and maintenance 33673 24507 196385

Depreciation and amortization 7077 4143 14299

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets 452 25171 27103

Total expenses 41202 53821 237787

Operating income loss 19725 19037 27130
Interest expense 2168 1402 8402
Interest income 91 15 520

Other income expense 450 3868
Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes $18098 $24292 $3366 $2253 $23199 $35012

Other information

Additions to property plant and equipment $15555 $6875 $136 $273 $9296 $32135

Total assets as of period end date 179192 147726 15416 35843 38108 416285

Year ended December 31 2007
RevenueUnaffiliated customers $56653 $27911 $40922 $79321 $204807

Expenses

Operations and maintenance 29068 14923 181252

Depreciation and amortization 4930 435 11177

Impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets

and other long-lived assets 4839

Total expenses 33998 15358 197268

Operating income loss 22655 15358 7539

Interest expense 2249 4272 7717
Interest income 71 51 629

Other income expense 649 3101 64
Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes $21126 $5476 $1756 $2971 $16478 $387

Other information

Additions to property plant and equipment $14174 $11661 $96 $718 $3185 $29834

Total assets as of period end date 142289 175615 17097 42613 19355 396969

43091
283

43374
2881

16

499

76246
1112

210

77568

3115
129

378

613

18868
1684
1270

21822

21822
4701

20

3304

41111
556

75048
1385

21102
3871

4168
29141
1230

901
31

3376

624

42291

1369
28
263

622

47

76480
2841
267

213

184
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NOTE 16 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

The quarterly financial information presented below is unaudited Our business is of seasonal nature and it is

managements opinion that comparisons of basic earnings for the quarterly periods do not reflect overall trends and

changes in our operations

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

In thousands except per share data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year ended December 31 2009
Operating revenue $50092 $52416 $58984 $49601
Operating income loss 3648 9608 1621 201
Loss from continuing operations 3405 8063 499 2067
Income from discontinued operations 172 17559 370
Net income loss 3233 9496 499 1697
Net income loss applicable to common stockholders 3233 9490 505 1703
Basic earning per common share

Loss from continuing operations $0.14 $0.33 $0.02 $0.08
Income from discontinued operations 0.01 0.71 ________ 0.02

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders $0.13 $0.38 $0.02 $0.06
Diluted earning per common share

Loss from continuing operations $0.14 $0.33 $0.02 $0.08
Income from discontinued operations 0.01 0.71

_________ 0.02

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders $0.13 $0.38 $0.02 $0.06

1st 2nd 3rd 4th

In thousands except per share data Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year ended December 31 2008
Operating revenue $47413 $54170 $57482 $51592
Operating income loss 194 1364 1429 30117
Loss from continuing operations 1202 435 243 25715
Income loss from discontinued operations 229 415 733 4233
Net income loss 973 20 976 29948
Net income loss applicable to common stockholders 979 26 982 29954
Basic earning per common share

Loss from continuing operations $0.05 $0.02 $0.01 $1.04
Income loss from discontinued operations 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.17
Net income loss applicable to common stockholders $0.04 $0.00 $0.04 $1.21

Diluted earning per common share

Loss from continuing operations $0.05 $0.02 $0.01 $1.04
Income loss from discontinued operations 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.17
Income loss applicable to common stockholders $0.04 $0.00 $0.04 $1.21

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recorded goodwill impairment charges of $25.0 million and

$0.5 million related to its Texas Utilities and Utilities respectively Note Other Assets and an $8.0 million charge
related to the NMUI eminent domain settlement and other related issues Note 10 Commitments and

Contingencies
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BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
In thousands 2009 2008
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1668
Receivables from subsidiaries net 43226 91055
Deferred income tax assets 13599 3079
Income tax receivable 2910 3121
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4131 1408

Total current assets 65534 98663
Property Plant and Equipment net 5442 16109
Investment in subsidiaries 143703 128420
Other Assets 7820 6410

Total assets $222499 $249602

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable 5852 7091
Current portion of long-term debt 1068 1099
Other current liabilities 5207 7834

Total current liabilities 12127 16024
Long-term Debt

Revolving credit line 74500 98000
Convertible subordinated debt 11839 11962
Capital leases and other indebtedness 1963 3048

Total long-term debt 88302 113010
Other liabilities and deferred credits 6156 6768

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders Equity

Cumulative preferred stock 458 458
Common stock 249 249
Additional paid-in capital 148407 147775
Accumulated deficit 33200 34794
Accumulated other comprehensive income 112

Total stockholders equity 115914 113800
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $222499 $249602

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands

Operating revenue

Operating expenses

Operating loss

Other income expense
Interest expense

Interest income

Equity in net income loss of subsidiaries

Other income net

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit

Net income loss
Preferred stock dividends

Net income loss applicable to common stockholders

Years Ended December 31
2009 2008 2007

21427 7022 2689

21427 7022 2689

4754 1399
20

20956 26456

5221 34857
9288 2940

4067 31917
18 24

4049 31941

1262
51

4065
91

256

1333
1589
41

1565

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31
In thousands 2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations

Net income loss 4067 31917 1589
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by used in

operating activities

Equity in net income loss of subsidiaries 20956 26456 4065
Depreciation and amortization 1382 1684 434

Deferred income taxes 10309 1391 239

Share-based compensation expense 874 1214 1000

Impairment of long-lived assets 7990 1270
Other net 308 131 159

Dividends received from subsidiaries 5673 4790 5187
Changes in assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2723 331 1940
Other assets 595 1509 459
Current liabilities 1891 5638 4172
Other liabilities 612 1010 47

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 15602 8043 6363
Cash flows from investing activities of continuing operations

Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 23406 8298
Additions to property plant and equipment 139 9296 3184
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 159

Proceeds from the sale of subsidiary 54849 2219

Changes in receivables from subsidiaries 6924 21162 8065
Net cash provided by used in investing activities 47945 51645 19547
Cash flows from financing activities of continuing operations

Borrowings under lines of credit 35700 153000 40500

Repayments under lines of credit 59200 106000 25500
Proceeds from share-based equity incentive plans and stock purchase plans 2821 3544
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised 133

Dividends paid 3102 5901 5562
Repayments of long-term debt 1298 1237 305
Deferred financing costs 2775 532

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 30675 42151 12810
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1668 1451 374
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1451 1825
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1668 1451

Non-cash investing activity

Conversion of subsidiary debt to equity 9000

See accompanying notes to condensed financial information of registrant
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared to present the financial position results of operations and

cash flows of SouthWest Water Company the Parent or Company on stand-alone basis Investments in

subsidiaries are stated at cost plus equity in undistributed earnings from the date of acquisition These financial

statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of SouthWest

Water Company and subsidiaries Registrant included in Part II Item of this Form 10-K

Certain amounts have been reclassified in order to conform to the present year presentation Specifically cash

provided by operating and financing activities previously reported for 2008 and 2007 have been adjusted by $0.8

million and $0.1 million respectively to correct differences between dividends declared and paid for each period

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in order to

recognize future tax effects attributable to differences between the financial statement assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases as well as the recognition of operating loss andtax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recorded using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the

temporary differences are recovered or settled The effect of change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and

liabilities is recognized in the period that the change occurs

Liabilities are recorded for probable income tax assessments based on estimates of potential tax related exposures
Accounting for these assessments requires significant judgment as uncertainties often exist with respect to existing

tax laws new interpretations of existing laws and rulings by taxing authorities Differences between actual results and

assumptions or changes in assumptions are recorded in the period they become known

NOTE DEBT

In February 2008 we replaced our previous revolving line of credit by entering into credit agreement with several

lenders including Bank of America as lender and Administrative Agent KeyBank CoBank U.S Bank JPMorgan Chase

Bank Comerica Bank Bank of the West Citibank and Union Bank of California the Bank Group The credit

agreement initially provided for $150.0 million revolving credit facility Proceeds from the initial borrowing under the

credit agreement were used to repay borrowings under the Companys prior $100.0 million revolving line of credit

We pay commitment fees under the facility and must maintain customary financial ratios prescribed cash flow results

and meet other restrictive covenants We were not in compliance with certain covenants due to our failure to timely

file our September 30 2008 March 31 2009 and June 30 2009 Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and 2008 Annual

Report on Form 10-K In addition we were in violation of our debt-to-capitalization ratio at December 31 2008 and

at March 31 2009 However we received amendments from the Bank Group which waived existing and anticipated

defaults primarily granting additional time to complete our financial filings and waiving the debt-to-capitalization ratio

for the periods of non-compliance The May 28 2009 amendment also reduced the credit amount available under the

line to $110.0 million secured the facility with substantially all assets of the Company not previously encumbered
and significantly increased our borrowing margins Fees and expenses charged by the Bank Group for all the

amendments were $3.3 million of which $2.8 and $0.5 million were charged during the years ended December 31
2009 and 2008 respectively These fees were capitalized and are being amortized over the remaining life of the

facility which extends through February 2013

Borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at our option based on either margin over the designated LIBOR

rate or the prime rate If our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 60% or lower the applicable margins are 4.00% over the

LIBOR rate and 3.00% over the prime rate As of December 31 2009 our debt-to-capitalization ratio is 58%
therefore the applicable margins are 4.OO% over the LIBOR rate and 3.00% over the prime rate The margins decline

on sliding scale as our debt-to-capitalization ratio improves The weighted average annual interest rates excluding

bank amendment and waiver fees on all credit facility borrowings outstanding were 4.30% and 1.58% at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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As of December 31 2009 we had irrevocable standby letters of credit in the amount of $3.7 million issued and

outstanding under our revolving credit facility and our available borrowing capacity was $31.8 million

We had $11.8 million of 6.85% convertible subordinated debentures issued and outstanding at December 31 2009

compared to $12.0 million at the end of the prior year The debentures are convertible at the option of the holder

into shares of the Companys common stock at conversion price of $11.018 per share and are convertible at any

time prior to maturity During the year ended December 31 2009 no debentures were converted into shares of

common stock however during the year ended December 31 2008 debentures in the aggregate principal amount of

$0.04 million were converted into 4172 shares of common stock At December 31 2009 all of the debentures

outstanding are convertible into 1.1 million shares of common stock and have an antidilutive effect on the

computation of earnings per share

The debentures are unsecured general obligations of the Company are subordinated to all existing and future secured

and senior debt and are due on July 2021 with interest payable quarterly The Company may redeem the

debentures at any time in whole or in part at redemption price 100% of face value

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the normal course of business the Company has entered into agreements containing indemnities pursuant to

which the Company may be required to make payments in the future These indemnities are in connection with facility

leases and liabilities and operations and maintenance and construction contracts entered into by the Companys

contract services businesses The duration of these indemnities commitments and guarantees varies and in certain

cases is indefinite Substantially all of these indemnities provide no limitation on the maximum potential future

payments the Company could be obligated to make and is not quantifiable The Company has not recorded any

liability for these indemnities
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Provision Recoveries Balance

Balance at Charged and or Accounts at

Beginning to Acquisition Written End of

In thousands of Year Expense Off Year

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Year ended December 31 2009 2051 1867 1700 2220
Year ended December 31 2008 1454 2091 68 1562 2051
Year ended December 31 2007 1858 332 21 757 1454

Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

Year ended December 31 2009 1424 433 1851
Year ended December 31 2008 1417 1424
Year ended December 31 2007 1010 407 1417
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Mark Swatek certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of SouthWest Water Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as

of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and we have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures at the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Dated March 15 2010 /5/ MARK SWATEK
Mark Swatek

Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Ben Smith certify that

have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of SouthWest Water Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state
material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over
financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and we have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant
including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures at the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the
registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board
of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record
process summarize and report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Dated March 15 2010 /s BEN SMITH

Ben Smith

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002

18 U.S.C 1350

In connection with the annual report of SouthWest Water Company the Company on Form 10-K for the period

ended December 31 2009 the Report Mark Swatek Chief Executive Officer of the Company certify

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 18 U.S.C 1350 that

to my knowledge the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 15 2010 /5/ MARK SWATEK
Mark Swatek
Chief Executive Officer and President



Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002

18 U.S.C 1350

In connection with the annual report of SouthWest Water Company the Company on Form 10-K for the period

ended December 31 2009 the Report Ben Smith Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 18 U.S.C 1350 that

to my knowledge the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 15 2010 Is BEN SMITH

Ben Smith

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer


